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Vision 2014 
A globally competitive, sustainable and meaningfully transformed mining and minerals 
sector.

Vision 2025
A leader in the transformation of South Africa through economic growth and sustainable 
development by 2025.

Mission
Promote and Regulate the Minerals and Mining Sector for transformation, growth, 
development and ensure that all South Africans derive sustainable bene  t from the 
country’s mineral wealth.
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Each of the entities reporting to the Minister of Mineral Resources submits its own annual report to the Minister, which are then tabled 

together with the DMR’s annual report. The following is a summary of the highlights and performance of these entities for the year 

under review:

i.   Mine Health and Safety Council 
The Mine Health and Safety Council (MHSC) was established in terms of Section 42(1) of the Mine Health and Safety Act, No. 

29 of 1996.  The Council has the responsibility of advising the Minister of Mineral Resources on occupational health and safety 

(OHS) issues at mines and promoting a culture of health and safety in the mining industry.  It does so through the development 

of OHS research programmes and the development and review of regulations, standards, occupational health and safety 

policies and procedures; in order to minimise the occupational health and safety risk in the sector.

MHSC Research Highlights
In the year under review, the focus of research programmes remained similar to that of the previous year, namely on the 

achievement of the OHS Summit milestones. The MHSC, through the research identi  cation process, determined that research 

was needed in the following areas:

Rock related research
The increase in seismicity in platinum mines was of concern and required a programme of work to truly understand this 

risk. As such, a project was undertaken to evaluate what would be needed to mitigate the risk of seismicity. The work in this 

project focuses on establishing some of the fundamentals of the problems, since the platinum sector is relatively “young” 

when compared to gold mining operations. 

Further to this, the MHSC commissioned a project through the Council for Geoscience to investigate the manner in which the 

national seismic network could be integrated with the mines’ local-seismic networks.

Silicosis
On the issue of the eradication of silicosis, the MHSC continued funding the long term programme of work already 

commissioned. The focus for the year was on the  nalisation of the engineering controls that could be implemented by mines 

to eradicate this major problem.  

The MHSC also undertook to determine how previous research outcomes could be enhanced to add greater value to the 

sector. Part of this effort was an investigation into how the research auditing tool used in SIM 06 06 01 can be further re  ned 

and made electronically available for use by all relevant parties. 

Medical Surveillance Programme
The need for accurate health data was well documented at all levels of the MHSC. As an initiative towards achieving this, the 

Council approved a project to investigate a model for a real-time health data system to capture occupational diseases with 

the long term goal of tracking trends.

Summit Action Plan and Presidential Audit Outcomes
In addition to the research initiatives, the Summit Action Plan and the outcomes of the Presidential Audit remained a key focus area 

for the MHSC.  Each of the themes had a set of identi  able actions and outcomes. 

For the year 2010/11, efforts were focussed on the development of strategies towards the various themes, with particular focus 

on the  nalisation of a culture transformation framework. The Changing Minds, Changing Mines project is based on a survey 

that indicated that OHS culture in the industry was signi  cantly more negative than international comparisons. At a workshop in 

February 2010, stakeholders developed the  nal document which was later submitted to the MHSC stakeholders for approval.

Public Entities Reporting to the Minister of Mineral Resources

PUBLIC ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
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ii. The Council for Mineral Technology Research  (Mintek)
Mintek was established in terms of the Mineral Technology Act, No. 30 of 1989. It provides research, development and technology 

that foster the development of businesses in the mineral and mineral products industries.

The effects of the global  nancial crisis, which were somewhat delayed in the case of Mintek, resulted in the organisation 

experiencing a loss, for the  rst time since 2007, of R2.7 million in the year under review. The main cause of the loss was the 

successful conclusion of the ConRoast demonstration phase as there was no major contract that could replace the Jubilee toll 

treatment.  Further, 46 positions associated with demonstration facility became redundant. Taking this into account, as well 

as the  nancial position of the organisation and the lack of work due to the economic slump, Mintek had to enter into formal 

retrenchment consultations with the National Union of Mineworkers. A decision to retrench 39 staff members was inevitably 

reached at the conclusion of the negotiations.  Mintek continues to pursue other toll treatment avenues that could result in the 

re-employment of the retrenched staff. The effects of the meltdown have now started to diminish and with the renewed interest in 

exploration and related activities, as well as various internal cost-cutting measures instituted, the organisation’s  nancial position 

is expected to improve.

The recent focus on the acid mine drainage (AMD) legacy of mining in South Africa has necessitated Mintek’s re-evaluation 

of its SAVMIN process, a technology which the organisation developed in the 1990s to treat AMD. Mintek re-engineered the 

technology and, together with Veolia Water Solutions and Technologies, an international water and waste water management 

company, the organisation will conduct feasibility studies for a cost comparison with other treatment options before a planned 

demonstration plant is developed.

Mintek successfully commissioned a demonstration plant at Harmony Gold Mine’s No 1 plant near Welkom in the Free State 

to demonstrate its MetRIX continuous resin-in-pulp (RIP) technology for the direct recovery of uranium from dense slurries. 

Preliminary feasibility studies showed that this technology is more cost-effective than conventional methods. The MetRIX RIP 

process also offers environmental bene  ts as it is capable of treating uranium from low grade ores, such as from existing gold 

slimes dams, thereby reducing the uncontrolled leaching of uranium into the environment.

Samples of iron, uranium and manganese ores were tested using sensor-based ore sorting with the aim of demonstrating 

the technology’s capability to reduce water and energy consumption in plant  ow sheets by dry waste rejection before further 

processing. The sorting units, sourced from Commodas/Ultrasort and RADOS, have generated signi  cant commercial interest.

A project, which was funded by the DMR and managed by Mintek, to rehabilitate derelict and ownerless mines across the country 

was concluded at old asbestos mine at Prieska in the Northern Cape Province.  Similar asbestos mine projects are ongoing at 

Penge, Lusikisiki, Osizweni and Heuningvlei, and an additional  ve sites have been identi  ed for rehabilitation.

Through Mintek’s second economy interventions 86 people, some living with disabilities, were trained and received certi  cates 

at eight pottery projects in the North West Province. Eighty-nine people from historically disadvantaged communities were also 

trained in modules of small scale mining in the Free State, Mpumalanga, the Western Cape and KwaZulu Natal. 

Mintek’s quality, environment, safety and health (QESH) have been re-certi  ed by independent auditors to meet the requirements 

of quality (ISO 9001:2008), environment (ISO 14001:2004), and safety and health (OHSAS 18001:2007) after its QESH 

management systems underwent a combined surveillance audit. Laboratories in the Hydrometallurgy and Analytical Services 

divisions were also audited against the requirements of ISO17025 for testing and calibration laboratories, and retained their 

accreditation.

iii. The Council for Geoscience 
The Council for Geoscience (CGS), established in terms of the Geoscience Act, No. 100 of 1993, is the national agency that 

is tasked with the systematic development and maintenance of the national geosciences knowledge infrastructure for both the 

onshore (land) and offshore (oceans) environment of South Africa.

PUBLIC ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
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Geoscience Amendment Act
Amendments to the Geoscience Act were passed by Parliament and signed by the President in December 2010. The Council 

for Geoscience is currently compiling the Act’s regulations, which will be  nalised in the new  nancial year. The Act with its 

regulations contains important procedures to better manage the sustainable development on dolomitic land that is susceptible to 

sinkholes and subsidences. The amended Act also stipulates procedures for the submission of relevant geoscienti  c data to the 

Council for Geoscience to ensure that this information will be used to enhance other geoscienciti  c research programmes and 

mineral investment and exploration in the country.

Acid Mine Drainage
The Council for Geoscience led and coordinated the compilation of team of experts’ report to the Inter- Ministerial Committee on 

Acid Mine Drainage, from which a series of important recommendations were made to address acid mine drainage for the gold-

producing regions of the Witwatersrand.  The Council for Geoscience will continue to focus on research to reduce the impact of 

acid mine drainage, not only in the Witwatersrand but also in the coal-producing areas of the country.  In this regard, the Council 

for Geoscience, along with partners from a number of European and Asian countries are undertaking research studies in South 

Africa, the Czech Republic and Kyrgyzstan to enhance understanding of acid mine drainage in various geological terrains. 

Rehabilitation of derelict and ownerless mines: Coal mines in Mpumalanga 
During 2011 the Council for Geoscience intends to begin developing rehabilitation plans for a number of derelict and ownerless 

mines, with the initial focus being on coal mines in Mpumalanga. Most of these sites have related acid mine drainage problems 

and the proper management and mitigation of these impacts will form an important component of the project.

Seismic Activities on Mines - Mine Safety Research Programme
The Council for Geoscience, in collaboration with the Mine Health and Safety Council, has made signi  cant progress in a project 

aimed at reducing the injuries and mining fatalities associated with seismic activity on our deep gold mining operations. The initial 

phase involves the integration of the mining seismic network with the Council for Geoscience’s national network. This will assist 

in assessing earthquake-related hazards in our mines, which in turn will reduce the associated injuries and loss of life.

Coal Resources of South Africa
The Council for Geoscience is undertaking an assessment of the coal resources and reserves of South Africa in collaboration 

with Eskom, which is set for completion by end of 2011. This signi  cant study will indicate the localities and magnitude of the 

remaining resources and reserves, which is of great importance for the planning of infrastructure for future exploitation of these 

reserves. The results will inform planning of power stations, industrial complexes, town planning, water supply, roads and railway 

lines. The study will also be of paramount importance in ensuring that the country does not run out of this important commodity. 

The last comprehensive study and assessment of South Africa’s coal resources was conducted in the 1970s and the lack of 

scienti  cally derived resource  gures has made management and planning of this resource dif  cult.

Mineral Exploration in South Africa
As part of its contribution to attract investment and grow the South African exploration and mining sector, the Council for 

Geoscience embarked on a number of research programmes.  One such programme was the investigation of the availability 

of the strategically important metals such as rare earth metals.  These metals have a number of signi  cant uses, including 

use in permanent magnets in computers, wind turbines, mobile phones and batteries for hybrid cars. The programme is being 

undertaken in collaboration with counterparts from Japan and will continue in the 2011/12  nancial year. 

The Council for Geoscience has also embarked on an ambitious programme to review the geochemical data for the entire 

Bushveld Complex with the view of identifying further potential mineral targets. This programme is expected to be almost 

completed by the end of the 2011/12  nancial year. 

Sustainable utilisation of coal and gas and addressing global warming 
The Council for Geoscience was a lead party in producing the Atlas on the Geological Storage Potential of South Africa, which 

was released to the public in September 2010. It explains South Africa’s energy economy, the requirements for the safe storage 

PUBLIC ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
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of carbon dioxide and where South Africa’s storage potential lies. The atlas is intended for a broad public readership and captures 

fundamental knowledge on the topic of the potential for geological storage of carbon dioxide in the country.  

The Council for Geoscience is also currently involved in three important climate change projects to examine the past changes 

of palaeoclimate in order to understand future climate change forecasts. One of the projects is particularly important, as it uses 

geological records from the Kalkkop Crater Lake near Graaf Reinet showing high resolution seasonal variations of various 

climatic indices.

A DMR task team has been set up to assess the potential of extracting gas from shales in the Karoo Basin.  It is expected 

that the Council for Geoscience will contribute signi  cantly to the geological understanding of this gas resource as well as the 

environmental aspects in respect of its potential extraction.

Geological Mapping of South Africa’s Offshore Territories 
The Council for Geoscience has almost completed a business case analysis for South Africa to implement a national offshore 

mapping programme. Knowledge of the seabed in South Africa’s current territory of 1.54 m km2 is extremely low and this territory 

could potentially be extended to 3.42 m km2 through the UN Commission on the Limits of the Continental Shelf. 

Our offshore region is becoming increasingly important for a host of activities and resource exploitation including mineral 

exploration and extraction, energy resources (renewable and non-renewable), commercial and recreational  shing, coastal 

engineering, environmental conservation, transport and navigation, microbial resources and academic research. These sectors 

require detailed knowledge of the seabed, a need which the proposed offshore programme would address.

iv. The South African Diamond and Precious Metals Regulator  
The South African Diamond and Precious Metals Regulator  (SADPMR) was established in terms of the Diamonds Act 1986 as 

amended and the Precious Metals Act, No. 37 of 2005. The South African Diamond Board ceased to exist on 30 June 2007 and 

the South African Diamond and Precious Metals Regulator came into effect on 1 July 2007. The Regulator took over the mandate, 

functions, staff and all assets and liabilities of the Diamond Board. The Regulator is now responsible for the regulation of the 

South African diamond, platinum and gold sectors. It is funded, in terms of Act, through a state grant, as opposed to the Board 

which generated its own funding from levies and licence fees of site holders. 

Diamond Bene  ciation
Relative to calendar year 2009, in which crisis in the industry was most felt, diamond bene  ciation in South Africa recorded a 30 

percent growth in 2010. An estimated 280 000 carats of rough diamond (valued at an estimated US $350 million) were subject to 

cutting and polishing during the year, compared with 210 000 carats of rough diamonds (valued at an estimated US $290 million) 

in 2009. 

Polished diamond exports are estimated to have grown from around 134 900 carats (valued at an estimated US $600 million) in 

2009 to an estimated 159 000 carats (valued at an estimated US $460 million) in 2010. 

However, according to statistics from the Bargaining Council for the Diamond Cutting Industry, employment in diamond cutting 

remained at some 1200 in 2010. 

PUBLIC ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
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v. The State Diamond Trader 
The State Diamond Trader was established in terms of the Diamond Act, No. 56 of 1986, as amended, to ful  l the following main 

functions:  to promote equitable access to and bene  ciation of diamond resources, to address distortions in the diamond industry 

and correct historical market failures, and to develop and grow South Africa’s diamond cutting and polishing industry.  The State 

Diamond Trader commenced its operations in September 2007. 

Highlights
As the diamond markets emerged from the global economic recession of 2008/09, the State Diamond Trader (SDT) was able to 

capitalise on the spurts of growth that took place and strengthened its trading ability throughout the  nancial year. A heightened 

reaction was employed by the SDT through its Interim Sales Strategy, yielding a number of positive results.

In terms of purchasing, the SDT increased the purchasing of rough diamonds using its own revenue, saving signi  cant costs 

related to loan funding and managed to purchase 9% by volume (carats) and value.  On the sales side, a total of 60 clients made 

purchases from the SDT, compared to 34 who in the previous year, which contributed to an increase in turnover from R300 million 

last year to R810 million, with a R36 milion gross pro  t.  

In addition, the SDT facilitated business management training for some of its small clients and held client information sessions 

where clients were able to interact with Board members on any matter pertaining to their relationship with the SDT.

The SDT also made improvements to its operational ef  ciency.  Operational expenditure was streamlined, contributing to the 

increased pro  t return, and a Stock Holding Policy was developed, with targeted turnaround time of stock being achieved.  The 

existing producers supplying rough to the SDT were maintained with improved compliance.

Four (4) Diamond Trainees who were jointly employed with the DMR were trained throughout the year and four more trainees will 

be trained in the coming  nancial year.  The seconded personnel from both DMR and De Beers continued to provide invaluable 

contribution to the operations of the SDT.

Challenges
The lack of state funding and the  nalisation of its own funding model remain signi  cant challenges.  The other challenge that 

continues to pose itself is the purchasing of rough diamonds on a run of mine (ROM) basis, which demands proactive and 

innovative selling measures on the part of the SDT.  

PUBLIC ENTITIES REPORTING TO THE MINISTER
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It gives me great pleasure to present the Department of Mineral Resources 
Annual Report for the 2010/11  nancial year.

The year under review has been monumental for the Department. With the DME 
split that established us as a separate department now behind us, the DMR set 
about rede  ning the way it does business so as to make a positive contribution 
to the transformation and development of the mining industry.

Perhaps the highlight of the year was the implementation of the improved 
cadastre online system which replaced the outdated National Mining Promotion 
System. This exercise was key to addressing operational shortfalls and improving 
ef  ciencies, which was a major focus of the year under review.  

As part of this effort, we imposed a moratorium on new applications for prospecting 
rights while a new system was developed.  This gave us time to take stock of 
our progress  since the promulgation of the Minerals, Petroleum Resources 
Development Act in 2004.  

MINISTER’S STATEMENT

The period of the moratorium, which ended on 31 March 2011, throughout our country, except Mpumalanga provided the time needed 
to get a clearer picture of our operational and systems shortfalls. For this I would like to thank the Director General who championed 
this project with zeal and dedication, as always. He put together a formidable team to work on this challenge, and the expertise of the 
team members has been greatly enhanced through this project.

During the moratorium period, the Mineral Regulation Branch was able to conduct inspections on all issued Prospecting Rights with 
3266 inspections conducted from a planned 3507. 

The Department has now become committed to more stringent monitoring and enforcement of compliance. The provisions of Sections 
47 and 93 of the Act are being used more effectively and any mines contravening the terms and conditions of their rights will have 
their licences suspended or even cancelled.

As a result of the inspections, 434 Section 47 statutory notices, or notices of intention to cancel rights, were issued to rights holders 
who have failed to commence with prospecting activities within the legislated 120 days. The reason given was generally the lack of 
access to  nancial resources needed to commence with prospecting activities. In the diamond sector, we have found rights holders 
who have been utilising prospecting rights to mine with/without section 20(2) of the MPRDA permissions with the intention of avoiding 
the implementation of social and labour plans.

A total of 713 Section 93 statutory orders were issued to rights holders who were found to be operating outside of their approved 
environmental management plans and prospecting work programmes; who did not review or make adequate  nancial provision to 
remedy environmental degradation; who had not submitted annual performance information; or who had not paid prospecting fees.

I had indicated the intention to reduce the time it takes to apply for prospecting rights as well as mining rights. Through the improvement 
of the system, this is now a reality. The system was inundated in the  rst few hours of going back online, and we continue to learn 
and improve it to make it easier for potential investors to take part in our mining industry.

I have also been humbled by the spirit of trust we have engendered among our key partners, labour and organised business, with 
whom we spent countless hours in meetings sharing our expertise in order to enhance the industry and the role it plays in our 
economy.

With our Mining Industry Growth, Development and Employment Task Team (MIGDETT) partners, we engaged in international 
roadshows and presented one voice to sometimes sceptical investors who had heard unfavourable stories about our business model. 
I am pleased to report that even though it was an uphill battle we managed to give a healthy picture of the opportunities and bene  ts 
of doing business in this country and that the seeds we planted found some fertile ground. 

Minister Susan Shabangu
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MINISTER’S STATEMENT

We believe that the Department continues to create an enabling environment for our country to take advantage of the commodities 
boom currently underway. 

One of the other notable achievements for the Department was the development and ultimate endorsement of the bene  ciation 
strategy by Cabinet. The strategy provides a framework for the orderly development of the country’s mineral value chain. This strategy 
will support the New Growth Path and National Industrialisation Policy Framework, both of which seek to put the country on a 
production-based, labour-absorptive growth trajectory.

Other critical areas that remain high on the agenda include the mining sector strategy, the migration of the state-owned mining 
company into DMR and the  nalisation of the strategy to deal with small-scale miners.

We have given an undertaking to improve the construct of the MPRDA and other legislation within our ambit. While these pieces of 
legislation are robust, the principal Act has presented areas of ambiguity which have led to different interpretations. The objectives of 
the amendment are to improve the current construct of the Act to remove ambiguities, make provision for a comprehensive consultation 
process, make provision for enhanced punitive measures, streamline the licensing processes and provide for a single regulatory 
authority.  

Parallel to the strategy adoption process, work has began on developing a steel value chain intervention plan that will mitigate the 
value chain speci  c and cross cutting constraints identi  ed in the strategy.

Work on rehabilitation of ownerless and derelict mines continues unabated. These mines pose signi  cant environmental, health 
and safety risks to neighbouring communities, as they, among other things, pollute ground and river water systems. The primary 
aim of rehabilitation is permanently to eliminate the environmental damage by restoring the land impacted by the mining activity to a 
sustainable usable condition. 

This includes the concept of minimising loss of land use capability and provides tangible bene  t to our society. The secondary aim is 
to return the disturbed area to an ecologically stable environment which is in equilibrium with its immediate surroundings and, to this 
end,  ve derelict and ownerless mine sites were rehabilitated in the 2010/11  nancial year. 

Turning to the issue of mine health and safety, I am still very gravely concerned about the continued carnage on our mines. It appears 
that most of these fatalities are related to increased production in the gold and platinum sectors which is being compounded by the 
lack of improvement in cases of TB, silicosis, as well as noise induced diseases.

Accordingly we are currently reviewing the Mine Health and Safety Act in order to strengthen enforcement of safety in our mines whilst 
removing any ambiguities.    

As we did this past year, we have set ourselves what many may consider steep targets for the  nancial year to come, but we believe 
they are attainable. 

Again, I would like to thank the team under the astute stewardship of Advocate Sandile Nogxina for their immense contribution to the 
attainment of the targets we had set for ourselves. The future looks bright because of their good work. 

This annual report is tabled for your consideration.

Ms Susan Shabangu, MP

Minister of Mineral Resources 
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It is my pleasure to present the Annual Report of the Department of Mineral Resources for the 2010/2011  nancial year.

The performance of the mining industry for the period 2010 demonstrated signi  cant recovery from the preceding implosion caused 

by the global economic and  nancial crisis. In this regard, the aggregated extraction rate grew at a phenomenal 5.8% relative to a 

contraction experienced in the preceding year. This performance con  rms our view that recovery is now well underway and that the 

next commodities boom has begun in earnest.

Simultaneously, employment in the mining industry shrunk by 5.1% in 2009, although in the same period employment of women 

grew by a staggering 11%. The employment of women in the sector started from a low base, indicating that efforts to diversify the 

workforce are beginning to bear fruit. In 2010, total employment grew by 1.2%, with women employment growing by a further 15.6%. 

Total employment in mining reached 498 055, falling marginally short of the threshold of half a million jobs. 

Employment in mining continued to grow during the year, and will continue to do so in the future, given the current interventions. 

These  are aimed at positioning this industry along a sustainable growth trajectory resulting in the further creation of decent jobs, in  

line with the national developmental priorities. These interventions include the development of a national mining sector strategy, the 

Bene  ciation Strategy as well as the revised Mining Charter. 

The management of derelict and ownerless mines is a key deliverable of the Department given the serious challenges that the 

ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

country is facing from such mines. An important milestone in the evolution of addressing this legacy has been the development 

and approval of a strategy for the rehabilitation of these derelict and ownerless mines.  This strategy makes provision for a policy 

framework for the management and amelioration of the negative environmental and health impact of these mines. 

This plan presents a programme of work to be undertaken on an annual basis with identi  ed activities which are buttressed by 

the funding requirements propelled by a clear risk pro  le.  Employing the limited  nancial resources available, the Department 

rehabilitated  ve sites during the 2010/11  nancial year, creating a total of 221 employment opportunities.  Ten sites have been 

prioritised for the next  nancial year and work is currently already underway to give priority to sites that are posing high risks to 

communities as well as those that are likely to have a negative impact on the surrounding ecosystems. 

Over and above the utilization of the funds allocated from the  scus, the Department is working towards concluding a strategic 

partnership agreement with the Department of Public Works. This will be executed through the Expanded Public Works Programme 

(EPWP) with a speci  c focus on the environment and the Culture Sector Incentive Programme.  This is being done in a bid to ensure 

that, as we eradicate the environmental blight, we simultaneously contribute to job creation as well as to tap into other  nancial 

resources that are available within the public sector to achieve the outcomes of this programme.

During the 2010/11  nancial year one of the objectives of the Department was to grant 27 mining rights to historically disadvantaged 

South Africans (HDSAs) and we eventually granted, to these groups, 117 mining rights. In the case of women-led entities, 30 rights 

were granted compared with the initial target of 18. 32 MPRDA workshops were held, against a planned target of 10, and this was 

done in order to engage and promote interaction with stakeholders which assisted in promoting the objective of the MPRDA.

South African Mineral Resources Administration System (SAMRAD)
The process of developing an integrated electronic system commenced during the 2010/11  nancial year. The system allows for the 

integrated management of information and has consequently improved the management of the administrative process underpinning 

our licensing regime. Due to the limitations of the National Mining Promotion System, a decision was consequently taken to expand 

the new electronic management system within the Department, starting with the Mineral Regulation branch. 

The mandate was for the Mineral Regulation Branch  rstly to develop a transparent online application system that makes it possible 

for the public to freely view the spatial locality of applications in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, 

“MPRDA” (Act 28 of 2002). This would enable applicants to check the status of their applications. Secondly the branch was to develop 

a system that eliminates the risk of spatial errors; and, thirdly, to ensure that uniform standards and procedures are implemented 

when processing applications. The system was developed and subsequently launched in the  rst half of 2011.
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ACCOUNTING OFFICER’S OVERVIEW

The Department conducted 189 Mining Charter compliance inspections against the initial target of 140. This was necessitated 

by the deliberate decision of the Department to shift the strategic focus to monitor the compliance of holders of rights. In the area 

of environmental management, the Branch conducted 3006 compliance inspections against the initial target of 1380. This  gure 

includes inspections that were conducted during the period of the moratorium.

During the year under review we recorded the lowest number of fatalities in the history of the mining industry. A total of 127 persons 

lost their lives compared to 168 of  the previous year. Although there has been marginal improvement, the Department is still 

concerned about the continued loss of life at our mines.

It is a matter of fact that there are more deaths in the mining industry as a result of occupational health diseases rather than 

occupational injuries. 

The Department will continue to take a hard stance against unsafe working conditions. Accordingly heads of these institutions will be 

engaged to ensure that appropriate steps are taken to improve safety in their operations. 

CONCLUSION

I would like to thank, most sincerely, all members of staff who have made an invaluable contribution to the excellent manner in which 

we have executed our responsibilities during the  nancial year covered by this report. We have no doubt that our efforts to improve 

the working conditions of our employees will continue to reward us as we face an exciting and yet challenging future.

Mr E Ragimana

Acting Director General
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PUBLICATIONS

Reviews
27th Edition of South Africa’s Mineral Industry (SAMI) 2009/2010• 

Information Circulars
MB Bulletin Trimester  Vol. 23 Issue 1 of 3 2010

    Vol. 23 Issue 2 of 3 2010

    Vol. 23 Issue 3 of 3 2010

Directories
D1/2011: Operating mines and quarries and mineral processing plants in the Republic of South Africa • 

D6/2010: Platinum-group metal mines in SA • 

D7/2010: SA diamond hand book and operating diamond mines directory• 

D11/2010: Producers of industrial mineral commodities in South Africa• 

D12/2010: Operating and developing Black Economic Empowerment mining companies • 

Statistics
Minerals - South Africa: Statistical Tables 1988 – 2009• 

Mineral Production and Sales Statistics (Monthly and Annually)• 

Bulletins/ Reports
R1/2010  Information on how to start a mine • 

R59/2010  An analysis of SA’s mining contribution to the national economy• 

R39/2009  Investment in a selection of South Africa’s mineral sector• 

R85/2010  Lime industry in South Africa• 

R86/2010  Chromium industry developments• 

R87/2010  Ceramic industry in South Africa• 

R88/2011  Overview of the cobalt industry in South Africa 2000-2009• 

R89/2010  Refractory clays industry in the Republic of South Africa• 
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 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

2.1 Overall Performance 

Appropriation
Main Appropriation
R’000

Adjusted Appropriation 
R’000

ActualAmount 
Spent 
R’000

Over/Under 
Expenditure
R’000

1,030,016 995,842 994,697 1,145

Responsible Minister Minister of Mineral Resources

Administering Department Department of Mineral Resources

Accounting Of  cer Director-General of Mineral Resources

2.1.2 Aim of the Vote

The aim of the Department of Mineral Resources is to promote and regulate the minerals and mining sector for transformation, growth 

and development and ensure that all South Africans derive sustainable bene  t from the country’s mineral wealth. 

2.1.3 Summary of Programmes

Programme 1: Administration
Purpose: Strategic support and management services to the ministry and department.

Programme 2: Promotion of Mine Safety and Health
Purpose: Ensure the safe mining of minerals under healthy working conditions. 

Programme 3: Mineral Regulation
Purpose: Regulate the minerals and mining sector to promote economic development, employment and ensure transformation and 

environmental compliance.

Programme 4: Mineral Policy and Promotion
Purpose: Develop relevant mineral policies that promote South Africa’s mining and minerals industry in order to attract investment.

2.1.4 Key Strategic objectives 

At the 2010/11 annual strategic planning session, the Department developed the following strategic objectives in support of the 

revised mission and vision. The session was also used to anchor the mission, vision and strategies to broad government imperatives 

of poverty eradication, transformation of our economy and society, social justice, reconstruction and development. 

1. Actively contribute to sustainable development - promote sustainable resource management and contribute to skills   

    development and the creation of meaningful and sustainable jobs.

2. Promote and transform the minerals sector 

 i. Promote and facilitate value addition to mineral resources extracted in the Republic.

 ii.Redress past imbalances through promoting investment, broader participation in the minerals sector, direct intervention  

 in communities, and increased BEE and SMME participation inclusive of women, youth and the disabled.

3. Regulate the minerals sector - developing new policies, reviewing of existing policies and amending legislation to make them  

    current to evolving an environment and achieving transformation in the minerals and mining industry.

2.1.1 Voted Funds (2010/11)

PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE: OVERALL PERFORMANCE 
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4. Promote health and safety in the minerals sector - provide clear policy and regulatory framework to manage health and   

    safety risks and promote best practice in the mining sector.

5. Protect the environment – promote the reduction of the impact of mining activities on the environment and public health             

    through management of rehabilitation of ownerless and derelict mines, research and development in mine environmental       

    management and development of mine environmental policies.

6. Ef  cient and effective service delivery - develop and review internal processes, understand stakeholder needs and improve     

    turn-around times.

7. Enhance DMR culture, systems and people - attract, develop and retain appropriate skills, promote good organisational   

    culture and make the Department an employer of choice.

8. Ensure long term  nancial stewardship – ensure optimal utilisation of resources, manage budges effectively, implement risk       

    management strategies and promote corporate governance.

2.1.5 Overview of the service delivery environment for 2010/11

Following the split of the Department of Minerals and Energy into two Departments, namely the Department of Mineral Resources and 

the Department of Energy, and the subsequent internal restructuring of the two departments, the Department of Mineral Resources is 

pleased to con  rm that the process went smoothly, with only minor challenges. All the line and support services functions have settled 

well and have established systems that have continued to align service delivery with the electoral mandate and strategic priorities.   

In January 2011, following the Cabinet Lekgotla, the President made a call to all national departments to  ll vacant funded posts by 

June 2011. The Department heeded the call and can safely con  rm that it has made signi  cant progress in this regard.

Mine Health and Safety 

The safety track record in the South African mining industry continues to be a matter of great concern to the Department, although 

the mining industry has in the last year managed to record a year-on-year reduction in fatalities due to mine accidents.  A total 

of 127 mine employees died in 2010, compared with 168 fatalities in 2009. Fall of Ground (FOG) accidents remains the largest 

accident category and the predominant cause of fatalities, followed by transportation and machinery categories respectively.

 Occupational health impacts are not immediate and hence dif  cult to quantify. Silicosis remains a major cause of premature 

retirement and death at South African mines, due to excessive dust exposure. On the other hand, tuberculosis (TB) continues to 

be a serious challenge for the mining industry and this is exacerbated by HIV and AIDS.  Noise Induced Hearing Loss (NIHL) is 

also a signi  cant health hazard due to exposure to high levels of noise in workplaces. 

Disaster-type Accidents
An underground  re was detected at Harmony’s, Phakisa Mine in the Free State and two proto teams were sent down to 

investigate.  An explosion took place in which three members of the proto teams were fatally injured and another two members 

subsequently died from their injuries.  During May 2010 a FOG accident killed three mineworkers at Simmer & Jack, #5 Shaft in 

the Stilfontein vicinity.  Another massive FOG was responsible for the death of  ve mineworkers at Aquarius, Marikana Mine close 

to Rustenburg.

HIV/AIDS and Occupational Health
A new Chief Directorate was established within the Inspectorate to focus on occupational health, as more people are dying from 

occupational diseases than from occupational injuries within the South African mining industry.  Silicosis is still of major concern, 

especially in the gold mining sector.  Research conducted through the Mine Health and Safety Council (MHSC) is focused on 

ways of reducing excessive exposure to silica dust to prevent silicosis.

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE

16



Annual Report 2010/11

Tuberculosis (TB) remains the main occupational health challenge within the South African mining industry.  This picture has not 

changed over many years and the situation has been aggravated by HIV-infections.  The Department has commissioned the 

National Institute of Occupational Health (NIOH) to conduct a study on HIV and TB in the mining industry in terms of prevalence 

and incidence. The  nal report has been completed and will be discussed during an HIV/TB Summit to be held during 2011. 

Mineral Regulation

On 31 August 2010, the Department, after having invited and considered representations from relevant stakeholders, imposed a 

moratorium under section 49(1) of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, on new applications for prospecting 

rights in terms of section 16 of the MPRDA, for a period of six months with effect from 1 September 2010 until 28 February 2011. 

This moratorium did not affect the processing of existing prospecting rights applications received before 01 September 2010, or 

the renewals thereof.

The primary objective of the moratorium was to allow the Department to: 

a) Conduct a thorough audit on all granted and issued prospecting rights to verify all prospecting activities per right through 

compliance inspections.

b) Audit how many of the 3507 applications for prospecting rights received and processed in fact graduated into impactful 

mining rights.

c) Conduct veri  cation on all prospecting rights that have lapsed, in order to ensure whether closure certi  cates were 

issued.

d) Clean up the backlog in respect of all applications on the system.

e) Clean up the National Mining Promotion System (NMPS) to ensure accuracy and reliability of information on the system, 

prior to its migration to SAMRAD.

f) Align the reduction of newly set timeframes with SAMSHA in order to comply with the MIDGETT commitments.

g) Align the above processes with the mining charter review process.

After a period of six months, the Department amended the initial moratorium period of six months to add another month in respect 

of eight regions, with the exception of the Mpumalanga Region. In respect of Mpumalanga Region, the moratorium was extended 

until 30 September 2011 in order to allow the Department to fully ful  l the objectives of the moratorium. 

Mineral Policy and Promotion

During the 2010/11  nancial year, two Directorates – the Mine Occupational Safety Policy and Mine Occupational Health Policy 

– were moved from the Mine Health and Safety Inspectorate to Mining and Mineral Policy Development. The move was intended 

to ensure that all policy development and related work is located within one section of the Department. 

The International Coordination Directorate also shifted from the Corporate Services Branch to the Mineral Policy And Promotion 

Branch during the latter part of the  nancial year. This move was designed to reinforce the promotional aspect of the Department 

in terms of encouraging investments from strategic countries that South Africa has established partnerships with.

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
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2.1.6 Key policy developments and legislative changes for the 2010/11  nancial year

Amendments of both the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act (MPRDA) and the Mine Health and Safety Act (MHSA) 

will be undertaken during  2011/12.

The review of the MPRDA seeks to improve the current construct of the Act, remove ambiguities, make provision for clarity for 

consultation processes, enhance punitive measures of the law and streamline the licensing processes including making provisions 

for the regulation of the environment in respect of minerals and mining.

The MHSA is being reviewed to strengthen enforcement provisions, simplify the administrative system for issuing of  nes, increase 

penalties for offences, substitute and remove ambiguities and effect certain amendments for consistency with the MPRDA.

A comprehensive assessment of the outcomes of the Mining Charter as reported in our previous annual report revealed a lack of 

compliance by the mining industry with the implementation of the objectives outlined therein. To overcome the inadequacies, the 

Mining Charter was subsequently amended and gazetted late last year. The mining industry will have to comply with the requirements 

of this document and the  rst compliance reports from mining companies following the Charter review are due at the end of June of 

the next reporting period.

We had reported the tabling of the Geoscience Amendment Bill Act, No. 16 of 2010 in our last report. This piece of legislation was 

assented to and signed by the President at the end of last year. 

Several strategies and guidelines relating to environmental management have been drafted and are awaiting approval. They will 

assist to streamline environmental management in the Department and place the Department in a more positive light with regard 

to clear environmental direction. These include the Mine Environmental management series which contains guidelines for EIAs, 

monitoring and closure as well as the regional mine Closure Strategies to provide guidance on the management of water at a regional 

scale in the different mining areas.

2.1.7 Departmental receipts and payments

DEPARTMENTAL 
RECEIPTS

2006/07 2007/08 2008/09 2009/10 2010/11 2010/11 Deviation 

Actual Actual Actual Actual Target Actual from Target

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000
Sales of goods and 
services

1,812 3,362 5,638 5,512 2,739  2,167  -571 

Transfers received  466,511                  -                -             -                -                -                 - 

Fines, penalties, forfeits 458 218 112  382  470 531 61 

Interests, dividends, 
rent

88,515 244,126 256,089 210,791  95,055 26,978 -65,256 

Financial transactions  242 20,599 2,808 459  769  626 -143 

TOTALS 657,538 268,305 264,647 217,144 99,033 30,302 68,731

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
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Name of Institution Amount Transferred R'000

Council for Mineral Technology (MINTEK)              165,840 

Council for Geoscience (CGS)              136,505 

Mine Health and Safety Council (MHSC)               5,358 

South African Diamond and Precious Metals Regulator (SADPMR)               40,643 

Totals              348,346 

MTEF transfers to the state owned entities (SOEs) reporting to the Minister of Mineral Resources:

Other transfers to SOE’S reporting to the Minister of Mineral Resources:

Name of Institution Reason for Transfer
Amount Transferred 
R'000

Industrial Development Corporation of South Africa Small Scale Mining         23,609 

Council for Mineral Technology (MINTEK)
Rehabilitation of Ownerless and 
Derelict Mines

        30,000 

Council for Geoscience (CGS)
Implementation of the Water Ingress 
programme

        32,671 

Totals         86,280 

Transfers to other organisations:

Name of Institution Project Amount Transferred R'000

Grootvlei Proprietary Mines            3,000 

Totals           3,000 

2.1.9 Transfer Payments 

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE
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The activities of the Department of Mineral Resources are organised in the following programmes:

Programme 1:  Administration

Programme 2:  Promotion of Mine Health and Safety

Programme 3:  Mineral Regulation

Programme 4:  Mineral Policy and Promotion

  2.2 Programme Performance

 PROGRAMME PERFORMANCE 
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PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION 
Purpose: To enable the Department to deliver on its mandate by providing strategic support management services and administrative 

support to the Ministry and the Department of Mineral Resources.

Corporate Services Branch
Headed by the Deputy Director-General: Corporate Services, the Branch consists of  ve Chief Directorates:

 Human Resources Management;• 

Communication and International Co-ordination;• 

Special Projects and Programmes;• 

Strategy, Risk and Monitoring; and• 

The Ministry (administrative support).• 

Service Delivery:  Achievements, Objectives and Indicators
The President’s announcement of the split of the Department of Minerals and Energy into two independent departments came soon 

after the  nalisation of the DME’s 2010/11 strategic plan. Among the decisions taken were the restructuring of Corporate Services and 

the repositioning of Human Resources as a priority focus area to address capacity challenges accumulated over a number of years 

as the size of the Department increased. The government-wide restructuring process focused on the use of internal resources and 

used minimal internal capacity to restructure and reposition these critical functions.

Some of the planned projects were put on hold until the  nalisation of the split (as indicated in the tables below). By the end of the 

2010/11  nancial year, the split of the Department of Minerals and Energy into two independent departments, namely the Department 

of Energy and the Department of Mineral Resources, had been completed. The two new departments became operational on 1 April 

2010, each with its own budget, budget vote, personnel and accommodation. In light of the above, Corporate Services has managed 

the transition fairly well with only minor hiccups.  All systems that were put in place have had a positive impact in the smooth running 

of the Department.

i Chief Directorate: Human Resource Management Services 
The Chief Directorate: HRM services is responsible for rendering a management support service to the Department. It provides 

services relating to organisational development, human resource planning and policy, human resource administration and 

practices, human resource development as well as employee relations management to line function components.  The CD: HRM 

services’ primary focus is on capacity building with the view to ensuring alignment between the Departmental service delivery 

imperatives and its new mandates and strategic priorities.  

Organisational Development
The main purpose of this Directorate is to provide a comprehensive organisational development service to the Department. 

The Directorate has successfully managed change that resulted from the split of the former Department of Minerals and 

Energy. The Directorate has also successfully  nalised the re-alignment of the organisational structure project for all line 

function branches. With regards to job evaluation, out of the six branches of the Department, job evaluations for three 

branches have been  nalised.  

Human Resource Planning and Policy
This is a newly created Directorate resulting from the restructuring and repositioning of the Directorate: Human Resources 

in the Department. The focus of this Directorate is to manage all the human resource related activities, including human 

resource planning, systems, functions, branding, marketing and policies within the Department. In this regard the Directorate 

developed an Integrated Human Resource Plan as well as the Employment Equity Plan for the Department. 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION
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Human Resource Administration and Practices
The main purpose of this Directorate is to manage relationships with mineral resources business unit’s partners on human 

resources matters and administration. This entails recruitment and selection, facilitating competency-based assessments and 

individual performance evaluations through the Performance Management and Development System (PMDS), managing 

service conditions and the implementation of Policy and Procedure Incapacity Leave and Ill-health Retirement (PILIR). 

Following the Department split, considerable effort was applied to match and place all employees into the new structures. In 

addition, the performance bonuses and pay progressions for all staff below SMS level were implemented during the second 

quarter of the 2010/11  nancial year. 

Human Resource Development
The mandate of the Human Resource Development Directorate in terms of the Skills Development Act (SDA), the National 

Human Resource Development Strategy (NHRDS), the National Skills Development Strategy (NSDS) and the Departmental 

HRD Implementation Plan is to address skills challenges through training  and development programmes that can ensure that 

there is a supply of employees with the required skills set (i.e. scarce/critical skills), to meet the Departmental strategic needs 

as well as the needs of the South Africa economy. This is essential in ensuring that the economy as a whole achieves improved 

performance to enhance service delivery.

To deliver on its mandate, the Directorate is responsible for the development and implementation of the Departmental HRD 

strategy and Workplace Skills Plan.

Highlights in this regard included a number of generic and technical programmes, ranging from mass inductions, middle 

management development, executive development programme, and government certi  cate of competency (GCC). The 

Directorate also successfully administered the bursary schemes (both internally and externally focused), international 

sponsorships as well as internship and learnership programmes for Mineral Policy and Promotion, Mineral Regulation and 

Mine Health and Safety. 

The challenges facing the Directorate include the shortfall on operational budget allocated and an inability to retain staff due to 

the high salary packages offered by the mining industry. In order to source funding to meet the budget shortfall, the Department 

has entered into a memorandum of understanding with the Mining Quali  cation Authority, and the MQA has agreed to fund 60 

bursaries and 10 learnerships / internships. 

Employee Relations Management
This is also a newly created Directorate aimed at managing employee relations, collective bargaining and employee wellness. 

The Directorate was able to establish a Departmental Bargaining Chamber within the prescribed timeframe. In addition, the 

employment relations sub-directorate  nalised all disciplinary and grievance cases within the prescribed timeframes. Three 

arbitrations were handled, with two cases being ruled in favour of the Department, while one is still with the Labour Court. 

In terms of wellness,  u vaccination and health risk assessments were carried out in all regional of  ces.

Security Risk Management
The main purpose of this Directorate is to ensure effective security risk management services, the focus being on vetting 

and security operations. The main achievement of the Directorate was the full implementation and functionality of the Vetting 

strategy in the Department. Ninety percent (90%) of EXCO members have been security cleared, with the other 10% still in 

progress at the time of reporting.

The Directorate also observed a decline in the number of security breaches since the beginning of the  nancial year with only 

one case reported as opposed to six reported in the previous year.

Legal Services
The Directorate: Legal Services focuses on ensuring the provision of professional legal support and advisory services to the 

Ministry and the Department. 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION
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Legal Services provides the Department with comprehensive legal support services, including legal opinions and advice, 

assistance with legal drafting, litigation, and assisting with and monitoring the implementation of the Promotion of Access to 

Information Act (PAIA), No. 2 of 2000 and the Promotion of Administrative Justice Act, No. 3 of 2000.  The Directorate also assists 

in the determination of culpability of of  cials in cases of lost or damaged property, assists the Minister in handling appeals against 

the Department’s administrative decisions, and facilitates the signing of international agreements between the Department and 

third parties.

Chief Directorate: Communication and International Co-ordination
The objective of the Chief Directorate: Communications is to develop, implement and manage communication strategies for the 

Department for both internal and external stakeholders, including the media. Its core mandate entails rendering ef  cient and 

effective communication services in line with the DMR’s mandate, mission, vision and values, whilst bearing in mind the context 

and environment of the mining industry. The role of the Directorate is critical to the success of the Department. 

Working in tandem with all senior managers, the Directorate leads the Department’s communication effort in support of the overall 

objectives of the Department. It is also charged with supporting  the Minister, Deputy Minister, Director-General and line function 

branches in media management, branding, marketing, public relations, internal communications, publications services, library and 

knowledge management services, and switchboard and reception services. 

Since the split of the DME, the Chief Directorate has embarked on a project of restructuring the Directorate: Communications 

to ensure that it is appropriately capacitated to provide communications services. The restructuring will further consolidate the 

unit and reasserts communication as central to all of DMR’s programmes and policies. Such an approach will also apply to 

international communication and the marketing of the Department abroad. 

Communication objectives 
The Department‘s communication is driven by the need to:

Pro  le the Minister and Deputy Minister and promote the vision, mission, objectives, policies and programmes of the • 
Department;

Sustain public con  dence in government‘s ability to deliver on its mandate through the Department’s programmes;• 

Build the reputation and brand of the Department;• 

Demonstrate how the Department is contributing to government ‘s priorities, including the creation of decent jobs and • 
sustainable communities through mining regulatory interventions;

Help  the mining industry to understand the Department‘s policies and programmes, especially as they relate to transformation • 
and promoting local bene  ciation of raw materials;

Communicate South Africa’s mining legislative and regulatory framework, including licensing processes;• 

Translate the vision of a government that cares and is in touch with people through visible and tangible community • 
interaction;

Market South Africa and the mining industry abroad and build consensus on South Africa’s reputation as a viable destination • 
for foreign investment;

Build the Department’s capacity to communicate coherently and effectively with all stakeholders; and• 

Develop appropriate and ethical networks and relationships with stakeholders that could enhance the image of the • 
Department. 

Presidential Hotline 
The Chief Directorate: Communications also hosts the function of public liaison services, dealing with Presidential Hotline queries 

received that are applicable to the Department. The queries or suggestions that have relevance to the Department are received 

at the Chief Directorate, and are then disseminated through the Department. All the responses received are also returned to the 

Presidency by end of March 2011 the Department had a 99% success rate in resolving Presidential Hotline queries. 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION
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International Co-Ordination 
The international Co-Ordination Directorate participated in a number of forums and meetings to advance the DMR agenda in the 

Mining and Minerals sector. 

International Agreements
The department started the process of reviewing all international agreements signed by end of March 2011 to determine the status, 

validity and alignment of these agreements with the country’s strategic objectives and to guide future agreements. Forging relations 

with different countries is a dynamic process and has evolved since the attainment of democracy in 1994. National interests will al-

ways determine the social, political and economic developmental strategic milieu for our interaction with foreign nations. 

During the forthcoming  nancial year, we will  nalise this process and ensure that our plans of foreign engagement are aligned with 

national needs, including the conclusion of a number of bilateral agreements and establishing new strategic relationships within 

the mining industry. The evaluation of these agreements ensured the promotion of the Department’s agenda in multilateral fora and 

through bilateral relations and structured bilateral meetings. 

Chief Directorate: Special Projects and Programmes
The Chief Directorate: Special Projects is tasked with the implementation of transformation imperatives of vulnerable groups and 

disadvantaged communities. The Department’s strategy in this regard is to mainstream gender and youth empowerment and 

facilitate the participation of these groups and communities through sector groups and outreach programmes.

During the year under review the Chief Directorate implemented its outreach programmes in four provinces, namely Gauteng, 

Limpopo, Eastern Cape and KwaZulu Natal. Information sessions were presented that offered career guidance to encourage 

learners to pursue careers in the mining related  elds. These programmes are undertaken in partnership with mining stakeholders. 

The Chief Directorate also provided targeted institutions with computers and furniture as a contribution towards education and 

community development. 

During the 2010 Women’s Month the Minister hosted a “Women in Mining” Ingxoxo (dialogue) with the view of addressing 

challenges experienced by women in mining. The mining Ingxoxo was attended by more than 300 women who are involved in 

mining as owners, shareholders, executives or similar positions.  During the Ingxoxo, the Minister made a call to established 

mining houses to pledge their support to adopt girl learners and provide bursaries to study towards mining and related  elds.  To 

date, 17 girl learners will be enrolled at various tertiary institutions for the 2012 academic year through the contributions of private 

sector companies who have pledged their support to the initiative.

A successful Mandela Day was hosted by supporting a retirement home in Vosloorus.  Food, blankets and other necessities were 

provided to the centre, including the renovating of two houses for the elderly in the area.  The Chief Directorate also hosted a 

successful event for 16 days of activism against women abuse in Rustenburg.

Following a bilateral agreement between the South African and Chinese governments in 2006, the Department entered into an 

agreement with Michael Diamond Company to train young South African women in bene  ciation in China. The Special Projects 

and Bene  ciation Components facilitated the selection and travel arrangements of the selected young women to be trained in 

jewellery making.

Some of these young women have since come together and established a jewellery company namely, Umtha Welanga Jewellers 

which was launched on 4 March 2011. 

Chief Directorate: Strategy, Risk and Monitoring (the Compliance Of  ce)
This Chief Directorate is the Department’s focal point on corporate governance and is responsible for co-ordinating strategic 

planning, risk management, fraud prevention, quarterly and annual reporting, and compliance monitoring (by the Department 

and its public entities). It exercises oversight, in conjunction with line function branches, of the activities of state-owned entities 

iii
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reporting to the Ministers of Mineral Resources.

The Minister tabled the 2009/10 Annual Report of the Department and its state-owned entities, as well as its 2010–2013 Strategic 

Plan, in Parliament on time. This of  ce and the state-owned entities have ensured compliance with the administrative,  nancial and 

legal requirements of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations, founding Acts of the respective entities and the Companies’ Act (where 

applicable). 

A Service Delivery Improvement Plan was developed as required by the Public Service Regulations and in line with the Cabinet 

decision to revitalise Batho Pele.  The plan was submitted to DPSA and implemented with effect from 1 April 2010.

Corporate Governance
State-owned entities reporting to the Minister of Mineral Resources are governed by, inter alia:

i) the Public Finance Management Act, government’s broader strategy to improve  nancial management and governance in 

the public sector;

ii) the Protocol on Corporate Governance in the Public Sector, government’s guideline on how state-owned entities need to  

implement corporate governance; and

iii) the King III Report on Corporate Governance for South Africa.

Corporate governance is integral to creating an environment of good conduct, improved internal controls, risk    

management  and better corporate culture. 

The Boards of the individual entities have the responsibility to set strategic direction that is aligned with that of the                  

Department, oversee and guide the entity and instil good governance. Transparency of conduct ensures that the Minister   

as shareholder can hold the Boards to account.

The public entities’ annual strategic plans, business plans, shareholder compacts and their budget proposals were reviewed and 

approved by the Minister.  Delays in the approval of some of the documentation were due to ongoing discussions between the 

Department and the entities concerned to ensure strategic alignment with government priorities.

* The legend below guides the interpretation of all performance information tables

BELOW PLAN 

MEETING OR  EXCEEDING THE PLAN

PARTIALLY ACHIEVED

NOT YET DUE

26



Annual Report 2010/11

PR
O

G
R

A
M

M
E 

1:
 C

O
R

PO
R

AT
E 

SE
R

VI
C

ES

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

C
on

tri
bu

te
 to

 S
ki

lls
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t

N
um

be
r c

ar
ee

r 
gu

id
an

ce
 a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
un

de
rta

ke
n

3
2

1
G

A
ch

ie
ve

d:
 V

er
i 

ca
tio

n 
so

ur
ce

: M
am

el
od

i 
ca

re
er

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
(a

tte
nd

an
ce

 
re

gi
st

er
), 

Le
ar

ne
rs

 F
oc

us
 W

ee
k 

(r
ep

or
t, 

D
V

D
) E

sh
ow

e 
C

ar
ee

r G
ui

da
nc

e 
(a

tte
nd

an
ce

 re
gi

st
er

, r
ep

or
t)

 

N
um

be
r o

f s
ki

lls
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

in
iti

at
iv

es
17

5
12

G

A
ch

ie
ve

d:
 T

he
re

 w
er

e 
be

tte
r d

on
at

io
ns

 
th

an
 w

ha
t w

as
 e

xp
ec

te
d.

 V
er

i 
ca

tio
n 

so
ur

ce
: L

et
te

rs
 o

f c
om

m
itm

en
t 

fro
m

 m
in

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
. 1

7 
B

ur
sa

rie
s 

se
cu

re
d 

fo
r L

ea
rn

er
s 

do
na

te
d 

by
 m

in
in

g 
co

m
pa

ni
es

.

 

D
ev

el
op

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip

A
nn

ua
l s

ub
m

is
si

on
 

of
 M

in
er

al
 

R
es

ou
rc

es
 p

rio
rit

ie
s 

to
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

 In
te

rn
at

io
na

l 
R

el
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 
C

oo
pe

ra
tio

n

0
1

-1
R

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d:
 P

rio
rit

y 
co

un
tri

es
 

id
en

ti
 e

d 
bu

t n
ot

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 to

 D
IR

C
O

.
Li

ai
se

 w
ith

 D
IR

C
O

 a
s 

to
 m

od
al

iti
es

 o
f 

id
en

tif
yi

ng
 a

nc
ho

r s
ta

te
s.

A
pp

ro
ve

d 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l r

el
at

io
ns

 
st

ra
te

gy
0

1
-1

R
N

ot
 a

ch
ie

ve
d:

 S
tra

te
gy

 n
ee

ds
 to

 
be

 in
co

rp
or

at
ed

 in
to

 th
e 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

pr
om

ot
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
.

In
ve

st
m

en
t p

ro
m

ot
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
 to

 b
e 

ap
pr

ov
ed

 
in

 2
01

1/
12

.

N
um

be
r o

f b
ila

te
ra

l 
an

d 
m

ul
til

at
er

al
 

ag
re

em
en

ts
 re

vi
ew

ed
0

3
-3

R
N

ot
 a

ch
ie

ve
d.

  P
ar

tia
l h

um
an

 re
so

ur
ce

 
ca

pa
ci

ty
 d

ue
 to

 s
pl

it 
of

 th
e 

D
M

E
.

H
um

an
 c

ap
ac

ity
 h

as
 b

ee
n 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 A

ll 
M

in
er

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 s
pe

ci
 c

 a
gr

ee
m

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 2
01

1/
12

. 

D
riv

e 
Tr

an
sf

or
m

at
io

n 
P

ol
ic

ie
s

Yo
ut

h 
in

 m
in

in
g 

se
ct

or
 

st
ra

te
gy

1
1

0
G

Ta
rg

et
 o

f s
ec

ur
in

g 
bu

y 
in

 s
ec

ur
ed

, 
N

Y
D

A
.

To
 o

bt
ai

n 
bu

y 
in

 fr
om

 th
e 

M
in

is
te

r a
nd

 
K

E
X

C
O

. 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

27



Department of Mineral Resources

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

E
du

ca
te

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

w
ith

 
S

ta
ke

ho
ld

er
s

%
 o

f p
re

si
de

nt
ia

l 
ho

tli
ne

 q
ue

rie
s 

pr
oc

es
se

d
86

90
-4

Y

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

so
ur

ce
: W

ee
kl

y 
ho

tli
ne

 
re

po
rts

, R
eg

io
na

l o
f 

ce
s 

do
 n

ot
 re

sp
on

d 
on

 ti
m

e,
 c

al
ls

 re
m

ai
n 

op
en

 fo
r l

on
ge

r t
ha

n 
an

tic
ip

at
ed

 p
er

io
ds

. I
nv

es
tig

at
io

ns
 o

fte
n 

ne
ed

 to
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 o
n 

si
te

, w
hi

le
 th

es
e 

m
in

es
 a

re
 n

ot
 a

lw
ay

s 
in

 th
e 

ne
ar

 v
ic

in
ity

 o
f 

th
e 

R
eg

io
na

l o
f 

ce
s.

To
 im

pr
ov

e 
th

e 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

, 
 rs

tly
 th

e 
R

eg
io

na
l 

O
f 

ce
s 

to
 re

ga
rd

 P
re

si
de

nt
io

al
 H

ot
lin

e 
ca

lls
 w

ith
 

th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
ur

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
se

co
nd

ly
 th

e 
C

hi
ef

 
D

ire
ct

or
s.

M
in

er
al

 R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

sh
ou

ld
 b

ec
om

e 
m

or
e 

ac
tiv

el
y 

in
vo

lv
ed

 a
nd

 a
pp

ro
ve

 th
e 

cl
os

ur
e 

of
 c

al
ls

 a
s 

pe
r t

he
 a

m
en

de
d 

in
te

rn
al

 p
ro

ce
du

re
s.

A
pp

ro
ve

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
st

ra
te

gy
1

1
0

G
Ve

ri
 c

at
io

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 A

pp
ro

ve
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 a
nd

 E
X

C
O

 
M

in
ut

es
.

 

N
um

be
r o

f m
ed

ia
 

br
ie

 n
gs

10
4

6
G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

so
ur

ce
: M

ed
ia

 s
ta

te
m

en
ts

, 
m

ed
ia

 c
ov

er
ag

e,
 m

ed
ia

 re
le

as
es

 ,m
ed

ia
 

ad
vi

so
ry

 , 
m

ed
ia

 re
gi

st
ra

tio
n 

lis
t. 

M
ed

ia
 

an
d 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r b

rie
 n

g 
he

ld
 to

 u
pd

at
e 

on
 th

e 
M

on
at

or
iu

m
 a

t S
he

ra
to

n 
H

ot
el

, 
m

ed
ia

 b
rie

 n
g 

he
ld

 to
 a

nn
ou

nc
e 

th
e 

ne
w

 
lic

en
si

ng
 s

ys
te

m
, m

ed
ia

 b
rie

 n
g 

at
 th

e 
M

in
in

g 
In

da
ba

, b
rie

 n
g 

on
 th

e 
lif

tin
g 

of
 

th
e 

m
or

at
or

iu
m

 a
nd

 la
un

ch
 o

f t
he

 n
ew

 
lic

en
si

ng
 s

ys
te

m
.  

 

N
um

be
r o

f s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

ts
 h

el
d

7
4

3
G

Th
ro

ug
h 

M
IG

D
E

TT
 th

e 
de

pa
rtm

en
t m

ee
ts

 
w

ith
 a

ll 
its

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 V

er
i 

ca
tio

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 M

IG
D

E
TT

 M
in

ut
es

, D
M

R
/M

er
ill

 
Ly

nc
h 

R
ou

nd
ta

bl
e,

 M
in

in
g 

In
da

ba
. 

 

N
um

be
r o

f t
ar

ge
te

d 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
on

 
st

ra
te

gi
es

 a
nd

 p
la

ns
 

de
ve

lo
pe

d

11
3

8
G

A
ll 

ev
en

ts
 h

os
te

d 
m

ed
ia

 p
la

ns
 w

he
re

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  V
er

i 
ca

tio
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 M
IG

D
E

TT
 M

in
ut

es
., 

In
gx

ox
o 

w
om

en
 in

 m
in

in
g,

 A
D

PA
, M

an
de

la
 D

ay
 

ce
le

br
at

io
n,

 C
ar

ee
r g

ui
da

nc
e 

aw
ar

en
es

s,
 

16
 D

ay
 o

f A
ct

iv
is

m
 a

ga
in

st
 th

e 
ab

us
e 

of
 w

om
en

 a
nd

 c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 m
in

in
g 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

, N
om

bu
so

, M
ot

lo
tlo

.

 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

28



Annual Report 2010/11

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

E
nh

an
ce

 
aw

ar
en

es
s 

of
 D

M
R

nu
m

be
r o

f c
us

to
m

er
 

se
rv

ic
e 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
 c

on
du

ct
ed

0
1

-1
R

Th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t w
as

 in
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 

G
C

IS
.

S
ur

ve
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 2

01
1/

20
12

. 

N
um

be
r o

f h
its

 o
n 

th
e 

D
M

R
 w

eb
si

te
37

27
6

10
00

36
27

6
G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

so
ur

ce
: I

T 
hi

t c
ou

nt
er

 re
po

rt.
 

N
um

be
r o

f i
nt

er
na

l a
nd

 
ex

te
rn

al
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r a
nd

 
pr

om
ot

io
na

l m
at

er
ia

l 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r D

M
R

11
6

5
G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

so
ur

ce
s:

 F
lip

pe
r B

an
ne

rs
, 

M
on

th
ly

 P
la

nn
er

 B
oa

rd
s,

 S
hu

tte
r f

ra
m

es
, 

P
rin

te
d 

an
d 

fra
m

ed
 p

rin
ci

pa
l p

ho
to

s,
 

M
on

th
ly

 P
la

nn
er

, P
or

t E
liz

ab
et

h 
B

ra
nd

in
g,

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f p
ro

m
ot

io
na

l f
or

 K
ZN

 
of

 c
e,

 P
ic

tu
re

s 
fo

r E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
fo

r t
he

 C
ap

e 
To

w
n 

D
M

R
 p

ar
lia

m
en

ta
ry

 
of

 c
es

, I
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
po

st
er

s 
co

nt
ai

ni
ng

 th
e 

D
M

R
, m

is
si

on
, v

is
io

n 
an

d 
co

nt
ac

t d
et

ai
ls

 
of

 a
ll 

re
gi

on
al

 o
f 

ce
s 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
O

f 
ce

 
w

as
 d

es
ig

ne
d,

 p
rin

te
d 

an
d 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
, 

si
gn

ag
e 

an
d 

C
I o

f t
he

 H
ea

d 
O

f 
ce

 w
as

 
do

ne
. V

er
i 

ca
tio

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 P

os
te

rs
 a

nd
 

in
sp

ec
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

. 

 

N
um

be
r o

f p
re

ss
 a

le
rts

/
re

le
as

es
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d
34

10
24

G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

S
ou

rc
es

: M
cC

lo
sk

ey
 S

ou
th

 
A

fri
ca

n 
C

oa
l E

xp
or

ts
 C

on
fe

re
nc

e,
 D

M
R

 
re

je
ct

s 
S

is
he

n 
ca

se
 o

n 
03

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
20

11
, M

in
in

g 
In

da
ba

, M
in

is
te

r l
au

nc
he

d 
B

ur
ns

to
ne

 m
in

e,
 B

al
fo

ur
, P

re
si

de
nt

 
la

un
ch

es
 s

ta
te

 o
w

ne
d 

m
in

in
g 

co
m

pa
ny

, 
M

in
is

te
r e

xt
en

de
d 

M
or

at
or

iu
m

 fo
r n

ew
 

pr
os

pe
ct

in
g 

 ri
gh

ts
. S

ta
te

m
en

t o
f t

he
 

D
M

R
 re

sp
on

di
ng

 a
f 

da
vi

t o
n 

th
e 

S
is

he
n 

ca
se

 m
ed

ia
 s

ta
te

m
en

t o
n 

th
e 

up
da

te
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

nc
tio

na
lit

y 
of

 th
e 

S
A

M
R

A
D

 s
ys

te
m

, 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
th

e 
m

or
at

or
iu

m
 o

n 
ne

w
 

fra
ck

in
g 

lic
en

se
s.

 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ub

lis
he

d 
ar

tic
le

s/
br

oa
dc

as
t

29
72

12
00

17
72

G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

so
ur

ce
s:

 D
M

R
 a

nd
 G

C
IS

 
m

ed
ia

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
cl

ip
pi

ng
s 

an
d 

sy
st

em
 

ge
ne

ra
te

d 
ou

tc
om

e.
 U

nd
er

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
ta

rg
et

 in
cl

ud
ed

 b
ot

h 
D

M
R

 
an

d 
M

ed
ia

 a
rti

cl
es

.

Ta
rg

et
 fo

r 2
01

1/
20

12
 w

ill
 b

e 
ba

se
d 

on
 D

M
R

 
in

iti
at

ed
 a

rti
cl

es
. 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

29



Department of Mineral Resources

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

G
re

at
er

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 D

M
R

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
an

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es

O
pi

ni
on

 p
ie

ce
s 

pl
ac

ed
 

w
ith

 th
e 

m
ed

ia
6

1
5

G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 M
ed

ia
 C

lip
pi

ng
s 

of
 a

rti
cl

es
 p

la
ce

d 
in

 th
e 

C
ity

 P
re

ss
 a

nd
 

S
un

da
y 

Ti
m

es
 a

bo
ut

  S
A

M
D

A 
an

d 
th

e 
R

eg
ul

at
or

y 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 

P
ro

m
ot

e 
S

oc
ia

l a
nd

 
La

bo
ur

 p
la

n

N
um

be
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

4
5

-1
Y

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d.
 V

er
i 

ca
tio

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 

R
ep

or
ts

, a
tte

nd
an

ce
 re

gi
st

er
 a

nd
 

ec
on

om
ic

 o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s 
fo

r p
os

t 
m

at
ric

ul
an

ts
 in

 E
sh

ow
e 

K
ZN

. A
tte

nd
an

ce
 

re
gi

st
er

s 
re

ga
rd

in
g 

pr
e-

di
sa

bl
ed

 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

n 
to

w
ar

ds
 th

e 
en

d 
of

 2
01

0 
in

 K
ZN

.  
Fo

llo
w

 u
p 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
n 

fo
r d

is
ab

le
d 

in
 B

en
e

 c
ia

tio
n 

w
ith

 
th

e 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
of

 M
in

te
k.

 R
ep

or
t a

nd
 

at
te

nd
an

ce
 re

gi
st

er
. M

am
el

od
i c

on
si

st
ed

 
of

 a
n 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
n 

fo
r M

ili
ta

ry
 

ve
te

ra
ns

.  
A

tte
nd

an
ce

 re
gi

st
er

.  

To
 fa

ci
lit

at
e 

th
e 

5t
h 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
n 

in
 J

un
e 

20
11

 o
n 

th
e 

ro
le

 o
f a

 C
o-

op
er

at
iv

es
 a

t E
ng

co
bo

 
on

 b
ric

k 
m

ak
in

g.

N
um

be
r o

f p
ro

je
ct

s 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
S

oc
ia

l a
nd

 la
bo

ur
 P

la
n 

to
 b

en
e

 t 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 
gr

ou
ps

 in
 m

in
in

g 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 m

on
ito

re
d

6
2

4
G

A
ch

ie
ve

d 
N

om
bu

so
 H

ig
h 

S
ch

oo
l 

re
po

rt 
(K

ZN
), 

S
ci

en
ce

 L
ab

or
at

or
y 

C
om

pu
te

rs
 a

nd
 F

ur
ni

tu
re

) U
m

th
at

ha
 

W
el

an
ga

 J
ew

el
le

ry
 p

ro
je

ct
, P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
fo

r t
he

 L
au

nc
h 

(G
au

te
ng

) M
of

ol
o 

H
om

e 
B

as
ed

 C
ar

e 
fo

r t
he

 d
is

ab
le

d 
(C

om
pu

te
rs

 
an

d 
Fu

rn
itu

re
) G

au
te

ng
. N

at
io

na
l P

ea
ce

 
A

cc
or

d 
Tr

us
t L

ab
ou

r s
en

di
ng

 a
re

a 
su

pp
or

te
d 

w
ith

 fu
rn

itu
re

 a
nd

 s
up

po
rt 

fo
r H

IV
- A

ID
S

 p
ro

je
ct

) K
ZN

 M
K

VA
 s

up
po

rt 
w

ith
 c

om
pu

te
rs

 fo
r s

ki
lls

 d
ev

el
op

m
en

t a
nd

 
fu

rn
itu

re
 tw

o 
re

va
m

pe
d 

ho
us

es
 fo

r t
he

 
el

de
rly

 in
 E

ku
rh

ul
en

i b
y 

A
ng

lo
 A

m
er

ic
an

 
(G

au
te

ng
). 

  

 

N
um

be
r o

f p
ro

je
ct

s 
im

pa
ct

in
g 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 in

sp
ec

te
d

0
14

0
-1

40
R

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d:
 D

ue
 to

 la
ck

 o
f c

ap
ac

ity
.

Th
is

 fu
nc

tio
n 

w
ill

 b
e 

ca
rr

ie
d 

by
 M

in
er

al
 

R
eg

ul
at

io
n 

go
in

g 
fo

rw
ar

d.

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

30



Annual Report 2010/11

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

S
us

ta
in

ab
le

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f a

ll 
vu

ln
er

ab
le

 g
ro

up
s

N
um

be
r o

f e
co

no
m

ic
 

pr
oj

ec
ts

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

in
 

se
ct

or
 g

ro
up

s
2

2
0

G

A
ch

ie
ve

d:
 V

er
i 

ca
tio

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 R

ep
or

t o
n 

br
ic

k 
m

ak
in

g 
pr

oj
ec

t a
t E

ng
co

bo
, E

as
te

rn
 

C
ap

e.
   

D
M

R
 w

ith
 th

e 
su

pp
or

t o
f X

st
ra

ta
 

fa
ci

lit
at

ed
 th

e 
as

si
st

an
ce

 o
f a

 Y
ou

th
 

C
om

pa
ny

 in
 id

en
tif

yi
ng

 a
 G

re
en

 F
ie

ld
 

m
in

e 
(V

en
to

na
) i

n 
M

pu
m

al
an

ga
 E

vi
de

nc
e:

 
C

om
pa

ny
 p

ro
 le

.  

 

A
ttr

ac
t a

nd
 R

et
ai

n 
S

ta
ff

%
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

H
R

D
 s

tra
te

gy
87

.5
50

37
.5

G
87

.5
%

 a
ch

ie
ve

d 
i.e

. 7
 o

ut
 o

f 8
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 im
pl

em
en

te
d.

 

%
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

Ta
le

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
S

tra
te

gy
0

20
-2

0
R

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 T

he
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

di
d 

no
t t

ak
e 

pl
ac

e 
be

ca
us

e 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 w

as
 

on
ly

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 d

ur
in

g 
20

10
/2

01
1 

 n
an

ci
al

 
ye

ar
.

Th
e 

S
tra

te
gy

 w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

du
rin

g 
th

e 
20

11
/2

01
2 

 n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 v

ac
an

cy
 

ra
te

0
1

-1
R

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d,
 M

or
e 

va
ca

nc
ie

s 
be

ca
us

e 
of

 
fu

nd
in

g 
of

 s
om

e 
of

 v
ac

an
ci

es
. 1

st
 Q

ua
rte

r 
16

%
, 2

nd
 Q

ua
rte

r 1
3%

, 3
rd

 Q
ua

rte
r 1

5%
 

an
d 

cu
rr

en
tly

 1
7%

.  

Fa
st

 tr
ac

ki
ng

  
lin

g 
of

 p
os

iti
on

s.
  

%
 re

du
ct

io
n 

S
ta

ff 
Tu

rn
ov

er
 ra

te
15

.9
1

14
.9

R
 N

ot
 a

ch
ie

ve
d:

 V
er

i 
ca

tio
n 

so
ur

ce
: P

er
sa

l 
R

ep
or

t

N
o 

co
m

pa
ra

tiv
e 

 g
ur

es
 fr

om
 2

00
9/

10
 b

ec
au

se
 

th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t w
as

 c
om

bi
ne

d 
w

ith
 D

ep
ar

tm
en

t 
of

  E
ne

rg
y.

Th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

t w
ill

 c
on

tin
ue

 to
 

m
on

ito
r t

he
 s

ta
ff 

tu
rn

ov
er

 ra
te

N
um

be
r o

f c
ar

ee
r/

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t i

ni
tia

tiv
es

 
(c

ar
ee

r o
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s,
 

sk
ill

s 
in

iti
at

iv
es

, e
tc

.) 
im

pl
em

en
te

d

6
6

0
G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 P
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 o

n 
D

M
R

 c
ar

ee
rs

, a
tte

nd
an

ce
 re

gi
st

er
s.

 
C

en
tra

l U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f T
ec

hn
ol

og
y,

 N
or

th
 

W
es

t U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 (P

ot
ch

es
tro

om
 C

am
pu

s)
, 

N
or

th
 W

es
t U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 (M
m

ab
at

ho
), 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 o

f L
im

po
po

, D
ur

ba
n 

U
ni

ve
rs

ity
 

of
 T

ec
hn

ol
og

y,
 U

ni
ve

rs
ity

 o
f K

w
aZ

ul
u 

N
at

al
 (D

ur
ba

n)
.  

 

Im
pr

ov
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
 

an
d 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

%
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

om
pl

et
ed

 th
e 

Le
ad

er
sh

ip
/

M
an

ag
em

en
t C

ou
rs

es

27
50

-2
3

Y
N

ot
 a

ch
ie

ve
d:

 2
7%

 is
 m

ad
e 

up
 o

f 2
0 

ou
t 

of
 7

5 
X

 1
00

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 th

e 
A

M
D

P.
  

E
D

P 
ha

s 
be

en
 im

pl
em

en
te

d 
in

 th
e 

la
st

 q
ua

rte
r o

f 
th

e 
20

10
/1

1 
 n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r a

nd
 o

ve
rla

ps
 in

to
 th

e 
20

11
/1

2 
 n

an
ci

al
 y

ea
r.

%
 re

tu
rn

 o
n 

in
ve

st
m

en
t 

on
 tr

ai
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t

0
0

0
B

 T
oo

l w
as

 n
ot

 d
ev

el
op

ed
 to

 c
al

cu
la

te
 

in
ve

st
m

en
t o

n 
tra

in
in

g 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
Tr

ai
ni

ng
 o

f M
an

ag
er

s 
w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 in
 

20
11

/2
01

2.

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

31



Department of Mineral Resources

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

P
ro

m
ot

e 
C

or
e 

Va
lu

es

N
um

be
r o

f c
lim

at
e 

su
rv

ey
s/

cl
ie

nt
 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

su
rv

ey
 

(fo
cu

si
ng

 o
n 

co
re

 
va

lu
es

)c
on

du
ct

ed
 

(In
te

rn
al

 a
nd

 E
xt

er
na

l)

0
1

-1
R

N
ot

 a
ch

ie
ve

d:
  T

he
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

t w
as

 in
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

w
ith

 G
C

IS
.

S
ur

ve
y 

w
ill

 b
e 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

in
 2

01
1/

12
.

N
um

be
r o

f C
or

e 
Va

lu
es

 
W

or
ks

ho
ps

 C
on

du
ct

ed
2

1
1

G
Ve

ri
 c

at
io

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 A

tte
nd

an
ce

 R
eg

is
te

r
 

N
um

be
r o

f S
er

vi
ce

 
D

el
iv

er
y 

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t 

P
la

ns
 D

ev
el

op
ed

1
1

0
G

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
P

la
n 

do
cu

m
en

t  
20

10
/2

01
1.

 

A
lig

n 
bu

dg
et

 to
 

st
ra

te
gy

%
 B

ud
ge

t A
lig

ne
d 

to
 

S
tra

te
gy

10
0

95
5

G
Th

e 
B

ud
ge

t i
s 

al
ig

ne
d 

to
 th

e 
S

tra
te

gy
. S

pe
nd

in
g 

P
la

ns
 c

om
pi

le
d.

  
 

E
ns

ur
e 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e

%
 e

xe
cu

tio
n 

of
 F

ra
ud

 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

an
d 

E
R

M
 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
pl

an
s

0
10

0
-1

00
R

R
is

k 
as

se
ss

m
en

t w
er

e 
pe

rfo
rm

ed
 a

nd
 

ris
k 

m
an

ag
em

en
t c

om
m

itt
ee

 m
et

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

. R
is

k 
ch

am
pi

on
 fo

ru
m

 w
as

 
co

ns
tit

ut
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

th
e 

ye
ar

.

R
is

k 
ch

am
pi

on
s 

w
ill

 a
ct

iv
el

y 
ad

dr
es

s 
ris

k 
tre

at
m

en
t a

ct
io

ns
 p

la
ns

 d
ur

in
g 

20
11

/1
2 

.

C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 P
FM

A
97

.5
10

0
-2

.5
G

A
ch

ie
ve

d:
Ve

ri
 c

at
io

n 
S

ou
rc

e:
 

C
om

pl
ia

nc
e 

C
er

ti
 c

at
e.

 F
eb

ru
ar

y 
pe

rio
d:

10
0%

+1
00

%
+1

00
+9

0%
/4

=9
7.

5,
 

C
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 P
S

A
10

0
10

0
0

G
Th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t i
s 

co
m

pl
ia

nt
 w

ith
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

ol
ic

ie
s:

  V
er

i 
ca

tio
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 
H

R
 P

ol
ic

ie
s.

 

N
um

be
r o

f r
ep

ea
t 

 n
di

ng
s 

on
 in

te
rn

al
 

au
di

t f
ol

lo
w

 u
p 

re
po

rt
8

0
8

G
O

ut
 o

f 1
2 

 n
di

ng
s 

8 
ha

ve
 n

ot
 b

ee
n 

im
pl

em
en

te
d.

  V
er

i 
ca

tio
n 

so
ur

ce
: 

In
te

rn
al

 A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

ts

E
nh

an
ce

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
m

ec
ha

ni
sm

s 
fo

r i
nt

er
na

l 
au

di
t 

 n
di

ng
s.

 T
o 

in
cl

ud
e 

in
te

rn
al

  
nd

in
gs

 a
s 

a 
st

an
di

ng
 it

em
 in

 th
e 

ag
en

da
 o

f M
an

ag
em

en
t 

m
ee

tin
gs

.

U
nq

ua
li

 e
d 

A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t
0

0
0

Y
P

ro
gr

es
s 

on
 u

nq
ua

li
 e

d 
au

di
t r

ep
or

t i
s 

pe
nd

in
g 

A
G

 re
po

rt
A

ny
 is

su
es

 a
ris

in
g 

fro
m

 th
e 

A
ud

it 
R

ep
or

t w
ill

 b
e 

ad
dr

es
se

d 
in

 th
e 

20
11

/1
2 

 n
an

ci
al

 y
ea

r.

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

32



Annual Report 2010/11

O
B

JE
C

TI
VE

M
EA

SU
R

E
A

C
TU

A
L

TA
R

G
ET

S
VA

R
IA

N
C

E
ST

AT
U

S
PE

R
FO

R
M

A
N

C
E 

C
O

M
M

EN
TS

R
EC

O
M

M
EN

D
AT

IO
N

M
an

ag
e 

co
st

 
ef

fe
ct

iv
el

y

%
 V

ar
ia

nc
e 

on
 

A
llo

ca
te

d 
B

ud
ge

t f
or

 
go

od
s 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
es

12
5

7
R

Ve
ri

 c
at

io
n 

S
ou

rc
e:

 B
ud

ge
t a

nd
 

E
xp

en
di

tu
re

 C
on

tro
l.,

 T
he

 b
ra

nc
h 

ha
s 

ov
er

sp
en

d 
on

 g
oo

ds
 a

nd
 s

er
vi

ce
s 

by
 3

7,
04

%
.  

A
pp

ro
pr

ia
tio

n 
w

as
 R

48
,9

10
 

m
ill

io
n 

ag
ai

ns
t A

ct
ua

l e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 o
f 

R
67

,0
25

 m
ill

io
n.

 

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
in

 
W

as
te

fu
l, 

fru
itl

es
s 

an
d 

irr
eg

ul
ar

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

71
60

11
G

Th
e 

to
ta

l w
as

te
fu

l, 
fru

itl
es

s 
an

d 
irr

eg
ul

ar
 e

xp
en

di
tu

re
 in

cu
rr

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
B

ra
nc

h 
w

as
 re

du
ce

d 
by

 R
48

2 
44

6.
70

 
w

hi
ch

 re
pr

es
en

ts
 7

1%
 o

f t
he

 p
re

vi
ou

s 
ye

ar
s 

to
ta

l o
f R

67
9 

41
6.

11
 to

 R
19

6 
96

9.
41

.

 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

33



Department of Mineral Resources

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

  S
ec

ur
ity

 R
is

k 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

K
EY

 
SE

R
VI

C
E

SE
R

VI
C

E 
B

EN
EF

IC
IA

RY
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
ST

A
N

D
A

R
D

D
ES

IR
ED

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 (2

01
0/

11
)

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

A
S 

AT
 3

1 
M

A
R

C
H

 2
O

10
/2

01
1

D
ev

el
op

 a
nd

 
im

pl
em

en
t 

P
hy

si
ca

l a
nd

 
In

te
lle

ct
ua

l R
is

k 
P

la
n

D
M

R
 p

er
so

nn
el

 a
nd

 
vi

si
to

rs

Q
ua

nt
ity

E
ns

ur
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 m
in

im
um

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

 S
ta

nd
ar

ds
 (M

IS
S

). 

P
hy

si
ca

l S
ec

ur
ity

 

P
er

so
nn

el
 S

ec
ur

ity

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
ec

ur
ity

Q
ua

nt
ity

S
ta

nd
ar

di
se

d 
se

cu
rit

y 
as

 
pe

r S
A

P
S

 a
nd

 N
IA

 s
ec

ur
ity

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

n

D
M

R
 s

ec
ur

ity
 w

as
 9

0%
 s

ta
nd

ar
di

se
d 

as
 p

er

S
A

P
S

 a
nd

 N
IA

 s
ec

ur
ity

 re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

. 

Th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

s 
re

pr
es

en
te

d 
by

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
M

an
ag

er
 a

t N
at

io
na

l D
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 S
ec

ur
ity

 
M

an
ag

er
s 

Fo
ru

m
. S

A
P

S
 a

nd
 S

S
A 

ar
e 

pa
rt 

of
 

th
e 

fo
ru

m
 w

he
re

 a
ll 

se
cu

rit
y 

is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

th
e 

de
pa

rtm
en

ts
 a

re
 a

dd
re

ss
ed

.

Q
ua

lit
y

H
ig

h 
le

ve
l o

f u
nc

er
ta

in
ty

Q
ua

lit
y

R
ed

uc
tio

n 
of

 ri
sk

R
is

ks
 to

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t w

er
e 

si
gn

i 
ca

nt
ly

re
du

ce
d

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

N
at

io
na

l I
nt

el
lig

en
ce

 
A

ge
nc

y 
an

d 
S

ou
th

 A
fri

ca
n 

P
ol

ic
e 

S
er

vi
ce

s

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

N
at

io
na

l I
nt

el
lig

en
ce

 A
ge

nc
y 

an
d 

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
P

ol
ic

e 
S

er
vi

ce
s

C
on

su
lta

tio
ns

 w
ith

 S
S

A 
an

d 
S

A
P

S
 w

er
e

Im
pr

ov
ed

, w
hi

ch
 h

ad
 a

 p
os

iti
ve

 im
pa

ct
 o

n

tu
rn

ar
ou

nd
 ti

m
es

 s
uc

h 
as

 p
er

so
nn

el
 s

ui
ta

bi
lit

y

ch
ec

ks
 b

y 
S

S
A 

an
d 

S
ec

ur
ity

 A
ud

its
 b

y 
S

A
P

S
.

A
cc

es
s

P
re

se
nt

at
io

ns
 o

f s
ec

ur
ity

 
aw

ar
en

es
s

A
cc

es
s

O
f 

ci
al

s 
ta

ki
ng

 s
ec

ur
ity

 a
s 

th
ei

r r
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty

S
ig

ni
 c

an
t p

ro
gr

es
s 

w
ith

 o
f 

ci
al

s 
ta

ki
ng

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

y 
fo

r t
he

ir 
se

cu
rit

y,
 s

uc
h 

as
 fe

w
er

un
lo

ck
ed

 o
f 

ce
s 

af
te

r h
ou

rs
 a

nd
 d

ur
in

g 
th

e 
da

y 
w

he
n 

of
 c

ia
ls

 a
re

 n
ot

 in
 th

ei
r o

f 
ce

s 
or

 in
 th

ei
r 

w
or

k 
st

at
io

n 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 o
pe

n-
pl

an
 s

et
up

.

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y

M
os

t o
f 

ci
al

s 
un

de
rs

ta
nd

 
se

cu
rit

y 
on

ly
 a

t a
cc

es
s 

co
nt

ro
l m

ea
su

re
s

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y

To
ta

l u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 

of
 M

IS
S

M
IS

S
 d

oc
um

en
t s

um
m

ar
is

ed
 fo

r a
ll 

em
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 
re

ad
 a

nd
 fa

m
ili

ar
is

e 
th

em
se

lv
es

 w
ith

 th
e 

co
nt

en
t. 

 
W

ill
 b

e 
po

st
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

In
tra

ne
t.

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

S
ec

ur
ity

 p
ol

ic
y 

on
 th

e 
in

tra
ne

t
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
S

ec
ur

ity
 g

ui
de

lin
es

 a
nd

 
pr

oc
ed

ur
es

 o
n 

th
e 

in
tra

ne
t

S
ec

ur
ity

 P
ol

ic
y 

du
e 

fo
r r

ev
ie

w
, o

nc
e 

th
e 

pr
oc

es
s 

is
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 it

 w
ill

 b
e 

po
st

ed
 b

ac
k 

to
 D

M
R

 in
tra

ne
t.

R
ed

re
ss

C
hi

ef
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
gi

ve
 

E
X

C
O

 re
po

rts
 d

ur
in

g 
di

re
ct

or
at

es
 m

ee
tin

gs
R

ed
re

ss
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

se
cu

rit
y 

at
 C

hi
ef

 
D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
m

ee
tin

gs

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 to
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

se
cu

rit
y 

he
ld

 
w

ith
 th

e 
M

in
er

al
 R

eg
ul

at
io

ns
, C

FO
 a

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

er
vi

ce
s 

B
ra

nc
h 

as
 w

el
l a

s 
al

l r
eg

io
na

l m
an

ag
er

s.

Va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

Le
ss

 s
ec

ur
ity

 b
re

ac
he

s
Va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
P

ro
te

ct
io

n 
of

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n

S
ec

ur
ity

 b
re

ac
he

s 
w

er
e 

m
in

im
is

ed
. O

ne
 in

ci
de

nt
 

of
 s

ec
ur

ity
 b

re
ac

h 
re

po
rte

d.

C
os

t
C

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

of

em
pl

oy
ee

 a
s 

pe
r b

ud
ge

t
C

os
t

C
om

pe
ns

at
io

n 
of

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 

as
 p

er
 b

ud
ge

t
P

er
m

an
en

t e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
er

e 
co

m
pe

ns
at

ed
 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 b
ud

ge
t a

nd
 th

re
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
er

e 
ab

so
rb

ed
 p

er
m

an
en

tly
 b

y 
D

M
R

 w
hi

le
 th

e 
re

m
ai

ni
ng

 1
7 

w
er

e 
ab

so
rb

ed
 b

y 
D

ep
t. 

of
 E

ne
rg

y 
du

rin
g 

th
e 

sp
lit

 o
f t

he
 D

M
E

.

Se
rv

ic
e 

D
el

iv
er

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t P
la

ns
 

B
ra

nc
h:

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

34



Annual Report 2010/11

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

  S
pe

ci
al

 P
ro

je
ct

s/
Pr

og
ra

m
m

es

K
EY

 
SE

R
VI

C
E

SE
R

VI
C

E 
B

EN
EF

IC
IA

RY
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
ST

A
N

D
A

R
D

 
D

ES
IR

ED
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 (2
01

0/
11

)
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
A

S 
AT

 3
1 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

O
10

/2
01

1 
 

R
ed

re
ss

 
th

e 
pa

st
 

im
ba

la
nc

es
 

an
d 

cr
ea

te
 

ac
ce

ss
 

fo
r t

he
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 
be

ne
 t 

fro
m

 
th

e 
m

in
er

al
s 

S
ec

to
r

A
ll 

de
si

gn
at

ed
 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 

re
si

de
nt

 in
 

ar
ea

s 
in

 a
nd

 
ar

ou
nd

 m
in

in
g 

in
du

st
ry

 
op

er
at

io
ns

 
i.e

. w
om

en
, 

yo
ut

h 
di

sa
bl

ed
, 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

th
e 

ag
ed

Q
ua

nt
ity

A
cc

or
di

ng
 to

 
S

ou
th

 A
fri

ca
n 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s
Q

ua
nt

ity
A

cc
or

di
ng

 to
 S

ou
th

 A
fri

ca
n 

de
m

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
as

 c
on

ta
in

ed
 in

 
th

e 
po

lic
y

Th
e 

M
in

in
g 

C
ha

rte
r o

f 2
00

2 
ha

d 
st

ip
ul

at
ed

 th
at

 m
in

in
g 

co
m

pa
ni

es
 s

ho
ul

d 
as

pi
re

 fo
r 1

0%
 o

f w
om

en
 (i

nc
lu

di
ng

 w
hi

te
 

w
om

en
) t

o 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

S
tu

dy
 re

ve
al

ed
 th

at
 le

ss
 th

an
 1

%
 w

om
en

 a
re

 in
 c

or
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t i

n 
th

e 
m

in
in

g 
se

ct
or

.

Q
ua

lit
y

G
iv

e 
hi

gh
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
of

 s
er

vi
ce

 d
el

iv
er

y 
as

 
pe

r d
em

og
ra

ph
ic

s 
(e

qu
ity

)

Q
ua

lit
y

A
s 

pe
r p

ol
ic

y
W

ith
 m

or
e 

ex
po

su
re

 o
f l

ea
rn

er
s 

to
 th

e 
va

rio
us

 c
ar

ee
rs

 in
 

th
e 

m
in

in
g 

se
ct

or
, t

he
 s

ki
lls

 c
ha

lle
ng

es
 c

ou
ld

 b
e 

so
m

ew
ha

t 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

A
ll 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
r 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 a
nd

 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

 A
ll 

pr
ov

in
ce

s 
to

 b
e 

re
ac

he
d

Th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
pr

ov
in

ce
s 

w
er

e 
re

ac
he

d,
 L

im
po

po
, K

w
aZ

ul
u 

N
at

al
, E

as
te

rn
 C

ap
e,

 G
au

te
ng

, N
or

th
w

es
t, 

Fr
ee

 S
ta

te
 a

nd
 

M
pu

m
al

an
ga

. 

A
cc

es
s

C
re

at
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
e 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

in
 th

e 
M

in
er

al
s 

se
ct

or
A

cc
es

s

E
ns

ur
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

di
ss

em
in

at
io

n 
to

 a
ll 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 th

ro
ug

h 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

, 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

ns
 a

nd
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

Fo
ur

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 h
av

e 
be

en
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 G
au

te
ng

 
an

d 
K

ZN
. W

ith
 m

or
e 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

di
ss

em
in

at
io

n 
w

ou
ld

 
be

 in
cr

ea
se

d.

C
ou

rte
sy

R
es

pe
ct

 a
nd

 v
al

ue
 a

ll 
ou

r c
lie

nt
s 

C
ou

rte
sy

E
ns

ur
e 

no
 d

is
cr

im
in

at
io

n 
on

 
th

e 
ba

si
s 

of
 a

ge
, r

ac
e,

 g
en

de
r 

an
d 

di
sa

bi
lit

y

A
ll 

gr
ou

ps
 a

re
 e

qu
ita

bl
y 

se
rv

ed
 w

ith
ou

t p
re

ju
di

ce
 n

or
 

di
sc

rim
in

at
io

n

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y

E
ns

ur
e 

op
en

ne
ss

 
in

 d
ea

lin
g 

w
ith

 
le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
an

d 
al

l 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y

In
te

rp
re

t a
ll 

en
qu

iri
es

 s
en

t t
o 

th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t i

n 
a 

fa
ir 

an
d 

tra
ns

pa
re

nt
 m

an
ne

r
A

ll 
en

qu
iri

es
 a

re
 re

sp
on

de
d 

to
 in

 a
 fa

ir 
m

an
ne

r

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

R
ea

ch
 o

ut
 to

 a
ll 

th
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s 
th

ro
ug

h 
ad

vo
ca

cy
 

w
or

k

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

C
on

tin
ue

 w
ith

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 a
s 

pe
r p

la
n 

of
 a

ct
io

n
Fo

ur
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

ns
 w

er
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
fo

r t
he

 y
ea

r a
s 

pe
r 

pl
an

 o
f a

ct
io

n.

R
ed

re
ss

E
ns

ur
e 

eq
ui

ty
 in

 li
ne

 
w

ith
 ta

rg
et

s
R

ed
re

ss
M

on
ito

r e
qu

ity
 th

ro
ug

h 
su

rv
ey

s 
an

d 
da

ta
 c

ol
le

ct
io

n
C

om
po

ne
nt

 re
lie

s 
on

 s
ta

tis
tic

s 
as

 o
ut

lin
ed

 in
 th

e 
Li

ne
 F

un
ct

io
n 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
th

er
eo

f

Va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

U
se

 a
ll 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 b
en

e
 t 

th
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 

gr
ou

ps
 e

qu
al

ly

Va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

U
se

 a
ll 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
pr

ov
id

ed
 to

 
be

ne
 t 

th
e 

vu
ln

er
ab

le
 g

ro
up

s 
eq

ua
lly

 a
nd

 e
f 

ci
en

tly

Th
ou

gh
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

 is
 n

ot
 a

de
qu

at
e 

to
 a

dd
re

ss
 th

e 
ne

ed
s 

an
d 

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 o
f v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
gr

ou
ps

, i
t h

as
 b

ee
n 

re
al

is
ed

 th
at

 
th

er
e 

is
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t i
n 

pe
rs

on
ne

l o
ut

pu
t

35



Department of Mineral Resources

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
K

EY
 

SE
R

VI
C

E
SE

R
VI

C
E 

B
EN

EF
IC

IA
RY

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
D

ES
IR

ED
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 (2
01

0/
11

)
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
A

S 
AT

 3
1 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

O
10

/2
01

1 
 

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ef
 c

ie
nt

 
E

xt
er

na
l 

an
d 

In
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
D

M
R

 a
nd

 
M

in
is

try

(c
on

t)

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
P

ub
lic

, D
M

R
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 a
nd

 
In

te
rn

al
 s

ta
ff

Q
ua

nt
ity

E
ns

ur
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

M
ed

ia
/

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
P

la
ns

 w
ith

in
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
S

tra
te

gy

Q
ua

nt
ity

S
tre

am
lin

e 
al

l D
M

R
 e

xt
er

na
l 

ev
en

ts
 

R
ev

am
p 

al
l s

er
vi

ce
 re

la
te

d 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns

S
tre

ng
th

en
 in

te
rn

al
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

E
m

ba
rk

 o
n 

at
 le

as
t t

hr
ee

 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns

H
os

t m
or

e 
co

nt
ac

t d
riv

en
 

Iz
im

bi
zo

/p
ub

lic
 li

ai
so

n 
ev

en
ts

Th
e 

su
b 

di
re

ct
or

at
e 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
pr

oj
ec

t p
la

n 
to

 u
pd

at
e 

D
M

R
 p

ub
lic

at
io

ns
. T

he
 u

ni
t 

is
 c

ur
re

nt
ly

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

an
 in

te
rn

al
 n

ew
sl

et
te

r t
itl

ed
 E

za
se

m
go

di
ni

. T
he

 s
ec

tio
n 

do
es

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
pr

op
er

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
to

 p
ro

du
ce

 u
pd

at
ed

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

, b
ut

 is
 w

or
ki

ng
 o

n 
a 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
pr

oc
ur

e 
pr

op
er

 
de

sk
to

p 
co

m
pu

te
r e

qu
ip

m
en

t i
nc

lu
di

ng
 d

es
ig

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s 

et
c.

 to
 e

na
bl

e 
it 

to
 p

ro
du

ce
 g

oo
d 

qu
al

-
ity

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

. T
he

 u
ni

t i
s 

al
so

 w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t t

o 
se

cu
re

 fu
nd

in
g 

fo
r t

he
 o

ut
so

ur
ci

ng
 o

f a
n 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
m

ed
ia

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
se

rv
ic

e.
 

E
xt

er
na

l S
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 s
ur

ve
y:

 T
he

 u
ni

t i
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

pr
oj

ec
t p

la
n 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 a

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 s
ur

-
ve

y.
 A

 m
ee

tin
g 

w
as

 h
el

d 
w

ith
 G

C
IS

 R
es

ea
rc

h 
un

it 
on

 th
is

 m
at

te
r o

n 
Th

us
rs

da
y,

 1
9 

M
ay

 2
01

1,
 a

t 
G

C
IS

, a
s 

th
ey

 w
ou

ld
 a

ss
is

t w
ith

 th
ei

r v
as

t e
xp

er
tis

e.
 T

he
y 

ha
ve

 th
e 

ne
ce

ss
ar

y 
to

ol
s 

an
d 

ca
pa

c-
ity

 to
 c

on
du

ct
 s

ur
ve

ys
 o

n 
be

ha
lf 

of
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

. A
 q

ue
st

io
nn

ai
re

 h
as

 a
lre

ad
y 

be
en

 
re

ce
iv

ed
 fr

om
 th

em
. U

nd
er

ta
ki

ng
 th

is
 im

po
rta

nt
 a

ct
iv

ity
 w

hi
ch

 fo
rm

s 
pa

rt 
of

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
ke

y 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 d
el

iv
er

ab
le

s,
 w

ill
 in

fo
rm

 th
e 

D
M

R
’s

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t p

la
n.

 

R
e-

es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 th
e 

Li
br

ar
y:

 T
he

 U
ni

t i
s 

w
or

ki
ng

 o
n 

a 
pr

oj
et

ct
 p

la
n 

to
 re

-e
st

ab
lis

h 
D

M
R

 li
br

ar
y.

 
Fu

nd
in

g 
fo

r t
he

 li
br

ar
y 

ha
s 

be
en

 s
et

 a
si

de
. A

 p
ro

je
ct

 p
la

n 
is

 b
ei

ng
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 o
n 

se
tti

ng
 u

p 
th

e 
lib

ra
ry

. T
he

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
is

 s
til

l t
he

 s
pa

ce
 a

llo
ca

tio
n.

 R
e-

es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f t

he
 li

br
ar

y 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
im

m
en

se
ly

 c
on

tri
bu

te
 in

 th
e 

ge
tti

ng
 la

te
st

 u
pd

at
ed

 p
ub

lic
at

io
ns

.

Q
ua

nt
ity

P
ub

lic
 li

ai
so

n 
an

d 
m

ed
ia

 
en

ga
ge

m
en

t i
s 

be
in

g 
do

ne
 b

ut
 

no
t e

xt
re

m
el

y 
co

nt
en

t d
riv

en

P
ub

lic
at

io
ns

 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

bu
t o

ut
da

te
d

Q
ua

lit
y

U
pd

at
ed

 a
nd

 n
ew

 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

ns
 d

ev
el

op
ed

 

M
or

e 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

r a
nd

 p
ub

lic
 

lia
is

on
 e

ve
nt

s 
to

 b
e 

ho
st

ed
  

In
te

rn
al

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
ev

en
ts

 h
el

d 
m

or
e 

fre
qu

en
tly

 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
ca

m
pa

ig
ns

 ro
lle

d 
ou

t

Th
e 

un
it 

is
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

to
 h

ol
d 

a 
C

hi
ef

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

w
he

re
 a

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 D
M

R
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

on
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
an

da
te

.

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

E
ng

ag
e 

m
ed

ia
 p

la
ye

rs
 

Li
ne

 fu
nc

tio
n 

br
an

ch
es

 
fo

r s
tra

te
gi

c 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

on
  i

nt
er

na
l 

m
at

te
rs

 E
ng

ag
e 

H
R

 a
nd

 C
FO

’ s
 

of
 c

e 
m

or
e 

es
pe

ci
al

ly
 th

os
e 

th
at

 p
ro

vi
de

 a
  

P
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
on

 w
ha

t 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

is
 th

er
e 

fo
r 

an
d 

w
ha

t i
t i

s 
re

qu
ire

d 
to

 d
o 

as
 g

ov
er

nm
en

t 
fu

nc
tio

n 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n

O
f 

ce
 o

f t
he

 D
ire

ct
or

-G
en

er
al

 
an

d 
M

in
is

try

Th
e 

un
it 

is
 p

re
pa

rin
g 

to
 h

ol
d 

a 
C

hi
ef

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 s
tra

te
gi

c 
pl

an
 w

or
ks

ho
p 

w
he

re
 a

 c
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

st
ra

te
gy

 w
ou

ld
 b

e 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 D
M

R
 s

tra
te

gi
c 

pl
an

 in
 o

rd
er

 to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

on
 o

ur
 s

er
vi

ce
 d

el
iv

er
y 

m
an

da
te

.

A
cc

es
s

A
cc

es
s

R
ou

tin
e 

su
bm

is
si

on
 o

f 
up

da
te

d 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
on

 
al

l D
M

R
 s

er
vi

ce
 re

la
te

d 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
, m

on
th

ly
 

m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 D
D

G
’s

Th
e 

un
it 

co
m

pi
le

s 
qu

ar
te

rly
 m

on
th

ly
 re

po
rts

 to
 th

e 
of

 c
e 

of
 th

e 
D

D
G

: C
or

po
ra

te
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 T
he

 
C

hi
ef

 D
ire

ct
or

 a
nd

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

: C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 a
tte

nd
 C

or
po

ra
te

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
br

an
ch

 m
ee

tin
gs

 
w

he
re

 th
ey

 g
iv

e 
fe

ed
ba

ck
 io

n 
th

e 
st

at
us

 o
f p

ro
je

ct
 b

y 
th

e 
C

hi
ef

 D
ire

ct
or

at
e.

 

Th
e 

C
hi

ef
 D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 a

ls
o 

at
te

nd
 w

ee
kl

y 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

t G
ov

er
nm

en
t 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

s 
(G

C
IS

) w
he

re
 m

ed
ia

 is
su

es
 a

ffe
ct

in
g 

al
l g

ov
er

nm
en

t d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 
ar

e 
de

lib
er

at
ed

. T
he

y 
al

so
 a

tte
nd

 m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 D
D

G
’s

 o
f v

ar
io

us
 b

ra
nc

he
s 

to
 d

is
cu

ss
 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t/ 

ne
ed

s 
fo

r t
he

ir 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
.

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

(c
on

t)

36



Annual Report 2010/11

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ef
 c

ie
nt

 
E

xt
er

na
l 

an
d 

In
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
D

M
R

 a
nd

 
M

in
is

try

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
P

ub
lic

, D
M

R
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
an

d 
In

te
rn

al
 

st
af

f

C
ou

rte
sy

C
on

tin
uo

us
 

un
he

ed
ed

 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r l
in

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
pl

an
s/

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t

C
ou

rte
sy

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
lin

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f t

he
ir 

pl
an

s/
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r o
f t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

Th
e 

C
hi

ef
 D

ire
ct

or
 a

nd
 th

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 c

on
tin

uo
us

ly
 e

ng
ag

e 
br

an
ch

es
 to

 
su

bm
it 

th
ei

r p
la

ns
/ p

ro
gr

am
m

es
 in

 o
rd

er
 to

 p
la

n 
on

 ti
m

e 
an

d 
al

so
 to

 g
iv

e 
ad

vi
ce

 o
n 

th
e 

ki
nd

 o
f c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 to

 b
e 

ap
pl

ie
d 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
th

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
bu

dg
et

 fo
r t

he
 p

ro
je

ct
s 

i.e
 m

ar
ke

tin
g 

ca
m

pa
ig

ns
, m

ed
ia

 b
rie

 n
gs

, e
tc

.

In
te

rn
al

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 s
up

po
rt

 p
la

ns
:

Th
e 

U
ni

t a
ck

no
w

le
dg

es
 th

at
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
pl

ay
 a

 c
ru

ci
al

 ro
le

 in
 b

ui
ld

in
g 

a 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t’s
 re

pu
ta

tio
n.

 W
he

th
er

 th
ey

 a
re

 fr
on

tli
ne

 s
ta

ff 
or

 o
f 

ce
rs

 
re

pr
es

en
tin

g 
th

e 
D

M
R

 e
xt

er
na

lly
, t

he
 w

ay
 th

ey
 b

eh
av

e 
an

d 
ho

w
 th

ey
 

ta
lk

 a
bo

ut
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t c
an

 h
av

e 
a 

hu
ge

 im
pa

ct
. G

oo
d 

in
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 is

 th
er

ef
or

e 
ve

ry
 im

po
rta

nt
 in

 h
el

pi
ng

 th
e 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t t

o 
ac

hi
ev

e 
its

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
.

C
as

ca
de

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
n 

te
am

 b
rie

 n
gs

S
ta

ff 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 o

n 
im

po
rta

nt
 is

su
es

 w
ill

 b
e 

fa
ce

-to
-fa

ce
 w

ith
 

• 
th

ei
r m

an
ag

er
s.

Th
er

e 
w

ill
 b

e 
re

gu
la

r i
nf

or
m

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

n 
br

ie
 n

gs
 b

y 
br

an
ch

 
• 

m
an

ag
er

s 
to

 im
pr

ov
e 

re
la

tio
ns

hi
ps

 a
nd

 h
el

p 
st

af
f f

ee
l i

nv
ol

ve
d 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
ed

 a
bo

ut
 d

ev
el

op
m

en
ts

 th
at

 a
ffe

ct
 th

em
.

C
as

ca
de

 te
am

 b
rie

 n
gs

 c
an

 q
ui

ck
ly

 d
is

se
m

in
at

e 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

• 
th

ro
ug

ho
ut

 th
e 

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
n.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 b

e 
ve

ry
 e

ffe
ct

iv
e 

at
 

qu
as

hi
ng

 g
ra

pe
vi

ne
 ru

m
ou

rs

In
te

rn
al

 s
ta

ff 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
se

ss
io

n 
ev

en
ts

:

M
et

ho
ds

 to
 b

e 
ap

pl
ie

d 
in

 fo
r c

om
m

un
ic

at
in

g 
w

ith
 s

ta
ff 

us
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 

ev
en

ts
O

rg
an

is
in

g 
in

te
rn

al
 s

ta
ff 

ev
en

ts
 (y

ea
r e

nd
 a

w
ar

ds
 c

er
em

on
y)

 w
ill

 h
el

p 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
e 

cu
ltu

ra
l c

ha
ng

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 o

r d
ep

ar
tm

en
ts

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
 

or
 p

rio
rit

ie
s.

 T
he

y 
br

in
g 

st
af

f t
og

et
he

r w
ho

 m
ay

 n
ot

 h
av

e 
m

uc
h 

co
nt

ac
t 

no
rm

al
ly

 a
nd

 ra
is

in
g 

th
e 

vi
si

bi
lit

y 
of

 s
en

io
r m

an
ag

er
s.

So
m

e 
of

 th
e 

pl
an

ne
d 

ev
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

or
ga

ni
se

d:
 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

se
ss

io
ns

 o
n 

to
pi

ca
l  

is
su

es
 

• 
R

eg
io

na
l o

f 
ce

  v
is

its
 b

y 
th

e 
un

it 
st

af
f

• 
M

ee
t t

he
 D

ire
ct

or
-G

en
er

al
 s

es
si

on
s

• 
A

nn
ua

l a
dd

re
ss

 b
y 

th
e 

M
in

is
te

r a
nd

 th
e 

D
ep

ut
y-

 M
in

is
te

r
• 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
K

EY
 

SE
R

VI
C

E
SE

R
VI

C
E 

B
EN

EF
IC

IA
RY

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
D

ES
IR

ED
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 (2
01

0/
11

)
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
A

S 
AT

 3
1 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

O
10

/2
01

1 
 

(c
on

t)
(c

on
t)

(c
on

t)
(c

on
t)

(c
on

t)
(c

on
t)

37



Department of Mineral Resources

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ef
 c

ie
nt

 
E

xt
er

na
l 

an
d 

In
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
D

M
R

 a
nd

 
M

in
is

try

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
P

ub
lic

, D
M

R
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
an

d 
In

te
rn

al
 

st
af

f

C
ou

rte
sy

C
on

tin
uo

us
 

un
he

ed
ed

 
re

qu
es

ts
 fo

r 
lin

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
pl

an
s/

pr
og

ra
m

m
es

 
th

at
 n

ee
d 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

su
pp

or
t

C
ou

rte
sy

P
ro

ac
tiv

e 
lin

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
su

bm
is

si
on

 o
f t

he
ir 

pl
an

s/
pr

og
ra

m
m

es
 

ea
ch

 y
ea

r b
y 

N
ov

em
be

r o
f t

he
 

cu
rr

en
t y

ea
r 

St
af

f s
ug

ge
st

io
n 

on
lin

e 
w

eb
pa

ge
 (w

eb
si

te
 b

as
ed

 in
 c

on
ju

nc
tio

n 
w

ith
 IT

/ 
IM

)
S

ug
ge

st
io

n 
on

lin
e 

D
M

R
 w

eb
pa

ge
 in

 c
on

jc
tio

n 
w

ith
 IT

/IM
 w

ill
 b

e 
• 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

to
 g

et
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
to

 p
os

t t
he

ir 
su

gg
es

tio
ns

 a
nd

 id
ea

s
S

ta
ff 

su
gg

es
tio

n 
sc

he
m

es
 w

ill
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

 id
ea

s 
an

d 
th

e 
be

st
 

• 
id

ea
s 

ca
n 

be
 s

in
gl

ed
 o

ut
 fo

r p
ra

is
e 

in
 th

e 
st

af
f n

ew
sl

et
te

r o
r a

t 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
st

af
f s

ur
ve

ys
 e

ve
ry

 tw
o 

ye
ar

s
To

 a
ch

ie
ve

 h
ig

h 
pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n,
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

s 
ne

ed
 to

 b
e 

co
n

 d
en

tia
l. 

• 
S

o 
it 

is
 a

 g
oo

d 
id

ea
 to

 u
se

 a
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
y 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 th

e 
su

rv
ey

 a
nd

 m
on

ito
r t

he
 re

su
lts

P
ar

tic
ip

at
io

n 
w

ill
 a

ls
o 

be
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
po

st
er

s,
 th

e 
st

af
f 

• 
ne

w
sl

et
te

r a
nd

 in
tra

ne
t. 

P
os

te
rs

, t
he

 n
ew

sl
et

te
r a

nd
 in

tra
ne

t w
ill

 
al

so
 b

e 
us

ed
 to

 fe
ed

 b
ac

k 
to

 s
ta

ff 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

 n
di

ng
s 

fro
m

 th
e 

su
rv

ey
 

an
d 

an
y 

ac
tio

ns
 a

ris
in

g 
fro

m
 th

em
S

ur
ve

ys
 w

ill
 g

iv
e 

va
lu

ab
le

 q
ua

nt
ita

tiv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 o
n 

qu
es

tio
ns

 
• 

re
la

tin
g 

to
 s

ta
ff 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n,

 m
ot

iv
at

io
n,

 p
rio

rit
ie

s,
 v

ie
w

s 
an

d 
pe

rc
ep

tio
ns

 a
nd

 p
re

fe
re

nc
es

Fo
cu

s 
gr

ou
ps

 w
ill

 a
dd

 q
ua

lit
at

iv
e 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 in
to

 th
e 

re
se

ar
ch

 a
nd

 
• 

he
lp

 g
iv

e 
a 

fu
lle

r p
ic

tu
re

. 
A

ga
in

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
nd

uc
te

d 
by

 a
n 

ex
te

rn
al

 a
ge

nc
y 

(G
C

IS
 to

 a
ss

is
t 

• 
D

M
R

) t
o 

gi
ve

 g
re

at
er

 c
re

di
bi

lit
y 

to
 th

e 
co

n
 d

en
tia

lit
y 

fa
ct

or
.

Es
ta

bl
is

hi
ng

 a
nd

 la
un

ch
in

g 
D

M
R

 in
te

rn
al

 S
ta

ff 
ne

w
sl

et
te

r
Q

ua
rte

rly
 p

ub
lis

he
d 

ne
w

sl
et

te
r f

or
 s

ta
ff 

w
ill

 p
la

y 
a 

vi
ta

l r
ol

e 
in

 in
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 –

 e
sp

ec
ia

lly
 a

t a
 ti

m
e 

of
 c

ha
ng

e 
– 

by
:

pr
om

ot
in

g 
ke

y 
m

es
sa

ge
s 

an
d 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

• 
ce

le
br

at
in

g 
st

af
f a

nd
 D

M
R

 a
ch

ie
ve

m
en

ts
• 

pr
o

 li
ng

 in
di

vi
du

al
 s

ta
ff 

or
 te

am
s

• 
pr

ov
id

in
g 

‘s
of

te
r’ 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n,

 fo
r e

xa
m

pl
e 

ab
ou

t s
ta

rte
rs

 a
nd

 
• 

le
av

er
s.

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

S
tra

te
gy

 is
 

av
ai

la
bl

e 
to

 a
ll 

E
X

C
O

 a
nd

 o
th

er
 

st
af

f m
em

be
rs

O
pe

nn
es

s 
an

d 
tra

ns
pa

re
nc

y
C

on
tin

uo
us

 in
te

ra
ct

io
n 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

 o
n 

th
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 n
ee

ds
 o

f l
in

e 
fu

nc
tio

n 
br

an
ch

es

Th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

is
 e

ng
ag

in
g 

al
l D

M
R

 b
ra

nc
he

s 
to

 g
iv

e 
us

 th
ei

r 
pl

an
ne

d 
ev

en
ts

/ p
ro

gr
am

m
es

 a
s 

pa
rt 

of
 it

s 
on

go
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

ns
 o

n 
th

e 
ch

an
gi

ng
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 li
ne

 fu
nc

tio
n 

br
an

ch
es

. T
he

 u
ni

t i
s 

cu
rr

en
tly

 w
or

ki
ng

 w
ith

 H
R

D
 o

n 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f D

M
R

 c
or

po
ra

te
 v

id
eo

 to
 b

e 
pl

ay
ed

 d
ur

in
g 

or
ie

nt
at

io
n 

w
or

ks
ho

ps
 fo

r 
ne

w
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s.
 T

he
 U

ni
t i

s 
al

so
 a

ss
is

tin
g 

H
R

D
 in

 d
ev

el
op

in
g 

an
d 

pr
in

tin
g 

of
 th

ei
r 

pr
om

ot
io

na
l m

at
er

ia
ls

, w
hi

ch
 in

cl
ud

es
 O

rie
nt

at
io

n 
br

oc
hu

re
, p

os
te

rs
, p

am
ph

le
ts

 e
tc

.

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
K

EY
 

SE
R

VI
C

E
SE

R
VI

C
E 

B
EN

EF
IC

IA
RY

C
U

R
R

EN
T 

ST
A

N
D

A
R

D
D

ES
IR

ED
 S

TA
N

D
A

R
D

 (2
01

0/
11

)
PR

O
G

R
ES

S 
A

S 
AT

 3
1 

M
A

R
C

H
 2

O
10

/2
01

1 
 

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

38



Annual Report 2010/11

PROGRAMME 1:  ADMINISTRATION

P
ro

vi
de

 a
n 

ef
 c

ie
nt

 
E

xt
er

na
l 

an
d 

In
te

rn
al

 
co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
se

rv
ic

e 
to

 b
ot

h 
th

e 
D

M
R

 a
nd

 
M

in
is

try

S
ou

th
 A

fri
ca

n 
P

ub
lic

, D
M

R
 

st
ak

eh
ol

de
rs

 
an

d 
In

te
rn

al
 

st
af

f

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

po
lic

y 
on

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

A
ll 

D
M

R
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
 a

nd
 p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 th

e 
in

tra
ne

t

Th
e 

U
ni

t t
hr

ou
gh

 it
s 

W
eb

si
te

 C
om

m
itt

ee
, c

ha
ire

d 
by

 th
e 

D
ire

ct
or

: C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
n 

en
su

re
s 

th
at

 m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 w
er

e 
ap

po
in

te
d 

by
 th

e 
D

G
, r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

al
l b

ra
nc

he
s 

co
nt

in
ue

 to
 s

ub
m

it 
th

ei
r p

ol
ic

ie
s 

an
d 

gu
id

el
in

es
. I

t i
s 

th
e 

re
sp

on
si

bi
lit

ie
s 

of
 W

eb
si

te
 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 m

em
be

rs
 to

 c
on

st
an

tly
 m

on
ito

r t
he

 w
eb

si
te

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
up

da
te

d 
po

lic
ie

s 
pe

rta
in

in
g 

to
 th

ei
r b

ra
nc

he
s 

ar
e 

on
 th

e 
D

M
R

 w
eb

si
te

.

R
ed

re
ss

C
hi

ef
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
gi

ve
 

E
X

C
O

 re
po

rts
 d

ur
in

g 
di

re
ct

or
at

e 
m

ee
tin

gs
R

ed
re

ss

R
ep

or
t o

n 
al

l m
ed

ia
 

co
ve

ra
ge

 re
la

te
d 

to
 th

e 
D

M
R

 a
nd

 m
in

in
g 

in
du

st
ry

 to
 

th
e 

E
X

C
O

 m
ee

tin
gs

Th
e 

U
ni

t c
on

tin
ue

s 
to

 m
on

ito
r n

ew
s 

co
ve

ra
ge

 (p
rin

t a
nd

 e
le

ct
ro

ni
c)

 o
n 

da
ily

 b
as

is
. 

A 
m

ed
ia

 a
na

ly
si

s 
re

po
rt 

is
 p

re
pa

re
d 

fo
r E

X
C

O
 o

n 
is

su
es

 th
at

 re
qu

ire
 in

te
rv

en
tio

n 
or

 
th

at
 a

pp
ra

is
e 

th
em

 o
n 

th
e 

ne
w

s 
co

ve
ra

ge
 p

er
ta

in
in

g 
to

 m
in

in
g 

an
d 

m
in

er
al

s 
se

ct
or

 
gl

ob
al

ly.

Va
lu

e 
fo

r m
on

ey

A
ll 

co
m

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

re
 b

ei
ng

 
of

fe
re

d 
w

ith
in

 th
e 

‘v
al

ue
 

fo
r m

on
ey

’ c
on

ce
pt

, 
bu

t t
hi

s 
is

 n
ot

 a
lw

ay
s 

po
ss

ib
le

 a
s 

re
qu

es
ts

 
co

m
e 

in
 v

er
y 

la
te

, 
re

du
ci

ng
 ti

m
e 

on
 

ge
tti

ng
 v

al
ue

 fo
r t

he
 

m
on

ey
 u

se
d

Va
lu

e 
fo

r 
m

on
ey

P
ro

pe
rly

 p
ro

cu
re

d 
se

rv
ic

es
 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
va

lu
e 

fo
r m

on
ey

Th
e 

un
it 

ha
s 

m
an

ag
ed

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
its

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

es
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

th
at

 
w

e 
tig

ht
en

 o
ur

 b
ud

ge
ts

. W
e 

ha
ve

 a
 d

ed
ic

at
ed

 o
f 

ci
al

 w
ho

 h
as

 a
 S

up
pl

y 
C

ha
in

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t b
ac

kg
ro

un
d.

 

Th
e 

pr
e-

qu
al

i 
ca

tio
n 

fo
r s

er
vi

ce
 p

ro
vi

de
rs

 to
 re

nd
er

 v
ar

io
us

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

he
n 

re
qu

ire
d 

by
 th

e 
D

ep
ar

tm
en

t o
f M

in
er

al
 R

es
ou

rc
es

 fo
r p

er
io

d 
of

 1
2 

m
on

th
s.

Th
e 

ai
m

 is
 to

 e
ns

ur
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
ce

du
re

s 
ar

e 
fo

llo
w

ed
 w

he
n 

so
ur

ci
ng

 
se

rv
ic

es
. T

hi
s 

w
ill

 a
ls

o 
as

si
st

 in
 m

ai
nt

ai
ni

ng
 h

ig
h 

st
an

da
rd

 o
f q

ua
lit

y 
as

su
ra

nc
e 

in
 th

e 
w

or
k 

an
d 

su
pp

or
t s

er
vi

ce
s 

th
at

 w
e 

re
nd

er
 to

 o
ur

 c
lie

nt
s.

 T
hi

s 
w

ill
 re

su
lt 

in
 

ge
tti

ng
 v

al
ue

 fo
r m

on
ey

.

Th
e 

co
nt

in
ui

ng
 o

f 
 ll

in
g 

of
 th

e 
va

ca
nt

 p
os

ts
 w

ith
in

 w
ill

 a
ls

o 
im

pr
ov

e 
ou

r s
er

vi
ce

 
de

liv
er

y 
en

su
rin

g 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
w

e 
of

fe
r i

s 
of

 v
al

ue
 fo

r m
on

ey
.  

A 
co

ns
tra

in
t i

s 
th

at
 th

e 
cu

rr
en

t 
 n

an
ci

al
 a

llo
ca

tio
n 

fo
r t

he
 D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
is

 in
ad

eq
ua

te
.

C
os

t

A
s 

pe
r b

ud
ge

t 
al

lo
ca

tio
n

C
os

t

M
or

e 
pr

oa
ct

iv
e 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

in
 th

e 
bu

dg
et

in
g 

pr
oc

es
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
al

lo
ca

tio
n 

is
 

st
re

am
lin

ed
 w

ith
 p

rio
rit

ie
s

Th
e 

U
ni

t i
nt

er
ac

ts
 w

ith
 E

xp
en

di
tu

re
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 F
in

an
ce

 o
n 

a 
w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s.

 
Th

e 
A

dm
in

 O
f 

ce
r u

nd
er

ta
ke

s 
an

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

 a
na

ly
si

s 
on

 a
 w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
pr

oc
es

si
ng

 o
f a

ll 
in

vo
ic

es
. A

ll 
bu

dg
et

 it
em

s 
ar

e 
be

in
g 

m
on

ito
re

d 
on

 a
 w

ee
kl

y 
ba

si
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

er
e 

is
 n

o 
ov

er
/u

nd
er

 e
xp

en
di

tu
re

.

D
ire

ct
or

at
e:

 C
om

m
un

ic
at

io
ns

 
 K

EY
 S

ER
VI

C
E

SE
R

VI
C

E 
B

EN
EF

IC
IA

RY
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
ST

A
N

D
A

R
D

D
ES

IR
ED

 S
TA

N
D

A
R

D
 (2

01
0/

11
)

PR
O

G
R

ES
S 

A
S 

AT
 3

1 
M

A
R

C
H

 2
O

10
/2

01
1 

 

39



Department of Mineral Resources

Purpose: The purpose of the Branch: Chief Financial Of  ce is to provide strategic and administrative support services to the 

Ministry and the Department. Headed by the Chief Financial Of  cer, the branch consists of the following components:

Supply Chain Management • which is primarily responsible for providing procurement, logistics and asset management service 

to the Department;

Information and Communications Technology•  which provides Information technology (infrastructure and networks) services 

as well as the development and maintenance of application systems;

Financial Planning and Management Accounting•  which is responsible for coordinating the budget process, revenue 

management and reporting on all  nancial matters, including annual  nancial statements expenditure reports prescribed in the 

PFMA; 

Expenditure Management•  responsible for ensuring that all payments to service providers and departmental employees are 

done on time and within a controlled environment to ensure compliance; and

Transport, Facilities and Records Managemen• t which is responsible for the provision of adequate facilities, including 

accommodation, transport and records management services to the Department.

Achievements

Budget and expenditure

The Department recorded a 0.12% under-spending on allocated budget for 2010/11 which is far below the 5% threshold set by 

National Treasury.  This was realised through effective and continuous monitoring processes that were implemented during the 

year. 

The process of compiling the 2011/12 budget and ENE chapter for the Department was also completed during the year under 

review.  All branches have compiled and submitted their spending plans which were used as a basis for projecting the monthly 

expenditure. 

Policies and procedures

In the pursuit for consistency and to eliminate non-compliance, various policies were approved and implemented during the year.  

Parallel to the development of these policies, procedures were also developed.  

Service delivery/turnaround times

The Branch has completed the process of developing a service catalogue which de  nes the standard turnaround time for each 

service rendered within the Branch.  This will form the basis for monitoring actual turnaround times on a monthly basis.  Ten (10) 

service level agreements were also concluded with various vendors and implemented during 2010/11.

PROGRAMME 1.1: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE

PROGRAMME 1.1: CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICE
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Compliance matters

In an effort to eliminate cases of non-compliance with the procurement procedure that has seen signi  cant increase in irregular 

expenditure incurred during 2010/2011, the following measures have been put in place:

Improved liaison with the National Treasury Supply Chain Management Norms and Standard Component• 

Consistent reporting of suspected irregular expenditure to Managers for investigation and for taking necessary disciplinary • 
measures against the transgressor.

Quarterly reporting of performance against the irregular expenditure measures to Programme Managers.• 

The Accounting Of  cer granting condonation of irregular expenditure only after the Responsibility Manager has reported • 
the corrective measure taken against the transgressor 

The medium to long term vision for the department in this regard is to eliminate the non-compliance entirely.

The Department continued to compile a monthly compliance certi  cate as required by the National Treasury.  The level of 

compliance against a target of 100% was recorded at 98%.  

Facilities

During the year under review, the Department of Mineral Resources relocated its head of  ce to new premises in order to improve 

the morale of staff and improve the overall image of the Department.  The relocation had become a necessity due to the appalling 

condition of the previous head of  ce building.  

Information and Communication Technology

The entire ICT infrastructure was also upgraded in order to improve ef  ciency in the work of the Department.  This has resulted in 

increased capacity as well as improved security around the DMR network. 
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Department of Mineral Resources

Purpose: To execute the Department’s statutory mandate to safeguard the health and safety of the mine employees and people 

affected by mining activities.

Measurable Objective: Reduce mining-related deaths, injuries and ill-health through the formulation of national policy and legislation, 

the provision of advice and application of systems that monitor, audit and enforce compliance in the mining sector.

Service Delivery

Staf  ng
The establishment of the Inspectorate provides for 297 posts of which 233 are currently  lled and 64 posts are vacant. The 

demographics of the Inspectorate as on 31 March 2011 was as follows:

Gender African White Asian Coloured Total

Male 98 49 0 1 148

Female 64 18 0 3 85

Human Resource Development

During the reporting period, the Inspectorate continued to develop the skills and knowledge base of its staff as follows:

Eighty-three of  cials attended WITS training on the following modules:• 

Inspection, audits and investigation methods

Mine Health and Safety Act Legal Enforcement Part I

Mine Health and Safety Act Legal Enforcement Part II

Principles of Occupational Health and Hygiene Part I

This training will continue during the next  nancial year, with the training schedule as set-out for the rest of the year.

Thirty four staff members attended other administrative and technical courses.• 

A total number of 19 Learner Inspectors are currently undergoing practical training at various regional of  ces of the Department.  

Objective of the Training programme was for the Learner Inspectors to obtain their Government Certi  cate of Competency.

PROGRAMME 2:  PROMOTION OF MINE HEALTH AND SAFETY
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TABLE 1:  Actual Fatalities and Rates (per million hours worked) per Region

 

2009 2010* Rates

Fatalities Fatality rates Fatalities Fatality rates % change

All mines 168 0.16 127 0.12 -25.00

Western Cape 3 0.19 0 0 -100.00

Northern Cape 4 0.07 4 0.06 -14.29

Free State 22 0.23 22 0.27 17.39

Eastern Cape 0 0 0 0 0.00

KwaZulu-Natal 9 0.36 3 0.12 -66.67

Mpumalanga 25 0.16 13 0.08 -50.00

Limpopo 5 0.05 11 0.11 120.00

Gauteng 44 0.20 29 0.14 -30.00

North West 56 0.14 45 0.12 -14.29

 Provisional  gures (*) because statistics may change due to late reporting of accidents and subsequent deaths

 A negative  (-)  gure denotes a decrease in frequency rate

Table 1 indicates that there has been a 25% reduction of the fatality rates at all mines for the period under review. There were two 

regions that succeeded to have a fatal free year, namely Western Cape and Eastern Cape. Two other regions managed to maintain 

the same number of fatalities Northern Cape and Free State.  The Free State had an increase in fatality rates (17.39%) while Northern 

Cape had a reduction in the fatality rates (1.29%) and this is related to the decrease in the labour at work in the Free State region 

while the Northern Cape has had an increase in the labour at work.

TABLE 2:  Actual Reportable Injuries and Rates (per million hours worked) per Region

 

2009 2010* Rates

Injuries Injury rates Injuries injury  rates % change

All mines 3650 3.43 3419 3.22 -6.76

Western Cape 15 0.93 13 0.96 3.23

Northern Cape 56 0.94 63 0.92 -2.13

Free State 399 4.43 385 4.69 5.86

Eastern Cape 8 2.01 2 0.52 -74.13

KwaZulu-Natal 54 2.18 28 1.1 -49.54

Mpumalanga 419 2.66 304 1.85 -30.45

Limpopo 202 1.98 254 2.43 22.73

Gauteng 760 3.52 614 2.87 -18.47

North West 1737 4.42 1756 4.59 3.85

 Provisional  gures (*) because statistics may change due to late reporting of accidents and subsequent deaths

 A negative  (-)  gure denotes a decrease in frequency rate

Table 2 shows that there has been an improvement of about 8% on injury rates show that there has been an increase in injuries in 

the Limpopo Region while all the other regions show a decrease.
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2009 2010* Rates

Fatalities Fatality rate Fatalities Fatality rate % change 

All mines 168 0.16 127 0.12 -25.00

Gold 81 0.25 62 0.20 -20.00

Platinum 41 0.11 34 0.09 -18.18

Coal 18 0.12 12 0.08 -33.33

Diamonds 3 0.11 4 0.16 45.45

Copper 1 0.14 1 0.14 0.00

Chrome 3 0.13 3 0.10 -23.08

Iron ore 3 0.10 3 0.07 -30.00

Manganese 1 0.09 1 0.08 -11.11

Other 17 0.15 7 0.07 -53.33

TABLE 3:  Actual Fatalities and Rates (per million hours worked) per Commodity

 Provisional  gures (*) because statistics may change due to late reporting of accidents and subsequent deaths

 A negative  (-)  gure denotes a decrease in frequency rate

In terms of the major commodities the gold, platinum  and coal sectors have registering a reduction in fatally rates of 20%,  18% 

and 33% respectively during the period under review. However, it is of concern that the diamond sector had an increase in fatality 

rates of about 45%.

 
2009 2010* Rates

Injuries Injury rates Injuries Injury rates % change 

All mines 3650 3.43 3419 3.22 -6.76

Gold 1756 5.36 1375 4.35 -18.84

Platinum 1299 3.50 1505 4.06 16.00

Coal 295 1.97 272 1.71 -13.20

Diamonds 46 1.66 50 2.04 22.89

Copper 19 2.59 19 2.61 0.77

Chrome 60 2.00 81 2.68 34.00

Iron ore 15 0.49 18 0.44 -10.20

Manganese 11 1.03 17 1.36 32.03

Other 149 1.30 82 0.83 -36.15

TABLE 4:  Actual Reportable Injuries and Rates (per million hours worked) per Commodity

 Provisional  gures (*) because statistics may change due to late reporting of accidents and subsequent deaths

 A negative  (-)  gure denotes a decrease in frequency rate

Whilst reportable injury rates in gold (18%), coal (13%), iron (10%) and other mines (36%), rates dropped substantially, it is of con-

cern that other commodities registered increases. 

PROGRAMME 2:  PROMOTION OF MINE HEALTH AND SAFETY

62



Annual Report 2010/11

TABLE 5:  Number of Fatalities for all mines per casualty classi  cation:  2009 to 2010

Number of separate accidents, number of deaths and number of persons incapacitated in terms of Regulation 25.1.1 (c), (d) and (f)

CLASSIFICATION

 

2009

Fatalities

2010*

Fatalities
% change

FALL OF GROUND 65 48 -26.15

MACHINERY 8 3 -62.50

TRANSPORTATION/MINING 47 37 -21.28

GENERAL 32 20 -37.50

CONVEYANCE ACCIDENTS 2 1 -50.00

ELECTRICITY 5 3 -40.00

FIRES  5 100.00

EXPLOSIVES 4 5 25.00

HEAT SICKNESS 4 2 -50.00

MISCELLANEOUS 1 3 200.00

TOTAL 168 127 -24.40

 Provisional  gures (*) because statistics may change due to late reporting of accidents and subsequent deaths

 A negative  (-)  gure denotes a decrease in frequency rate

There has been a 26% improvement regarding fall of ground fatalities, from 65 in 2009 to 48 during 2010. Also, there has been a 

reduction with the machinery, general transportation and mining fatalities of about 63%, 38% and 21% recorded during the period 

under review. Although the abovementioned improvements have been achieved, the fall of ground, general, transportation and mining 

still remain the major contributors to fatalities within the mining sector. This is an indication that there has to be more attention given 

to the areas which lead to the potential  of these accidents to occur in the mining industry. 
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Purpose: Regulate the minerals and mining sector to ensure economic development, employment and ensure transformation and 

environmental compliance.

Programme Objective: To transform the minerals and mining sector into one that competitively contributes to the sustainable 

development in the country.

The Mineral Regulation Branch has now completed its  fth year since inception. The 2010/11  nancial year was marked by signi  cant 

dynamics that impacted on the mining industry and will be deliberated upon. The primary function of the Branch is processing, 

 nalisation of applications, monitoring and evaluation of rights under the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, 2002 

(MPRDA).

The Department, through Mineral Regulation Branch, initiated the revision of internal business processes for applications in terms of 

the MPRDA to enhance internal processes and improve service delivery.

The Branch commenced a process of addressing cases of double grantings or overlaps. This took the form of high level visits to 

the Regional of  ces and working through all the cases with the right holders. In addressing these cases, applicants were involved 

with a view to demonstrating that there was no malicious intent. The process was conducted in a transparent, accountable manner.  

Identi  ed cases of double granting that were attended to (including unregistrable rights) were less than 120, out of a total of 26 000 

applications that were processed since the implementation of the MPRDA, representing less than 1%.  

Some of the errors were occasioned by consultants to applicants who submitted sketch plans with incorrect polygons leading to 

overlaps. Regrettably departmental of  cials were blamed when these matters were detected or reported. In other instances, changes 

in property descriptions, inability of the National Mining Promotion System (NMPS) to effectively detect and manage competing 

applications, gaps between appeals process and processing of applications have also contributed to these problems.

The Branch conducted compliance inspections during the moratorium period the results of which indicate the following:

Non compliance on the part of right holders with regard to failure to commence with prospecting activities within 120 days as • 
stipulated in the contract. 

Cases of suspected fronting by some right holders, wherein misleading information was submitted leading to unsustainable • 
mining transactions. 

Overuse of consultants by applicants to a disempowering extent. Some right holders could not be contacted because the entire • 
data was lost when the consultants’ services were discontinued.

Applicants who have not complied with their prospecting work programmes by engaging in extensive drilling, without amending • 
their work programmes and  nancial provision for rehabilitation thus increasing the state’s exposure to risk. 

Illegal drilling in some areas leading to increased hazards to communities, land owners, etc.• 

Right-holders whose companies have been de-registered or liquidated and the Department (regulator) was not informed • 

Holders of rights who cannot be traced or located.• 

Diamond producers not registered with the South African Diamond and Precious Metals Regulator resulting in incompleteness • 
of information on diamonds mined and sold legally  

Disposal of Rights without Ministerial consent in terms of Section 11 of the MPRDA• 

PROGRAMME 3: MINERAL REGULATION
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The BEE partners failing to attend pre-arranged site visits without valid reasons.• 

Right holders continuously postponed inspection dates scheduled by Regional Of  ces to the extent that of  cials started making • 
inspection notices a directive; which yielded positive results.

Documents such as Environmental Management Programmes, Prospecting Works Programmes, and Annual progress / • 
performance reports not on site during visits.

Financial provision and performance assessment reports were not submitted annually by some mining companies and right • 
holders. 

In some cases, right holders were operating without approved Environmental Management Plans (EMPs) • 

Some right holders failed to apply for closure certi  cates• 

Challenges with denial of access to right holders by land owners.• 

Procedurally, all cases of non compliance were followed by the issuance of Section 93 notices as well as section 47 (notices) which 

relate to the procedure to remedy failures or the cancellation of the Right respectively. Due to the Departments zero tolerance attitude 

towards non compliance, those who were found to have transgressed were and are being dealt with in the appropriate manner. 

The South African Mineral Resources Administration System (SAMRAD)

The process of developing an integrated electronic system commenced during the 2009/10  nancial year. The system allows for a 

process of an integrated management of information and improved management of the mining industry. Due to the NMPS system 

limitations, a decision was taken to expand the new SAMRAD system within the Department, starting with the Mineral Regulation 

branch. 

The mandate was for the Mineral Regulation Branch to  rstly develop a transparent online application system that makes it possible 

for the public to freely view the spatial locality of the applications in terms of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act 

“MPRDA” (Act 28 of 2002), for them to check the status of their own applications. Secondly, to develop a system that eliminates the 

risk of spatial error, and thirdly, ensures uniform standards and procedures when processing applications. 
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Purpose: To formulate mineral related policies and promote the mining and minerals industry of South Africa thus making it attractive 

to investors.

Measurable objective: Through research, provide relevant information that will enhance global competitiveness, review policies and 

formulate legislation in order to achieve transformation and attract new investment into South Africa’s minerals industry.

Service delivery objectives and indicators: 

The performance of the mining industry for the period 2010 demonstrated signi  cant recovery from the preceding implosion of 

the global economic and  nancial crisis. To this extent, the aggregated extraction rate grew at a phenomenal 5.8% relative to a 

contraction experienced in the preceding year. This performance con  rms our view that recovery is now well underway and that the 

next commodities boom has begun in earnest.

Synchronously, employment in the mining industry shrunk by 5.1% in 2009, although employment of women grew by a staggering 

11% in the same year. The employment of women in the sector started from a low base, indicating that efforts to diversify the 

workforce are beginning to bear fruits. In 2010, total employment grew by 1.2%, with women employment growing by a further 15.6%. 

Total employment in mining reached 498 055, falling marginally short of breaking through the half a million threshold. Employment 

in mining continued to grow during the year, and will continue to do so in the future, given the current interventions that are aimed 

at positioning this industry along a sustainable growth trajectory resulting in further creation of decent jobs, in line with the national 

developmental priorities. These interventions include the development of a national mining sector strategy, the bene  ciation strategy 

as well as the reviewed Mining Charter. 

The Branch successfully led the development of a “strategy for the sustainable growth and meaningful transformation of South 

Africa’s mining industry”, which recognises that the country missed an opportunity to leverage from the previous commodities boom 

due to a number of binding constraints to growth. This strategy identi  es a set of modalities of mitigating against such constraints 

and further emphasises the mutual inclusivity of competitiveness and transformation. The strategy is currently serving before Cabinet 

processes and should be approved in the course of 2011.

The mineral bene  ciation strategy was presented to the Inter–Ministerial Committee on Economic development, Employment and 

Infrastructure, at which we were directed to consult relevant economic departments as part of expediting the process of  nalising the 

document. Such consultations have been done and the document will be ready to serve before Cabinet during the second quarter 

of the  nancial year.

A Cabinet approval was sought to use the African Exploration, Mining and Financing (Pty) Ltd (AEMFC) as a nucleus for the 

establishment of State Owned Mining Company. The work on hiving off the AEMFC from its current wholly owned status by the 

Central energy Fund is already at the advanced stage and will culminate into establishment of the AEMFC as a standalone entity.

The management of derelict and ownerless mines is a key deliverable of the Department given the serious challenges that the 

country faces from such mines, especially as it includes problems related to acid mine drainage. Following the Minister’s approval 

of the strategy for the management and rehabilitation of mines, the Branch has since developed a rehabilitation procedure manual 

which will be approved in 2011. As part of the rehabilitation programme,  ve sites were successfully rehabilitated during the 2010/11 

 nancial year, creating a total number of 221 employment opportunities.  10 sites have been prioritised for 2011/12  nancial year and 

work in this regard is already underway. 
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Department of Mineral Resources

We are pleased to present our report for the  nancial year ended 31 March 2011.

Audit Committee Members and Attendance:

All the Audit Committee members of the former Department of Minerals and Energy as well as one (1) new member were ap-

pointed as members of the Department of Mineral Resources on 1 September 2010. The Audit Committee, whose members 

are listed hereunder, meets at least four (4) times per annum as per its approved charter. During the current year four (4) 

meetings were held. The attendance of the meetings was as follows:

Name of Member Number of Meetings Held Number of meetings Attended
Name of Member Number of meetings held Number of meetings 

attended
Mr. S Sithole (Chairperson) 4 4
Ms EH Heyns 3 *0
Dr DP van der Nest 4 4
Ms Z Musamirapamwe #2 1

*Due to ill-health and subsequently passing on in December 2010.

# Appointed 1 September 2010

Audit Committee Responsibility

The Audit Committee reports that it has, during the year under review, adopted the reviewed Audit Committee Charter in line 

with the requirements of Sections 38(1) (a) and 77 of the Public Finance Management Act, Act no. 1 of 1999 and Treasury 

Regulation 3.1. The Audit Committee further reports that it has satis  ed its responsibilities for the year and has conducted its 

affairs in compliance with its charter.

The effectiveness of internal control

The department has designed the system of internal control to provide cost effective assurance that the department’s goals 

will be economically, effectively, and ef  ciently achieved. In line with the requirements of the PFMA, the International Stan-

dards for the Professional Practice of Internal Auditing issued by the Institute and Internal Auditors, and the King III Report 

on Corporate Governance, Internal Audit provided the Audit Committee and management with assurance that the internal 

controls are appropriate and effective. This was achieved by means the provision of both the assurance and consulting 

services on the risk management, governance, and control processes. From the various reports of the internal auditors, 

recommendations were made to management to address issues as reported. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the 

activities of the Compliance Of  ce which, amongst others, include risk management. The Audit Committee was also satis  ed 

with the content and quality of monthly and quarterly reports prepared and issued by the Accounting Of  cer during the year 

under review.

Accordingly, with the exception of the reported de  ciencies and deviations, we can report that the system of internal control 

over  nancial reporting for the period under review was adequate, effective and ef  cient.

R
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Annual Report 2010/11

Evaluation of Financial Statements

The Audit Committee has:

Reviewed the department’s compliance with legal and regulatory provisions; � 
Reviewed signi  cant adjustments resulting from the audit;� 
Reviewed the department� ’s Half-yearly Financial Statements; 

Reviewed the department� ’s state of readiness report for the annual regularity audit; and 

Reviewed the department� ’s Annual Financial Statements.

Internal Audit

The Audit Committee reviewed and approved the department’s Internal Audit Charter, which adequately establishes Internal 

Audit’s purpose, authority, and responsibility.   

The Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly reports of internal auditors to ensure the internal audit activity’s effectiveness. 

The Audit Committee is satis  ed that, although there was lack of capacity due to the split process, the internal audit function 

operated effectively and that it addressed the risks pertinent to the department in its audits.

Auditor-General

The Audit Committee reviewed the Auditor-General’s report and management letter and further met with the Auditor-General 

to ensure that there are no unresolved issues. The Committee has taken notice of the de  ciencies in the system of internal 

control reported by the Auditor-General.  These matters have been referred to the Accounting Of  cer for resolution.    

_________________________________

Chairperson

REPORT OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. General review of the state of  nancial affairs 

During this reporting period, the department engaged in a process of re-de  ning and realigning its internal and administrative 

processes, policies and procedures for effectively responding to its focused mandate and good progress has been made in this 

arena. The focus was also on  lling the gaps created as a result of the split in order to strengthen the human capacity within 

the support services function.  

In its efforts to improve and integrate its services as well as introducing a long-term solution to the issues reported by the 

Auditor- General on revenue administration, the department made a good investment and acquired a system for automating 

the administration of the mineral resources. The  rst module has been completed while the remaining ones (including revenue 

management) will be  nalised in 2011/12.      

Subsequent to the split of Department of Minerals and Energy (DME), the Department of Mineral Resources assumed the role 

of a transferring department and drew up a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) for splitting the assets and liabilities of the DME 

as set out in section 42 of the Public Finance Management Act.  The Financial Accounting and Reporting guide on Transfer of 

functions issued by National Treasury during 2010 was followed as well as the MoA both Accounting Of  cers signed during the 

transition period (2009/10  nancial year) was taken into account. The MoA was presented to the Department of Energy and 

discussions were held in order to agree on the entire inventory list. The DMR Accounting Of  cer has since signed the  nal MoA 

and it has been sent to Department of Energy.   

During the year under review, an amount of R7,974 million has been reported as irregular expenditure.  Off the total report 

R7,224 million was picked up during the audit process and has therefore not been condoned.  R3,125 million of that amount 

relates to the restructuring of an operating lease to  nance lease while R3,701 million was incurred as a result of acquiring 

goods and services without following proper procurement procedures.  The matter has been referred to National Treasury for 

investigation. 

In an effort to eliminate cases of non-compliance with the departmental procurement policy and procedures, the following 

measures have been implemented:

 A monthly report on suspected irregular expenditure is drafted and circulated to all responsibility managers by the Finance 

component.  

Responsibility managers  report back to Finance indicating disciplinary measures taken against the transgressors 

The Accounting Of  cer only grants condonation based on the corrective measures taken by the Responsibility Manager.

Spending outlook

The department was appropriated a total budget of R995.842 million. An amount of R326,505 million was allocated towards 

Compensation of Employees, R210,311 million towards acquisition of goods and services, R438.781 million for transfer to 

Public and Private Corporations, 

Report by the Accounting Of  cer to the Executive Authority and Parliament of 
the Republic of South Africa.
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Departmental Agencies and Households, R20.194 million for the acquisition of capital assets and R50 thousand on writing off of 

losses. 

The table below illustrates the utilization of voted funds per economic classi  cation from 2006/7 to 2010/11.

Table and graph for voted funds: 

UTILISATION OF VOTED FUNDS

 2010/11 2009/10 2008/09 2007/08 2006/07

 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 326,457 403,323 330,089 290,561 246,154

GOODS AND SERVICES 206,504 263,475 269,408 277,222 254,665

PAYMENT FOR CAPITAL ASSETS 23,566 48,690 18,855 7,470 6,804

TRANSFER AND SUBSIDIES 438,120 3,828,303 3,111,061 2,366,512 2,099,917

THEFT AND LOSSES 50 925 593 5,602 135

UNSPENT 1,145 137,288 56,235 27,570 27,425

TOTALS (BUDGET) 995,842 4,682,004 3,786,241 2,974,937 2,635,100

% UNDER SPENDING OF VOTE 0.11% 2.90% 0.98% 0.93% 1.04%

UTILISATION OF VOTED FUNDS

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

The department’s budget was fairly shared by the public entities under the control of the ministry and the departmental programmes 

and translated into R 437.626 (44 %) and R558.216 (56 %) respectively. 

While the department had allocated R326,505 million of the total budget to Compensation of Employees, R326.457 million was 

utilized for the reporting period. The spending not only relates to the employees currently on the establishment but costs associated 

with contractual employees, interns and learners.   

An amount of R206.504 million was used against a budget of R210,311 million to defray cost of goods and services acquired for the 

realization of departmental programmes during 2010/11. The costs relating to computer services registered an amount of R21million 

while consultants and contractors costs amounted to R17 million. The costs that are driven by personnel such as travelling, inventory 

etc recorded spending in relation with the personnel numbers. The venues and facilities, catering and administrative costs recorded 

at low levels owing to the cost containment measures that remain in force.

Table for analysis of unspent funds 2010/11

ANALYSIS OF UNSPENT FUNDS 2010/11

 2010/11 2010/11

 R'000 %

COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 48 0.01%

GOODS AND SERVICES 3,807 1.81%

FINANCIAL TRANSACTIONS IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 1 1.96%

PAYMENT FOR CAPITAL ASSETS (3,372) (60.64)%

TRANSFER AND SUBSIDIES 661 57.23%

TOTAL UNSPENT 1,145 0.11%

The department recorded a 0.11% under spending which is attributable to commitments made within goods and services for consulting 

services for systems development and other IT services which were not  nalised /delivered by year-end.  

Virement:
The following virement approvals were granted by the Accounting Of  cer in terms of section 43(1) of the Public Finance Management 

Act, 1999 (Act 1 of 1999) to utilise savings under main divisions of the vote towards the defrayment of expenditure under other main 

divisions within the vote:

REPORT OF THE ACCOUNTING OFFICER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Shift funds from R'000 Motivation

Programme 2: Promotion of Mine Safety and Health 4,975

 The under spending was due to vacancies 

in respect of inspectorate posts as a result of 

shortage of skills.

Programme 4: Mineral Policy and Promotion 2,499

Under-spending associated with the post-

ponement of the of the Acid Mine Drainage 

and Derelict and Ownerless mines to next Fi-

nancial year.

TOTAL 7,474

Shift funds to R'000 Motivation

Programme 1: Administration 1,217

 Major spending pressures within the branch 

relating to centralised services rendered on 

behalf of the whole department.

Programme 3: Mineral Regulation 6,257

Spending associated with the compliance 

audit projected the branch embarked on 

during the  nancial year.

TOTAL 7,474

2. Service rendered by the department 

2.1   The mission
The mission of the Department of Mineral Resources is to promote and regulate the Mineral and Mining energy sector for 

transformation, growth, development and ensure that All South Africans derive sustainable bene  t from the country’s wealth.  

In order to achieve the above mission the department is split into four key programmes, which are responsible for; amongst 

other things:

- ensuring safe mining of minerals under healthy working conditions – Promotion of Mine Health and Safety

- regulating the minerals and mining sector to promote economic growth, employment, transformation and   

  sustainable development – Mineral Regulation

- Formulating mineral related policies and promote the mining and minerals industry of South Africa thus   

  making it  attractive to investors – Mineral Policy and Promotion

- Support services mainly focus on providing support service to the department

2.2   Tariff policy

Historically, the tariffs used to be levied in terms of the Minerals Act, 1991 (Act 50 of 1991), for State owned Mineral Rights. 

The tariffs were and are predetermined and approved by National Treasury. Prospecting fees and royalties are globally 

competitive and do not inhibit the initiation of new mining industry projects. 

  Exploration fees

The exploration fees were charged in terms of the Minerals Act, 1991 (Act 50 of 1991) where the State was the holder of the 

mineral rights before 1 May 2004. The approved rates, as from 1 April 2003, started at R3, 00/hectare for the  rst year and 

escalated at R1, 00/hectare for the maximum period of 5 years determined by a prospecting lease. For any renewal period, 

the fee doubled and escalated at R2, 00/hectare/year thereafter. For offshore exploration the same rates applied but for 

square kilometers. 
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

Due to the promulgation of the Mineral and Petroleum Resources Development Act, Act 28 of 2002 (MPRDA), new prescribed 

rates apply on all new prospecting rights granted including privately owned land as from 1 May 2004 – see regulation 76 of 

the new MPRDA. Rights already granted at the time of promulgation, will continue with prospecting fees as set out above. 

Exploitation fees (Royalties)

Until the Royalty Bill which came into effect 1 March 2010, any new mining rights granted from 1 May 2004 carry no royalties, 

the royalties payable were 1% of gross revenue for all minerals and 5% of gross revenue for diamonds for existing rights. 

Minimum royalties

Minimum royalties were payable, as a “deposit”, in advance whether mining takes place or not in any speci  c year, the State 

would receive a measure of a return for any “mining permission” granted.  Minimum royalties, as always, may be offset against 

actual royalties payable.  The general formula for the determination of minimum royalties has been levied at “ten” percent 

of the average annual royalties payable in terms of the business plan submitted. The collection of royalties has since the 

implementation of the Royalties Act moved to SARS. The Department is however  nalising the collection of outstanding fees 

that were receivable prior to 1st March 2010. 

2.3  Free services
This does not apply to the department.

3.    Capacity constraints
During the period under review, the department experienced serious and diverse capacity challenges especially in both 

support services and service deliver programmes.  With regards to Support services, securing funding and timely recruiting 

and  lling positions that resulted from the split of Department of Minerals and Energy was the major challenge, while the line 

function battled with loss of human capital as a result of inability to retain the professional staff, especially Inspectors and 

Mineral Economists. The implementation of Resolution 3 of 2009 also aggravated this challenge and it also created structural 

problems in relation to reporting lines. 

In addressing some of the capacity constraints, the department managed to implement a number of training programmes 

as identi  ed in the Workplace Skills Plan namely the Secretarial Development Programme, Project Management for Middle 

Management, Advance Management Development Programme and the Emerging Management Development Programme, 

Executive Development programme. The department also implemented a coaching and mentoring programmes, as well talent 

management strategy.   

4. Utilisation of donor funds
The department did not receive any donor funds during the period under review.

5. Trading entities and public entities
The department continues to monitor the performance of the entities under its control with speci  c reference to governance 

and  nancial management. The table below illustrates the performance of the entities reporting to the Minister of Mineral 

Resources in relation to the Auditor General’s report for 2009/10  nancial year. It is clear from this report that the  nancial 

controls and monitoring systems put in place are beginning to bear fruits. During 2010/11 the department continued with 

its oversight over these entities. Although the Auditor-General’s report for 2010/11 will only be  nalised in July 2011, it is 

expected that the entities will continue in this path.
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ENTITY SOURCE OF FUNDUNG
AUDIT OPINION

2009 / 10 2008 / 09

Council for Mineral Technology and 

Research (Mintek) 
Own and government grant Unquali  ed Unquali  ed

South African Diamond and Precious 

Metals Regulator 
Own and government grant Unquali  ed Unquali  ed

Mine Health and Safety Council 

(MHSC) 
Own and government grant Unquali  ed Unquali  ed

Council for Geoscience (CGS) Own and government grant Unquali  ed Unquali  ed

State Diamond Trader (SDT) 
Own (bail out during 

2009/10)
Unquali  ed Unquali  ed

Recipient

2010/11

Purpose of transfer paymentActual transfer

R'000

SBT Trust and Council for Geoscience  35,671

Assistance to marginal mines in the form of pumping 

subsidies (R3m) and research to prevent ingress of 

water into underground holdings (CGS:R32.7m)

Council for Geoscience 136,505 Core funding in terms of establishing act

Council for Mineral Technology Research 195,840
R165.8 million -Core funding in terms of establishing 

act  and R30 million - Mine Rehabilitation projects
South African Diamond and Precious Metals 

Regulator
40,643 Core funding in terms of establishing act

Mine Health and Safety Council 5,358 Core funding in terms of establishing act

Industrial Development Corporation of SA (Small 

scale mining)
23,609 Small scale mining projects

6. Organisations to whom transfer payments have been made
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 8. Corporate governance arrangements
The department has continued to strengthen its checks and balance mechanisms so as to ensure compliance with the 

relevant legislation, ef  ciency, governance, risk management, and internal control processes. 

To maintain its independence, the Internal Audit Activity appropriately reports administratively to the Accounting 

Of  cer and functionally to the Audit Committee. The Unit’s authority includes unlimited access to all the staff, 

information, as well as properties of the Department. The Function obtains its mandate from the Internal Audit 

Charter, which was reviewed and approved in the reporting period. The Unit developed and obtained the approval 

of its plans, i.e. the annual plan as well as the rolling three-year strategic plan. The plans were based on key 

risks facing the Department and also took into consideration other factors such as the Auditor-General’s prior 

year’s reports, management’s as well as the Audit Committee’s requests, etc. The status of the progress on the 

performance of the audits on the annual plan was presented to the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. 

 The audits conducted during the year were mainly compliance, information technology, performance and 

performance information, and  nancial. The Unit also performed investigations that originated from management 

requests and those from other organs of the state such as the Public Protector and the Presidential Hotline. 

 The Unit’s operations are guided by the requirements set out in the legislative prescripts (e.g. the PFMA and the 

Treasury Regulations) and the standards set by the relevant professional bodies (e.g. the Institute of Internal 

Auditors).

The department has established an Audit Committee in terms of Section 77 of the PFMA. Four (4) members were 

appointed into the Department’s Audit Committee, which included all the three (3) members that constituted the 

former Department of Minerals and Energy’s Committee. The members of the Audit Committee have the requisite 

knowledge and competence to deal with  nancial, risk management, governance, ethical and other matters that 

pertain to its responsibility. The Committee operated in line with its Charter, which was reviewed and approved in 

the reporting period. During the  nancial period under review, the Committee met four (4) times. The matters tabled 

for consideration by the Committee included the review of  nancial statements, the Auditor-General’s management 

letters, reports and activities of the Internal Audit Activity and the Risk Management Of  ce, and matters that relate 

to compliance with laws, regulations and policies.

 The department continues to minimise risks that it is exposed to by ensuring that all major risks are proactively 

identi  ed, assessed and managed to acceptable levels. The Department’s risk committee continued in its oversight 

role of risk management activities in the department. A strategic risk assessment workshop was conducted in order 

to identify the array of risks the department is exposed to. As a result of this exercise all branch risk pro  les were 

developed and responsibilities for managing these risks were assigned to management and staff. Risk pro  les 

developed from the assessment process are used to inform the department’s internal audit plans. The department 

continued to implement its fraud prevention and anti corruption strategy which is in line with minimum anti corruption 

capacity requirements.

 During the year the accounting of  cer was compliant with the general and reporting responsibilities respectively 

detailed in sections 38 and 40 of the Public Finance Management Act 1 of 1999 as amended. The department has 

also not had cases where con  ict of interest was reported in  its administrative processes.

9. Discontinued activities/activities to be discontinued
The split of the erstwhile Department of Minerals and Energy has resulted in the transfer to certain functions from the DMR 

to the Department of Energy.  The affected functions are:
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Hydrocarbons, Energy Planning and Cleaning programme – transfer to Department of Energy since 01 April 2010

The activities in relation to this programme included:

- Promoting sustainable use of energy resources through integrated energy planning, developing policies and   

  regulations  and

- Managing petroleum, coal and natural gas sectors

 Electricity, Nuclear and Clean Energy Programme – transferred to Department of Energy since 01 April   
 2010

The activities in relation to this programme included:

- Developing, implementing and monitoring electricity policies and programs

- Improving the governance of the nuclear sector, speci  cally in relation to nuclear safety, nuclear non-proliferation  

  and nuclear technology.

- Lastly, facilitating the implementation of renewal energy, energy ef  cient technology as well as regulating and  

  promoting  the clean development mechanism activities.

10. New/proposed activities
The department will continue with its current activities and no new activities will be added during 2011/12  nancial year.

11. Asset management
All assets procured during the year have been captured on the assets register. The asset register has also been successfully 

reconciled with the  nancial accounting system of the department. The detail to this item is presented in notes 30 to 32 in 

the Annual Financial Statements.

12. Inventories
Opening, movements and closing balances for inventories were properly captured and are reported accordingly in Annexure 

5. 

13. Events after the reporting date
There are no events after the reporting date noted for reporting.

14. Information on predetermined objectives 
A Quarterly Monitoring Report (QMR) on Performance Information is submitted to the Director-General for approval on a 

quarterly basis.

These quarterly reports highlight areas of concern for noting while also presenting interventions already in pursuit. Each 

branch head submits performance information with a signed compliance declaration. The Strategy Risk & Monitoring (SRM/

Compliance Of  ce) is responsible for analysis of performance information. This analysis examines performance across the 
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Department in line with the approved strategic plan document. The analysis concentrates on the completeness, reasonability 

and relevance of the reported information. The SRM then consolidates and forwards the report to Internal Audit for veri  cation. 

At year-end, the consolidated report is made available to Auditor- General for audit purposes.

15. SCOPA resolutions
No resolutions were received from SCOPA in respect of the 2009/10 audit report.

16. Prior modi  cations to audit reports

Nature of quali  cation, disclaimer, adverse opinion 

and matters of non-compliance
Financial year in which it  rst arose

Progress made in clearing / re-

solving the matter

Receivables for departmental revenue: Incomplete-

ness, inconsistency and inaccuracy
2009/10

A system of monthly review of 

manual revenue registers from all 

regions was introduced since Oc-

tober 2010.

With effect from 1 March 2011 

capacity at the regional of  ces 

was increased. 

Engaged in process of developing 

a revenue management elec-

tronic system of which the user 

requirements have been signed 

off and the service provider has 

already been appointed.

17. Exemptions and deviations received from National Treasury
There were no exemptions and deviation approval requested from National Treasury during the reporting period.

18. Comparative  gures
In line with the requirements of the guidelines on Transfer of functions issued by National Treasury during 2010, all amounts 

re  ected under 2009/10 relate to the Department of Minerals and Energy.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO PARLIAMENT ON VOTE NO 31: 
DEPARTMENT OF MINERAL RESOURCES 
REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Introduction 
I have audited the accompanying  nancial statements of the Department of Mineral Resources, which comprise the 

appropriation statement, the statement of  nancial position as at 31 March 2011, and the statement of  nancial performance, 

statement of changes in net assets and cash  ow statement for the year then ended, a summary of signi  cant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information, as set out on pages 139 to 186. 

Accounting of  cer’s responsibility for the  nancial statements
The accounting of  cer is responsible for the preparation of these  nancial statements in accordance with the Departmental 

Reporting Framework prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of the Public Finance Management Act, 1999 

(Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA, and for such internal control as management determines necessary to enable the preparation of 

 nancial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor- General’s responsibility
As required by section 188 of the Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 (Act No. 108 of 1996) and section   4 

of the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), my responsibility is to express an opinion on these 

 nancial statements based on my audit.

I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing and General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in 

Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 2010.  Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and 

plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the  nancial statements are free from material 

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the  nancial 

statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the  nancial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the auditor 

considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the  nancial statements in order to design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s 

internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the  nancial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is suf  cient and appropriate to provide a basis for my quali  ed audit opinion.

Basis for quali  ed opinion 

Receivables for Departmental Revenue
Section 38 (1)(a)(i) of the PFMA requires that a department has and maintains effective, ef  cient and transparent systems of 

 nancial and risk management and internal control and section 38(1)(c) of the PFMA requires that an accounting of  cer of an 

department take effective and appropriate steps to collect all money due to the entity.

The receivables for departmental revenue balance of R72,2 million (2010: R72,5 million) included in disclosure note 24 to the 

 nancial statements, is misstated as a result of omissions in respect of payments received and not recorded, amounts due 

not being raised and incorrect interest calculations on outstanding balances. The department did not identify and correct all 

the errors that exist in the balance as a result the extent of the error cannot be determined. The department’s records did not 

allow me to perform alternative audit procedures to satisfy me of the receivables for departmental revenue. Consequently, I 

was unable to obtain suf  cient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness, valuation and 

allocation of and rights pertaining to the receivables for departmental revenue balance. 

1.

2.

3.

4

5.

6.

7.

8.
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Revenue
The department could not provide suf  cient appropriate audit evidence to support journal entries of R50,4 million debited 

to revenue. The journal entries were based on total receipts from royalty debtors without reconciling the payments received 

to outstanding debt balances thereby understating the revenue amount. Further, the credit entries in the revenue account 

include receipts from prospecting fees that have not been appropriately reconciled to outstanding receivables balances. There 

were no satisfactory alternative audit procedures that I could perform to obtain reasonable assurance that all revenue was 

properly recorded. Consequently, I did not obtain suf  cient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the completeness, 

accuracy and classi  cation of revenue of R30,3 million.

Payables
Due to the limitations identi  ed in the paragraph above I am also unable to conclude on the existence, completeness, valuation 

and allocation of and obligations pertaining to the payables balance to the amount of R53,5 million.  The department’s records 

did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures regarding the payables balance. 

Provisions
Included in note 29, impairments and other provisions, to the  nancial statements are receivables for departmental revenue 

debt balances that are outstanding for longer than three years amounting to R36,3 million (2010: R36,5 million), which the 

department impairs in accordance with its policy on impairments. I am unable to obtain suf  cient appropriate audit evidence to 

conclude on the existence, completeness, valuation and allocation and obligations of the other provisions balance due to the 

limitation reported in paragraphs 7 and 8 above on receivables for departmental revenue debt balance,.

Contingent liabilities
The contingent liabilities, as disclosed in note 19 to the  nancial statements, include the department’s obligations in respect of 

abandoned mines. The department is and has been conducting rehabilitation activities in respect of the abandoned mines in 

accordance with the National Strategy for the Management of Derelict and Ownerless Mines in South Africa. The department 

is still in the process of establishing a  nancial estimate of the liability with the result that management has taken a decision not 

to disclose a provision in this regard. The department’s records did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures 

regarding the department’s obligation in respect of abandoned mines. Consequently I was unable to obtain suf  cient 

appropriate audit evidence to satisfy myself as to the existence, completeness and valuation of the contingent liabilities and 

the corresponding impact on the provisions balance.      

Quali  ed opinion
In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for quali  ed opinion paragraphs, the 

 nancial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the  nancial position of the Department of Mineral Resources as at 

31 March 2011 and its  nancial performance and cash  ows for the year ended, in accordance with Departmental Reporting 

Framework prescribed by National Treasury and the requirements of PFMA.

  Emphasis of matters
   I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modi  ed in respect of these matters:

  
  Restatement of corresponding  gures
As disclosed in notes 23, 24, 29 to the  nancial statements, the corresponding  gures for 31 March 2010 have been restated 

as a result of an error discovered during 2011 in the  nancial statements of the Department of Mineral Resources at, and for 

the year ended, 31 March 2010.

Material losses
Material losses to the amount of R5,8 million were incurred as a result of the assets that could not be veri  ed during the asset 

veri  cation process conducted for the  nancial year ended 31 March 2011.

9.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.
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Accruals
Accruals which exceed the payment term of 30 days as detailed in the Treasury Regulation 8.2.3 amount to R41,1 million. 

This amount, in turn, exceeds the voted funds to be surrendered of R1,1 million as per the statement of  nancial performance 

by R40 million.  The amount of R40 million would therefore have constituted unauthorised expenditure had the amount due 

been paid in time.

Additional matters 
I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modi  ed in respect of these matters:

Unaudited supplementary schedules
The supplementary information set out on pages 175 to 186 does not form part of the  nancial statements and is presented 

as additional information.  I have not audited these schedules and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

Financial reporting framework
Section 20(2)(a) of the PAA requires me to express an opinion on the fair presentation of the  nancial statements of the 

Department of Mineral Resources. As the  nancial reporting framework applied by the department is a compliance framework, 

this would have resulted in my opinion stating that the  nancial statements were prepared, in all material respects, in 

accordance with the applicable  nancial reporting framework, but for this requirement.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 
In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010 issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 

December 2010, I include below my  ndings on the annual performance report as set out on pages 27 to 96 and material 

non-compliance with laws and regulations applicable to the department.

Predetermined objectives 
There were no material  ndings on the annual performance report concerning the presentation, usefulness and reliability of 

the information.

Compliance with laws and regulations 

Annual  nancial statements, performance and annual report
The accounting of  cer submitted  nancial statements for auditing that were not prepared in all material aspects in accordance 

with generally recognised accounting practice and supported by full and proper records as required by section 40(1) (a) 

and) (b) of the PFMA. Certain material misstatements identi  ed by the Auditor-General South Africa with regards to various 

account balances and disclosure notes were subsequently corrected, however the uncorrected material misstatements 

resulted in the  nancial statements receiving a quali  ed audit opinion in contravention of section 40(3)(a).

Revenue Management
The accounting of  cer did not develop and implement appropriate processes that provide for the identi  cation,       

collection, recording, reconciliation and safeguarding of information about revenue to ensure that all money due to the department 

is collected as per the requirements of section 38(1)(c)(ii) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulation 7.2.1.

Expenditure Management
The accounting of  cer did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure, as per the requirements of section 38(1)

(c)(ii) of the PFMA.

The accounting of  cer did not immediately upon the discovery of irregular expenditure report it to the relevant treasury as per 

the requirements of section 38(1)(g) of the PFMA.

Payments due to creditors were not always settled within 30 days from receipt of an invoice as per the requirements of 

section 38(1)(f) of the PFMA and TR 8.2.3.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.
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INTERNAL CONTROL 
In accordance with the PAA and in terms of General Notice 1111 of 2010, issued in Government Gazette 33872 of 15 December 

2010, I considered internal control relevant to my audit, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 

of internal control. The matters reported below are limited to the signi  cant de  ciencies that resulted in the basis for quali  ed 

opinion and the  ndings on compliance with laws and regulations included in this report.

• Leadership

Ongoing monitoring and supervision undertaken to enable management to determine whether internal controls over  nancial 

reporting is present and functioning were not adequate which led to the material uncorrected and corrected misstatements on 

the  nancial statements and non compliance with laws and regulations.

The uncorrected misstatements that form the basis for the quali  ed audit opinion are as a result of management not 

implementing timely corrective action to address internal control de  ciencies.

• Financial and performance management

There is inadequate record keeping as a result complete and accurate information is not accessible and available to support 

 nancial reporting. The department does not have appropriate systems of internal control relevant to the nature of the 

operations, as a result appropriate estimates for provisions could not be determined. 

There are inadequate controls over the daily and monthly reporting processing and reconciling of transactions. 

Although the department has extended signi  cant effort to address the root causes that resulted in the previous year’s audit 

quali  cation on the receivables for departmental revenue  nancial statements balance, the lack of an appropriate debtors’ 

management system still proved a challenge in the current year resulting in an audit quali  cation in the current  nancial year. 

Pretoria

19 September 2011

28.
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Appropriation per programme

2010/11 2009/10

APPROPRIATION 

STATEMENT

Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting of 

Funds
Virement

Final

Appropriation

Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure

as % of 

 nal 

appropriation

Final

Appropriation

Actual

Expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

1. Programme 1

Current 

payment
        212,905               24 (4,595)       208,334 204,555 3,779 98.2%       224,546       223,325 

Transfers and 

subsidies
            1,095                 60              (27)             1,128                467               661 41.4%                784                450 

Payment for 

capital assets
            9,699            2,865 5,818           18,382           21,685 (3,303) 118.0%           24,135           24,727 

Payment 

for  nancial 

assets

                    -                  -               21                21               20                  1 95.2%              751              751 

223,699 2,949 1,217 227,865 226,727 1,138 250,216 249,253

2. Programme 2

Current 

payment 
        136,233             (131)      (4,467) 131,635         131,702           (67) 100.1%         129,031        128,894 

Transfers and 

subsidies
            5,358                   -                  3             5,361             5,361                   - 100.0%             5,125             5,125 

Payment for 

capital assets
               479              131          (526) 84                  15             69 17.9%             4,443            4,406 

Payment 

for  nancial 

assets

                    -                    -                 15                  15                  14                   1 93.3%                118                118 

142,070 - (4,975) 137,095 137,092 3 138,717 138,543

3. Programme 3 

Current 

payment 
        171,687       (30,162)         4,697         146,222         146,079          143 99.9%         143,375         135,890 

Transfers and 

subsidies
          40,643                   -                24           40,667           40,667 

                    

- 
100.0%           39,449          39,447 

Payment for 

capital assets
                 24              162            1526           1, 712           1, 852 (140) 108.2%           14,742           14,659 

Payment 

for  nancial 

assets

                    -                   -                10                  10                  10                   - 100.0%                  12                  12 

212,354 (30,000) 6,257 188,611 188,608 3 158,164 190,008

4. Programme  4

Current 

payment 
        56,094 (2,965)  (2,504) 50,625 50,625

                    

- 
100.0% 43,591 43,539

Transfers and 

subsidies
361,625 30,000                   - 391,625 391,625 -                 100.0% 26,058 26,058

Payment for 

capital assets
                    -                16                   -                  16                  15                   1 93.8%             4,127             4,127 

Payment 

for  nancial 

assets

                    -                    -                   5                    5                   5                    - 100.0% -                  -                  
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Appropriation per programme

2010/11 2009/10

APPROPRIATION 

STATEMENT

Adjusted 

Appropriation

Shifting of 

Funds
Virement

Final

Appropriation

Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure

as % of 

 nal 

appropriation

Final

Appropriation

Actual

Expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

417,719 27,051 (2,499) 442,271 442,270 1 73,776 73,724

5.   Programme 5

Current  

payment
56,271 56,154

Payment for 

capital assets
702 771

Payment 
for  nancial 
assets

6.   Programme 6

Current 

payment 
73,783 79,039

Transfers and 

subsidies
265,153 255,031

Payment for 

capital assets
- -

338,936 334,070

7.   Programme 7

Transfers and 

subsidies
3,665,222 3,541,605

3,665,222 3,541,605

TOTAL      995,842                  -                -      995,842      994,697 1,145 99.9%   4,682,004    45,841,28
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2010/11 2009/10

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

Final
Appropriation

Actual
Expenditure

TOTAL (brought 
forward)
Reconciliation with 
statement of  nancial 
performance

ADD

Departmental receipts 30,302 217,144

Direct Exchequer 

receipts

Aid assistance

Actual amounts per 
statement of  nancial 
performance (total 
revenue)

1,026,144 4,899,148

ADD

Aid assistance 5,849

Direct Exchequer 

payments

Prior year unauthorised 

expenditure approved 

without funding

Actual amounts per 
statement of  nancial 
performance (total 
expenditure)

994,697 4,550,565

5,849
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Appropriation per economic classi  cation

2010/11 2009/10

Adjusted
Appropriation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure
as % of  nal 

appropriation

Final
Appropriation

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current 
payments

Compensation of 
employees

        344,142        (3,459)      (14,178)         326,505         326,457          48 100,0%       395,590         403,323 

Goods and 
services

        232,777     (29,775)         7,309         210,311        206,504 3,807 98,2%        274,962         263,475

Transfers and 
subsidies 

Provinces and 
municipalities

1,107,957 1,074,553

Departmental 
agencies and 
accounts

        182,506       32,671                     -         215,177         215,177                     - 100,0%         291,816         291,814

Public 
corporations 
and private 
enterprises

        225,120       (2,671)                     -         222,449         222,449                     - 100,0%     2,561,778     2,461,445 

Households             1,095                  60                  -             1,155                494                661 42,8%                826                491 

Payments for 
capital assets

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

                    -                342 7,268 7,610 17,059 (9,449) 224.2%           22,960           22,879 

Machinery and 
equipment

          10,202            2,551 (1,450)           11,303             5,367 5,936 47,5%           23,898           24,505 

Software and 
other intangible 
assets

                    -                281            1,000                1,281              1,140             141 89,0%             1,291             1,306 

Payments for 
 nancial assets

                    -                     -                  51                  51                  50                    1 98,0%                926                924 

Total         995,842                     -                     -         995,842         994,697             1,145 99,9%         4,682,004         4,544,716 
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Programme 1

Detail per sub-programme           

Adjusted
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Expenditure
as % of  nal 

appropriation

Final
Appropriation

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

1.1    Ministry

Current payment           1,808              823           2,631          2,672              (41) 101,6%          3,450          2,240 

1.2    Management 

Current payment           24,522             1,033 (4,938) 20,617           20,574              43 99,8%           21,987           22,257 

Transfers and subsidies                   60 -                  60                     -                  60    

Payment for capital 

assets
                 31             1,856  (342)             1,545             1,165 380 75,4%             2,220             1,990 

Payment for  nancial 

assets
                       -                      -                   21                  21 

1.3    Corporate Services

Current payment         163,925           (1,009) (480)         162,436         163,336 (900) 100,6%         172,173         198,791 

Transfers and subsidies             1,095                 (27)             1,068                467                601 43,7%                784                450 

Payment for capital 

assets
            9,668             1,009 6,160           16,837           20,520 (3,683) 121,9%           21,915           22,737 

Payment for  nancial 
assets                    21                  21                  20                    1 95,2%                730                730 

1.4    Of  ce Accommoda-
tion

Current payment           22,650  - -           22,650           17,973             4,677 79,4%           26,936                  37 

Total      223,699           2,949          1,217       227,865       226,727           1,138 99,5%       250,216       249,253 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Statutory Appropriation per economic classi  cation

2010/11 2009/10

 Program 1 

Per Economic 
classi  cation                

Adjusted
Appropria-
tion

Shifting of 
Funds

Virement
Final
Appropria-
tion

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expenditure
as % of  nal 
appropria-
tion

Final
Appropriation

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current 
payments

Compensation of 
employees

    104,432        1,985  (15,624)        90,793     90,745               48 99.9%       102,731      109,782 

Goods and 
services

   108,473    (1,961)       11,029    117,541  113,810 3,731 96.8%      121,815      113,542 

Transfers and 
subsidies 

Households        1,095               60             (27)           1,128            467              661 41.4%              784            451 

Payments for 
capital assets

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

            342  7,268 7,610 17,059   (9,449) 224.2%           5,283         5,283 

Machinery and 
equipment

        9,699       2,242    (1,450)       10,491       4,625           5,866 44.1%         17,561        18,138 

Software and 
other intangible 
assets

                281                 281                 281             1,291             1,306 

Payments for 
 nancial assets

                 21                 21                21                     - 100.0%              751             751 

Total    223,699        2,949        1,217     227,865  226,727 1,138 99.5%         250,216         249,253 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Programme 2

Detail per sub-
programme           

Adjusted
Appropriation

Shifting of 
Funds Virement Final

Appropriation
Actual

Expenditure Variance
Expenditure
as % of  nal 

appropriation
Final

Appropriation
Actual

expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

2.1   Governance 
Policy and Over-
sight

Current payment           40,117       (4,208) 10,736 46,645           46,712 (67) 100.1%           51,761           51,759 

Transfers and 
subsidies             5,358                 3             5,361 5,361                     

- 100.0%             5,120             5,120 

Payment for capital 
assets                209               49 (258) -                                - -              4,406             4,406 

Payment for  nan-
cial assets                        -                     -                     

-                   66                  66 

2.2   Mine Health 
and Safety (Re-
gions)

Current payment           96,116         4,077    (15,203)           84,990           84,990                     
- 100.0%           77,270           77,135 

Transfers and 
subsidies                        -                     -                    

-                     5                    5 

Payment for capital 
assets                270              82 (268) 84                  15             69 17.9%                  37                     - 

Payment for  nan-
cial assets                15                  15                  14                 1 93.3%                  52                  52 

Total         142,070                     -           (4,975)         137,095         137,092 3 100.0%         138,717         138,543 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 2

 Per Economic 
classi  cation

Adjusted
Appro-
priation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expendi-
ture
as % 
of  nal 
appropria-
tion

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current payments

Compensation of 
employees

        
113,294 

          
(2,639)

          
(8,093)

        
102,562 

        
102,561 

                   
1 100.0%           

94,182 
          

94,046 

Goods and services           
22,939 

            
2,508 

           
3,626 

          
29,073 

          
29,141 

          
(68) 100.2%           

34,849 
          

34,849 

Transfers and sub-
sidies to:

Departmental agen-
cies and accounts

            
5,358  -             

5,358 
            

5,358 
                    

- 100.0%             
5,118 

            
5,118 

Households                      
3 

                   
3 

                   
3 

                    
- 100.0%                    

7 
                   

6 

Payment  for  capi-
tal assets

Buildings and other 
 xed structures                        

-                      
- 

            
4,387 

            
4,406 

Machinery and 
equipment

              
479 

               
131 (526)             84                 

15 69 17.9%                  
56 

                   
-   

Payments for 
 nancial assets                    

15 
                 

15 
                 

14 
                   

1 93.3%                
118 

               
118 

Total  142,070               -     (4,975)   137,095   137,092 3 100.0%  138,717 138,543 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Programme 3

Detail per 
sub-pro-
gramme           

Adjusted
Appro-
priation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final
Appropria-
tion

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expendi-
ture
as % of 
 nal appro-

priation

Final
Appropria-
tion

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

3.1  
Management

Current pay-
ment            5,501                734             2,699             8,934             8,935                  (1) 100.0%           17,826           13,925 

Payment for 
capital assets                   16                   16                  15                    1 93.8%             6,991             6,891 

3.2   Mineral 
Regulation 
and Adminis-
tration

Current pay-
ment         166,186      (30,896)            1,998         137,288         137,144          144 99.9%         125,549       121,965 

Transfers and 
subsidies                    24                  24                  24                     - 100.0%                  35                  35 

Payment for 
capital assets                  24                146           1,526          1, 696             1,837           (141) 108.3%             7,751             7,768 

Payment for 
 nancial as-
sets

                   10                  10                  10                     - 100.0%                  12                  12 

3.3   South 
African 
Diamond 
and Precious 
Metal Regula-
tor

Transfers and 
subsidies           40,643             40,643           40,643                    - 100.0% - - 

Total     212,354   (30,000)        6,257       188,611       188,608                3 100.0%       158,164 150,596 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 3
 Per Economic 

classi  cation

Adjust-
ed

Appro-
priation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture

as % of 
 nal ap-
propria-

tion

Final
Appro-

priation

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current 
payments

Compensation of 
employees    90,448              7,947           98,395     98,396          (1) 100,0%    90,424           91,292 

Goods and 
services     81,239  (30,162)           (3,250)           47,827     47,683         144 99,7%    52,951           44,598 

Transfers and 
subsidies to:

Departmental 
agencies and 
accounts

    40,643             40,643     40,643                     
- 100,0%           -          - 

Households                    24                  24             24              - 100,0%    39,447           39,447 

Payment  for  
capital assets

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

                  -               -   9,163            9,063 

Machinery and 
equipment           24         162                526                712          712               - 100,0%      5,579             5,596 

Software & other 
intangible assets 1,000 1,000 1,140 140 114,0% - -

Payments for 
 nancial assets                    10                  10            10              - 100,0%           12                  12 

Total 212,354 (30,000)          6,257     188,611 188,608           3 100.0% 158,164      150,596 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Programme 4
Detail per sub-
programme           

Adjusted
Appropria-
tion

Shifting of 
Funds Virement

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expen-
diture
as % of 
 nal ap-

propria-
tion

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

4.1   Manage-
ment

Current pay-
ment        13,111        (3,271)         7,573      17,413       17,413              - 100,0%     11,933         11,932 

Transfers and 
subsidies                        

-                      
-              

1,000 
            

1,000 

Payment for 
capital assets                 16             16              15               1 93,8%        4,127          4,127 

Payment 
for  nancial 
assets

                       
-                      

-                     
- 

                   
- 

4.2   Mineral 
Policy

Current pay-
ment         7,108          2,230       (4,431)       4,907         4,907            - 100,0%      10,519        10,510 

Payment 
for  nancial 
assets

                1               1                1               - 100,0% - -

4.3   Mineral 
Promotion

Current pay-
ment       28,632          1,022       (4,356)     25,298      25,298              - 100,0%      21,139        21,097 

Transfers and 
subsidies       23,609        23,609       23,609               - 100,0%      25,058        25,058 

Payment 
for  nancial 
assets

                 4               4                4               - 100,0%              -                  - 

4.4   Assistance 
to Mines

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 4
Detail per sub-
programme           

Adjusted
Appropria-
tion

Shifting of 
Funds Virement

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expen-
diture
as % of 
 nal ap-

propria-
tion

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Transfers and 
subsidies

          
35,671 

        
(32,671)

                    
- 

            
3,000 

            
3,000 

                    
- 100.0% - - 

4.5   Council for 
Geoscience

Transfers and 
subsidies

        
136,505 

          
32,671          

169,176 
        

169,176 
                   

- 100.0%         - - 

4.6   Council 
for Mineral 
Technology

Transfers and 
subsidies

        
165,840 

          
30,000          

195,840 
        

195,840 
                    

- 100.0%         -         - 

4.7   Economic 
Advisory 
services

Current pay-
ment

            
3,559 

          
(2,949)

             
(610)               -               -  - - 

4.8   Mine Envi-
ronmental 
Manage-
ment

Current pay-
ment         3,684  3         (680)       3,007         3,007              - 100.0% - - 

Total      417,719         27,051       (2,499)    442,271     442,270               1 100.0%    73,776         73,724 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 4
 Per Economic 
classi  cation

Adjusted

Appro-

priation

Shifting of 

Funds

Vire-

ment

Final

Appro-

priation

Actual

Expenditure
Variance

Expen-

diture

as % of 

 nal ap-

propria-

tion

Final

Appro-

priation

Actual

expendi-

ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current pay-
ments

Compensation 
of employees   35,968           (2,805)   1,592   34,755         34,755           - 100.0% 30,456      30,455 

Goods and 
services   20,126              (160) (4,096)    15,870         15,870             - 100.0% 13,121      13,070 

Transfers and 
subsidies to:  

Departmental 
agencies and 
accounts

136,505      32,671    169,176      169,176              - 100.0% 1,000         1,000 

Public corpora-
tions and 
private enter-
prises

 225,120           (2,671)   222,449     222,449 
                    

- 
100.0% 25,058      25,058 

Payment  for  
capital assets

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

                -                       4,127        4,127 

Machinery and 
equipment                   16            16               15             1 93.8%   

Payments 
for  nancial 
assets

  
                   

5 

                   

5 
                   5 

                    

- 
100.0%

                 

14 

                 

14 

Total 417,719           27,051  (2,499)  442,271       442,270              1 100.0% 73,776       73,724 

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 5
Detail per 
sub-pro-
gramme           

Adjusted
Appro-

priation

Shifting 
of Funds

Vire-
ment

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expen-
diture

as % of 
 nal ap-
propria-

tion

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

5.1   Energy 
Planning

Current 
payment 5,133 5,010

5.2   Hydro-
carbons

Current 
payment 38,671 38,669

Transfers 
and sub-
sidies

5.3   Hydro-
carbons 
and 
Energy 
Planning 
Manage-
ment

Current 
payment 12,467 12,475

Pay-
ment for 
capital 
assets

702 771

Total 56,973 56,925

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 5
 Per Econom-
ic classi  ca-

tion

Adjusted
Appro-

priation

Shifting 
of Funds

Virement
Final

Appro-
priation

Actual
Expenditure

Vari-
ance

Expendi-
ture

as % of 
 nal appro-

priation

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current pay-
ments

Compensation 
of employees 40,357 40,311

Goods and 
services 15,903 15,833

Payment  for  
capital assets

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

702 771

Machinery and 
equipment   

Payments 
for  nancial 
assets

11 10

Total 56,973 56,925

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 
6
Detail per 
sub-pro-
gramme           

Adjusted
Appro-

priation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final
Appro-

priation

Actual
Expenditure Variance

Expendi-
ture

as % 
of  nal 

appropria-
tion

Final
Appro-

priation

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

6.1   Clean 
Energy

Current 
payment  11,644 11,391

Trans-
fers and 
subsi-
dies

265,153 255,031

6.2   Elec-
tricity

Current 
payment 36,234 36,099

6.3   Elec-
tric-
ity and 
Nuclear 
Man-
age-
ment

Current 
payment 11,701 17,600

6.4   Nuclear

Current 
payment 14,204 13,949

Total 338,936 334,070

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Programme 
6
 Per Eco-
nomic clas-
si  cation

Adjust-
ed

Appro-
priation

Shifting 
of Funds Virement

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
Expendi-

ture
Variance

Expendi-
ture

as % 
of  nal 

appropria-
tion

Final
Appropria-

tion

Actual
expenditure

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Current pay-
ments

Compen-
sation of 
employees

37,440 37,437

Goods and 
services 36,323 41,583

Transfers 
and subsi-
dies to:

Provinces 
and Munici-
palities

175,000 175,000

Public 
corporations 
and private 
enterprises

90,153 80,031

Payments 
for  nancial 
assets

20 19

Total 338,936 334,070

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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2010/11 2009/10

Programme 7
Detail per sub-programme           

Ad-
justed
Appro-
pria-
tion

Shift-
ing of 
Funds

Vire-
ment

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
Ex-
pendi-
ture

Vari-
ance

Expendi-
ture
as % of 
 nal ap-

propria-
tion

Final
Appro-
priation

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

7.1   Assistance to Mines

Transfers and subsidies 38,600 31,100

7.2   Council for Geoscience

Transfers and subsidies 132,677 132,677

7.3   Council for Mineral Technol-
ogy

Trans fers and subsidies 161,108 161,108

7.4   Electricity Distribution Indus-
try Holdings Company

Transfers and subsidies 72,214 72,214

7.5   National Electri  cation Pro-
gramme

Transfers and subsidies 2,633,272 2,517,157

7.6 National Nuclear Regulator

Transfers and subsidies 23,793 23,793

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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7.7 South African Diamond and 
Precious Metal Regulator

Transfers and subsidies

7.8 South African Nuclear Energy 
Corporation

Transfers and subsidies 564,144 564,144

Total 3,665,222 3,541,605

2010/11 2009/10

APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2010/11 2009/10

Programme 
7
 Per Eco-
nomic clas-
si  cation

Ad-
justed
Appro-
priation

Shift-
ing of 
Funds

Virement
Final
Appropria-
tion

Actual
Expendi-
ture

Variance

Expendi-
ture
as % of 
 nal ap-

propriation

Final
Appropriation

Actual
expendi-
ture

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000

Transfers 
and subsi-
dies to:

Provinces 
and Munici-
palities

932,957 899,553

Departmental 
agencies and 
accounts

285,698 285,696

Public 
corporations 
and private 
enterprises

2,446,567 2,356,356

Total 3,665,222 3,541,605
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1. Detail of transfers and subsidies as per Appropriation Act (after Virement):

Detail of these transactions can be viewed in the note on Transfers and subsidies, disclosure notes and Annexure 1 (A-F) to 

the Annual Financial Statements.

2. Detail of speci  cally and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement):

There were no speci  cally and exclusively appropriated amounts voted (after Virement) as indicated in note 1 (Annual 

Appropriation) to the Annual Financial Statements.

3. Detail on payments for  nancial assets

Detail of these transactions per programme can be viewed in the note on Payments for  nancial assets to the Annual Financial 

Statements.

4. Explanations of material variances from Amounts Voted (after Virement):

 3.1  Per Programme Final 
Appropriation Actual Expenditure Variance  R’000

Variance as 
a % of Final 
Appropriation

Programme 1: Administration 227,865 226,727 1,138 0.50

Programme 2: Promotion of Mine Safety and 
Health 137,095 137,092 3 0.00

Programme 3: Mineral Regulation 188,611 188,608 3 0.00

Programme 4: Mineral Policy and Promotion 442,271 442,270 1 0.00

Total 995,842 994,697 1,145 0.11

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2011

3.2 Per Economic classi  cation Final Appropriation Actual Expendi-
ture Variance

Variance as a % 
of Final Appro-
priation

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Current payments

Compensation of employees 326,505 326,457 48 0,01

Goods and services 210,311 206,504 3,807 1,81

Transfers and subsidies

Departmental agencies and accounts 215,177 215,177 0 0,00

Public corporations and private enterprises 222,449 222,449 0 0,00

Households 1,155 494 661 57,23
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Programme 1: Administration

The under-spending of R1.1 million under programme 1 relates to the procurement of goods and services in cases were orders were 

placed but for which expenditure is pending due to delays in delivery, late receipt of invoices and consequent delay in  processing 

of payments. The item goods and services consequently re  ects and under-spending of R3.8 million. The over-spending of R3.4 

million under the item Payments for capital assets is due to of  ce refurbishments that were conducted during the  nancial year.

Programme 2: Promotion of Mine Health and Safety

Mine Health Safety Inspectorate budget is personnel driven due to the nature of inspections, monitoring, and reporting functions 

performed. The programme disbursed R137 million which represents 100 percent of its total budget of R137 million. An amount of 

R4.9 million was reallocated to other branches to cater for over expenditure.

Programme 3: Mineral Regulation

On the 31 March 2011 Mineral Regulation Branch disbursed R188.6 million which represents 100 percent of its total budget of R188.6 

million. An amount of R6.2 million was reallocated to this branch from other branches to cater for higher than anticipated expenditure.

Programme 4: Mineral Policy and Promotion

Mineral Policy and Promotion Branch disbursed R442.2 million which represents 100 percent of its total budget of R442.2 million. An 

amount of R2 million was reallocated to other branches for higher than anticipated expenditure.

NOTES TO THE APPROPRIATION STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 
31 MARCH 2011

3.2 Per Economic classi  cation Final Appropriation Actual Expendi-
ture Variance

Variance as a % 
of Final Appro-
priation

Payments for capital assets

Buildings and other  xed structures 7,610 17,059 (9,449) (124,17)

Machinery and equipment 11,303 5,367 5,936 52,52

Software and other intangible assets 1,281 1,140 141 11,01

Payments for  nancial assets 51 50 1 1,96

Total 995,842 994,697 1,145 0,11
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2011

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011

PERFORMANCE Note 2010/11 2009/10
R'000 R'000

REVENUE

Annual appropriation 1 995,842 4,682,004

Departmental revenue 2 30,302 217,144

TOTAL REVENUE 1,026,144 4,899,148

EXPENDITURE

Current expenditure

Compensation of employees 4 326,457 403,323

Goods and services 5 199,678 263,475

Aid assistance

Interest and rent on land

-

1,789

5,849

-

Total current expenditure 527,924 672,647

Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies 8 438,120 3,828,303

Total transfers and subsidies 438,120 3,828,303

Expenditure for capital assets

Tangible capital assets 9 27,463 47,384

Software and other intangible assets 9 1,140 1,306

Total expenditure for capital assets 28,603 48,690

Payments for  nancial assets 7 50 925

TOTAL EXPENDITURE 994,697 4550,565

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT)  FOR THE YEAR 31,447 348,583

Reconciliation of Net Surplus/(De  cit) for the year

Voted funds 1,145 137,288

Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts 15 30,302 217,144

Aid assistance 3 - (5,849)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR 31,447 348,583

3

6
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POSITION Note 2010/11 2009/10
 R'000 R'000
ASSETS
Current assets 58,196 212,761

Cash and cash equivalents 10 37,493 192,279

Prepayments and advances 11 40 5,902
Receivables 12 20,663 14,580
Non-current assets - 2,205
Investments 13 - 2,205

TOTAL ASSETS 58,196 214,966
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 57,144 211,699
Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund 14 1,145 137,288
Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered to the 
Revenue Fund 15 2,482 74,344

Payables 16 53,517 4

Aid assistance unutilised 3 - 63

TOTAL LIABILITIES 57,144 211,699

1,052 3,267

NET ASSETS Note 2010/11 2009/10
R'000 R'000

Represented by:
Capitalisation reserve - 2,205
Recoverable revenue 1,052 1,062
TOTAL 1,052 3,267

NET ASSETS Note 2010/11 2009/10
R'000 R'000

Capitalisation Reserves

Opening balance 2,205 2,205

Transfers:

Movement in Equity (2,205) -

Closing balance - 2,205
Recoverable revenue

Opening balance 1,062 844

Transfers: (10) 218

Debts revised (10) 218

Closing balance 1,052 1,062

TOTAL 1,052 3,267

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
for the year ended 31 March 2011

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
for the year ended 31 March 2011

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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CASH FLOW Note 2010/11 2009/10
R'000 R’000

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts 1,026,144 4,899,148
Annual appropriated funds received 1.1 995,842 4,682,004
Departmental revenue received 2 30,302 217,144
Net (increase)/decrease in working capital 53,292 28,316
Surrendered to Revenue Fund (239,452) (312,063)
Surrendered to RDP Fund/Donor (63) -
Current payments (527,924) (672,647)
Payments for  nancial assets (50) (925)
Transfers and subsidies paid (438,120) (3,828,303)
Net cash  ow available from operating activities 17 (126,173) 113,526

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments for capital assets 9 (28,603) (48,690)
(Increase)/decrease in investments 2,205 -
Net cash  ows from investing activities (26,398) (48,690)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase/(decrease) in net assets (2,215) 218

Net cash  ows from  nancing activities (2,215) 218
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (154,786) 65,054

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 192,279 127,225

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 18 37,493 192,279

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

CASH FLOW STATEMENT 
for the year ended 31 March 2011

137



The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with the following policies, which have been applied consistently 

in all material aspects, unless otherwise indicated.  However, where appropriate and meaningful, additional information has 

been disclosed to enhance the usefulness of the Financial Statements and to comply with the statutory requirements of the 

Public Finance Management Act, Act 1 of 1999 (as amended by Act 29 of 1999), and the Treasury Regulations issued in 

terms of the Act and the Division of Revenue Act, Act 1 of 2010. 

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

1. Presentation of the Financial Statements
1.1 Basis of preparation

The Financial Statements have been prepared on a modi  ed cash basis of accounting, except where stated otherwise.  The 

modi  ed cash basis constitutes the cash basis of accounting supplemented with additional disclosure items.  Under the cash 

basis of accounting transactions and other events are recognised when cash is received or paid. 

1.2  Presentation currency

All amounts have been presented in the currency of the South African Rand (R) which is also the functional currency of the 

department.

1.3  Rounding

Unless otherwise stated all  nancial  gures have been rounded to the nearest one thousand Rand (R’000).

1.4  Comparative  gures

Prior period comparative information has been presented in the current year’s  nancial statements.  Where necessary  gures 

included in the prior period  nancial statements have been reclassi  ed to ensure that the format in which the information is 

presented is consistent with the format of the current year’s  nancial statements.  

1.5  Comparative  gures - Appropriation Statement

A comparison between actual amounts and  nal appropriation per major classi  cation of expenditure is included in the 

Appropriation Statement.  

2. Revenue
2.1  Appropriated funds

Appropriated funds comprises of departmental allocations as well as direct charges against revenue fund (i.e. statutory 

appropriation).

Appropriated funds are recognised in the  nancial records on the date the appropriation becomes effective.  Adjustments 

made in terms of the adjustments budget process are recognised in the  nancial records on the date the adjustments 

become effective.

Unexpended appropriated funds are surrendered to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund.  Any amounts owing to the 

National/Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the  nancial year are recognised as payable in the statement of  nancial 

position.

Any amount due from the National/Provincial Revenue Fund at the end of the  nancial year is recognised as a receivable 

in the statement of  nancial position.

2.2  Departmental revenue

All departmental revenue is recognised in the statement of  nancial performance when received and is subsequently paid 

into the National/Provincial Revenue Fund, unless stated otherwise.

Any amount owing to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund is recognised as a payable in the statement of  nancial position. 

No accrual is made for amounts receivable from the last receipt date to the end of the reporting period.  These amounts are 

however disclosed in the disclosure note to the annual  nancial statements.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

2.3  Direct Exchequer receipts

All direct exchequer receipts are recognised in the statement of  nancial performance when the cash is received and is 

subsequently paid into the National/Provincial Revenue Fund, unless stated otherwise.  

Any amount owing to the National/Provincial Revenue Funds at the end of the  nancial year is recognised as a payable in 

the statement of  nancial position.

2.4  Direct Exchequer payments

All direct exchequer payments are recognised in the statement of  nancial performance when  nal authorisation for payment 

is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

2.5  Aid assistance

Aids assistance is recognised as revenue when received

All in-kind aid assistance is disclosed at fair value on the date of receipt in the annexures to the Annual Financial Statements

The cash payments made during the year relating to aid assistance projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement 

of  nancial performance when  nal authorisation for payments is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each 

year)

The value of the assistance expensed prior to the receipt of funds is recognised as a receivable in the statement of  nancial 

position.

Inappropriately expensed amounts using aid assistance and any unutilised amounts are recognised as payables in the 

statement of  nancial position.

All CARA funds received must be recorded as revenue when funds are received.  The cash payments made during the year 

relating to CARA earmarked projects are recognised as expenditure in the statement of  nancial performance when  nal 

authorisation for payments effected on the system (by no later then 31 March of each year)

Inappropriately expensed amounts using CARA funds are recognised as payables in the statement of  nancial position. Any 

unutilised amounts are transferred to retained funds as they are not surrendered to the revenue fund.

3. Expenditure
3.1  Compensation of employees

3.1.1 Salaries and wages

Salaries and wages are expensed in the statement of  nancial performance when the  nal authorisation for payment is 

effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).

Other employee bene  ts that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes to 

the  nancial statements at its face value and are not recognised in the statement of  nancial performance or position.

Employee costs are capitalised to the cost of a capital project when an employee spends more than 50% of his/her time on 

the project.  These payments form part of expenditure for capital assets in the statement of  nancial performance.

3.1.2 Social contributions

Employer contributions to post employment bene  t plans in respect of current employees are expensed in the statement 

of  nancial performance when the  nal authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of 

each year).

No provision is made for retirement bene  ts in the  nancial statements of the department.  Any potential liabilities are 

disclosed in the  nancial statements of the National Revenue Fund and not in the  nancial statements of the employer 

department.
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Employer contributions made by the department for certain of its ex-employees (such as medical bene  ts) are classi  ed as 

transfers to households in the statement of  nancial performance.

3.2  Goods and services

Payments made during the year for goods and/or services are recognised as an expense in the statement of  nancial 

performance when the  nal authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year). 

The expense is classi  ed as capital if the goods and/or services were acquired for a capital project or if the total purchase 

price exceeds the capitalisation threshold (currently R5, 000).  All other expenditures are classi  ed as current.

Rental paid for the use of buildings or other  xed structures is classi  ed as goods and services and not as rent on land.

3.3  Interest and rent on land

Interest and rental payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of  nancial performance when the  nal 

authorisation for payment is effected on the system (by no later than 31 March of each year).  This item excludes rental for 

the use of buildings or other  xed structures.   If it is not possible to distinguish between payment for the use of land and the 

 xed structures on it, the whole amount should be recorded under goods and services.

3.4  Payments for  nancial assets

Debts are written off when identi  ed as irrecoverable.  Debts written-off are limited to the amount of savings and/or under 

spending of appropriated funds.  The write off occurs at year-end or when funds are available.  No provision is made for 

irrecoverable amounts but an estimate is included in the disclosure notes to the  nancial statements amounts. 

All other losses are recognised when authorisation has been granted for the recognition thereof.

3.5  Transfers and subsidies

Transfers and subsidies are recognised as an expense when the  nal authorisation for payment is effected on the system 

(by no later than 31 March of each year).

3.6  Unauthorised expenditure

When con  rmed unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an asset in the statement of  nancial position until such time 

as the expenditure is either approved by the relevant authority, recovered from the responsible person or written off as 

irrecoverable in the statement of  nancial performance.

Unauthorised expenditure approved with funding is derecognised from the statement of  nancial position when the 

unauthorised expenditure is approved and the related funds are received.  

Where the amount is approved without funding it is recognised as expenditure in the statement of  nancial performance on 

the date of approval.

3.7  Fruitless and wasteful expenditure

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of  nancial performance according to 

the nature of the payment and not as a separate line item on the face of the statement.  If the expenditure is recoverable 

it is treated as an asset until it is recovered from the responsible person or written off as irrecoverable in the statement of 

 nancial performance.

3.8  Irregular expenditure

Irregular expenditure is recognised as expenditure in the statement of  nancial performance.  If the expenditure is not 

condoned by the relevant authority it is treated as an asset until it is recovered or written off as irrecoverable.   

140



2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

4. Assets
4.1  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement of  nancial position at cost.  

Bank overdrafts are shown separately on the face of the statement of  nancial position.

For the purposes of the cash  ow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held, other short-

term highly liquid investments and bank overdrafts.

4.2  Other  nancial assets

Other  nancial assets are carried in the statement of  nancial position at cost.

4.3  Prepayments and advances

Amounts prepaid or advanced are recognised in the statement of  nancial position when the payments are made and are 

derecognised as and when the goods/services are received or the funds are utilised.

Prepayments and advances outstanding at the end of the year are carried in the statement of  nancial position at cost.

4.4  Receivables

Receivables included in the statement of  nancial position arise from cash payments made that are recoverable from another 

party (including departmental employees) and are derecognised upon recovery or write-off.

Receivables outstanding at year-end are carried in the statement of  nancial position at cost plus any accrued interest.  

Amounts that are potentials irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.5  Investments

Capitalised investments are shown at cost in the statement of  nancial position. 

Investments are tested for an impairment loss whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the investment 

may be impaired.  Any impairment loss is included in the disclosure notes.  

4.6  Loans

Loans are recognised in the statement of  nancial position when the cash is paid to the bene  ciary.  Loans that are outstanding 

at year-end are carried in the statement of  nancial position at cost plus accrued interest.

Amounts that are potentially irrecoverable are included in the disclosure notes.

4.7  Inventory

Inventories that qualify for recognition must be initially re  ected at cost.  Where inventories are acquired at no cost, or for 

nominal consideration, their cost shall be their fair value at the date of acquisition.

All inventory items at year-end are re  ected using the weighted average cost or FIFO cost formula.

4.8  Capital assets

4.8.1 Movable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded in the asset register on receipt of the item at cost.  Cost of an asset is de  ned as the total cost of 

acquisition.  Where the cost cannot be determined accurately, the movable capital asset is stated at fair value.  Where fair 

value cannot be determined, the capital asset is included in the asset register at R1.

All assets acquired prior to 1 April 2002 are included in the register R1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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Subsequent recognition

Subsequent expenditure of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of  nancial performance as “expenditure for capital 

assets” and is capitalised in the asset register of the department on completion of the project.  

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of  nancial performance.

4.8.2 Immovable assets

Initial recognition

A capital asset is recorded on receipt of the item at cost.  Cost of an asset is de  ned as the total cost of acquisition.  Where 

the cost cannot be determined accurately, the immovable capital asset is stated at R1 unless the fair value for the asset has 

been reliably estimated.

Subsequent recognition

Work-in-progress of a capital nature is recorded in the statement of  nancial performance as “expenditure for capital assets”.  

On completion, the total cost of the project is included in the asset register of the department that is accountable for the 

asset.

Repairs and maintenance is expensed as current “goods and services” in the statement of  nancial performance.

5. Liabilities
5.1  Payables

Recognised payables mainly comprise of amounts owing to other governmental entities.  These payables are carried at cost 

in the statement of  nancial position.

5.2  Contingent liabilities

Contingent liabilities are included in the disclosure notes to the  nancial statements when it is possible that economic 

bene  ts will  ow from the department, or when an out  ow of economic bene  ts or service potential is probable but cannot 

be measured reliably.

5.3  Contingent assets

Contingent assets are included in the disclosure notes to the  nancial statements when it is probable that an in  ow of 

economic bene  ts will  ow to the entity.

5.4  Commitments

Commitments are not recognised in the statement of  nancial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of 

 nancial performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.5  Accruals

Accruals are not recognised in the statement of  nancial position as a liability or as expenditure in the statement of  nancial 

performance but are included in the disclosure notes.

5.6 Employee bene  ts

Short-term employee bene  ts that give rise to a present legal or constructive obligation are disclosed in the disclosure notes 

to the  nancial statements.  These amounts are not recognised in the statement of  nancial performance or the statement 

of  nancial position.

5.7 Lease commitments

Finance lease

Finance leases are not recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of  nancial position.  Finance lease payments 

are recognised as an expense in the statement of  nancial performance and are apportioned between the capital and 
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interest portions.  The  nance lease liability is disclosed in the disclosure notes to the  nancial statements.

Operating lease

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the statement of  nancial performance.  The operating lease 

commitments are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the  nancial statement.

5.8  Impairment and other provisions

The department tests for impairment where there is an indication that a receivable, loan or investment may be impaired.  An 

assessment of whether there is an indication of possible impairment is done at each reporting date.  An estimate is made 

for doubtful loans and receivables based on a review of all outstanding amounts at year-end.  Impairments on investments 

are calculated as being the difference between the carrying amount and the present value of the expected future cash  ows 

/ service potential  owing from the instrument.

Provisions are disclosed when there is a present legal or constructive obligation to forfeit economic bene  ts as a result of 

events in the past and it is probable that an out  ow of resources embodying economic bene  ts will be required to settle the 

obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

6. Receivables for departmental revenue
Receivables for departmental revenue are disclosed in the disclosure notes to the annual  nancial statements.

7. Net Assets
7.1  Capitalisation reserve

The capitalisation reserve comprises of  nancial assets and/or liabilities originating in a prior reporting period but which are 

recognised in the statement of  nancial position for the  rst time in the current reporting period.  Amounts are recognised in 

the capitalisation reserves when identi  ed in the current period and are transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund 

when the underlining asset is disposed and the related funds are received.

7.2  Recoverable revenue

Amounts are recognised as recoverable revenue when a payment made in a previous  nancial year becomes recoverable 

from a debtor in the current  nancial year.  Amounts are either transferred to the National/Provincial Revenue Fund when 

recovered or are transferred to the statement of  nancial performance when written-off.

8. Related party transactions
Speci  c information with regards to related party transactions is included in the disclosure notes.

9. Key management personnel
Compensation paid to key management personnel including their family members where relevant, is included in the 

disclosure notes.

10. Public private partnerships
A description of the PPP arrangement, the contract fees and current and capital expenditure relating to the PPP arrangement 

is included in the disclosure notes.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011
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1.   Annual Appropriation 

1.1  Annual Appropriation
Included are funds appropriated in terms of the Appropriation Act (and the Adjustments Appropriation Act) for National Departments 

(Voted funds):

2010/11 2009/10

Final
Appropriation

Actual Funds
Received

Funds not
requested/

not received

Appropriation
received

Programmes R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Administration 227,865 226,727 - 250,216

Promotion of mine 

health and safety
137,095 137,092

-
138,717

Mineral Regulation 188,611 188,608 - 158,164

442,271

-

-

-

442,270

-

-

-

-

-

-

73,776

56,973

3,665,222

Total 995,842 994,697 - 4,682,004

# No earmarked funds appropriated during this reporting period.

338,936

Mineral Policy and 
Promotion

Hydrocarbons and 
Energy Planning

Electricity, Nuclear, 
and Clean Energy

Associated Services

-
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2.    Departmental revenue 
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Tax revenue - -
Sales of goods and services other than capital assets 2.1 2,167 5,512
Fines, penalties and forfeits 2.2 531 382
Interest, dividends and rent on land 2.3 26,978 210,791
Transactions in  nancial assets and liabilities 2.4 626 459
Total revenue collected 30,302 217,144
Departmental revenue collected 30,302 217,144

2.1 Sales of goods and services other than capital assets

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Sales of goods and services produced by the department
2,159 5,485

Sales by market establishment 309 89

Administrative fees 1,353 5,063

Other sales 497 333

Sales of scrap, waste and other used current goods 8 27

Total 2,167 5,512

2.2 Fines, penalties and forfeits

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Penalties 531 382

Total 531 382

2.3 Interest, dividends and rent on land 

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Interest 170 515

Rent on land 26,808 210,276

Total 26,978 210,791

2.4 Transactions in  nancial assets and liabilities
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Receivables 382 254
Other Receipts including Recoverable Revenue 244 205
Total 626 459

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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3.    Aid assistance 

3.1 Aid assistance received in cash from RDP

Note 2010/11
R’000

Foreign
Opening Balance 63 5,912
Expenditure - (5,849)

Current - (5,849)
Prepayments
Surrendered to the RDP (63)
Closing Balance - 63

3.2 Total assistance

                2010/11 2009/10
                   R’000 R’000

Opening Balance 63 5,912

Expenditure - (5,849)
Current - (5,849)
Surrendered / Transferred to retained funds (63) -

Closing Balance - 63

3.3 Analysis of balance

             2010/11
               R’000

Aid assistance unutilised - 63

RDP 63

Closing balance - 63

4.  Compensation of employees
4.1 Salaries and Wages

           2010/11
              R’000

Basic salary 217,268 259,530

Performance award 23,608 9,474

Service Based 1,074 1,325

Compensative/circumstantial 7,211 7,662

Periodic payments 187 1,526

Other non-pensionable allowances 36,311 76,950

Total 285,659 356,467

- (5,849)

2009/10
R’000

2009/10
R’000

2009/10
R’000

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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4.2 Social contributions

Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Employer contributions

Pension 28,875 33,503

Medical 11,868 13,294

Bargaining council 55 59

Total 40,798 46,856

Total compensation of employees 326,457 403,323

Average number of employees 1,076 1,272

5.     Goods and services 
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Administrative fees 2,894 3,126
Advertising 1,661 2,829
Assets less then R5,000 5.1 862 4,958
Bursaries (employees) 2,118 2,148
Catering 855 2,263
Communication 11,181 19,874
Computer services 5.2 19,602 11,712
Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services 5.3 18,135 69,196
Entertainment 176 16
Audit cost – external 5.4 3,740 3,436
Inventory 5.5 9,003 9,276
Operating leases 64,147 34,231
Owned and leasehold property expenditure 5.6 3,406 2,740
Travel and subsistence 5.7 54,667 67,458
Venues and facilities 2,282 5,454
Training and staff development 1,790 7,325
Other operating expenditure 5.8 3,159 17,433
Total 199,678 263,475

5.1 Assets less than R5,000

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 850 4,956

Machinery and equipment 850 4,956

Intangible assets 12 2

Total 862 4,958

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011

147



5.2 Computer services
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

SITA computer services 8,197 3,379

External computer service providers 11,405 8,333

Total 19,602 11,712

5.3 Consultants, contractors and agency/outsourced services

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Business and advisory services 6,522 32,166

Infrastructure and planning 5,835 18,665
Legal costs 3,861 7,724
Contractors 1,688 9,052
Agency and support/outsourced services 229 1,589
Total 18,135 69,196

5.4 Audit cost – External 

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Regularity audits 3,618 2,764

Performance audits 122 672

Total 3,740 3,436

5.5 Inventory

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Learning and teaching support material 29 280

Fuel, oil and gas 48 13

Other consumable materials 1,112 1,070

Maintenance material 3,545 408

Stationery and printing 4,269 7,502

Medical supplies - 3

Total 9,003 9,276

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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5.6 Property payments

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Municipal services 1,415 821

Other 1,991 1,919

Total 3,406 2,740

5.7 Travel and subsistence
2010/11 2009/10

Local 47,171 57,872

Foreign 7,496 9,586

Total 54,667 67,458

5.8 Other operating expenditure

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Learnerships 8 -
Professional bodies, membership and subscription fees 650 12,675
Resettlement costs 1,609 2,350

Other 892 2,408

Total 3,159 17,433

6.      Interest and Rent on Land
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Interest paid 1,789 -

Total 1,789 -

7.     Payments for  nancial assets
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Other material losses written off 7.1 15 174

Debts written off 7.2 35 751
Total 50 925

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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7.1 Other material losses written off
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
           Nature of losses

           Government Garage and Car Rental accidents 15 174

           Total 15 174

7.2 Debts written off

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

           Nature of debts written off
           Transfer to debts written off
           Other Debts 35 751

           Total 35 751

7.3 Assets written off

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Nature of assets written off

Assets that could not be veri  ed 2,070 -

Assets that could not be accounted for after the relocation 3,332 -

Assets that could not be moved (  xtures) 245 -
Leased assets 46 -

Reported losses 146 -
Total 5,839 -

8.      Transfers and subsidies
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Note

Provinces and municipalities - 1,074,553

Departmental agencies and accounts Annex 1A 215,177 291,814
Public corporations and private enterprises Annex 1B 222,449 2,461,447

Households Annex 1C 494 489

Gifts, donations and sponsorships made - -

Total 438,120 3,828,303

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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9.      Expenditure for capital assets 
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 27,463 47,384
Buildings and other  xed structures 32.1 17,059 26,917
Machinery and equipment 30.1 10,404 20,467

Software and other intangible assets 1,140 1,306

Computer software 31 1,140 1,306

Total 28,603 48,690

9.1     Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2010/11

Voted funds Aid assistance Total

R’000 R’000 R’000
Tangible assets 27,463 - 27,463
Buildings and other  xed structures 17,059 - 17,059
Machinery and equipment 10,404 - 10,404

Software and other intangible assets 1,140 - 1,140

Computer software 1,140 - 1,140

Total 28,603 - 28,603

9.2 Analysis of funds utilised to acquire capital assets – 2009/10

Voted funds Aid assistance Total
R’000 R’000 R’000

Tangible assets 47,384 - 47,384
Buildings and other  xed structures 26,917 - 26,917

Machinery and equipment 20,467 - 20,467

Software and other intangible assets 1,306 - 1,306

Computer software 1,306 - 1,306

Total 48,690 - 48,690

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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10.    Cash and cash equivalents
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General Account 37,044 158,596
Disbursements - (28)
Cash on hand 71 100

Cash with commercial banks (Local) 378 33,611

Total 37,493 192,279

11.    Prepayments and advances
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Travel and subsistence 40 67

Advances paid to other entities - 5,835

Total 40 5,902

12.    Receivables
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Less than 
one year

One to 
three years

Older than three 
years

Total Total

Claims recoverable
3

9,410 - - 9,410

 

 18

Recoverable expenditure 12.2 27 8,541 186 8,754 12,354

Staff debt 12.3 947 867 685 2,499 2,208

Total 10,384 9,408         871              20,663 14,580

12.1Annex 

Note

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 MARCH 2011
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12.1    Claims recoverable
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

National departments 9,410 18

Total 9,410 18

12.2     Recoverable expenditure (disallowance accounts)

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Disallowance Damages and Losses

Sal: Recoverable

Sal: Tax Debt

Sal: Income Tax

Disallowance Miscellaneous

Salary: Deduction Disallowance Acc: CA

7,676

    53

1,018

-

      7

7,612

    86

     7

1,068

3,487

     94

Total 8,754 12,354

12.3    Staff debt

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Cell phones

Contract – State Guarantees

Disallowance

Study debt

Subsidised vehicle

Telephone

7

71

1,160

625

300

45

Total 2,499 2,208

28

68

1,430

369

492

112
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13.   Investments
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Non-Current
Shares and other equity

Shares and other equity - 2,205

Total non-current - 2,205

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Analysis of non current investments

Opening balance 2,205 2,205

Non-cash movements (2,205) -

Closing balance - 2,205

14.   Voted funds to be surrendered to the Revenue Fund
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 137,288 54,105

Transfer from statement of  nancial performance 1,145 137,288

Paid during the year (137,288) (54,105)

Closing balance 1,145 137,288

15.   Departmental revenue and NRF Receipts to be surrendered
        to the Revenue Fund

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Opening balance 74,344 115,158

Transfer from Statement of Financial Performance 30,302 217,144
Paid during the year (102,164) (257,958)

Closing balance 2,482 74,344
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16.   Payables – current
2010/11

Total

2009/10

Total

Clearing accounts 16.1        2 4

Other payables 16.2 53,515 -

Total 53,517 4

16.1    Clearing accounts

Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Description

Salary: Pension Funds

Salary: Medical Aid

1

1

4

Total 2 4

16.2    Other payables

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Description

Disallowance Miscellaneous

Salary reversal control

53,481

 34

-

-

Total 53,515 -
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2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Net surplus/(de  cit) as per Statement of Financial Performance
31,447 348,583

Add back non cash/cash movements not deemed operating activities
(157,620) (235,057)

(Increase)/decrease in receivables – current     (6,083)   15,094

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and advances 5,862 13,231

Increase/(decrease) in payables – current 53,513 (9)

Expenditure on capital assets 28,603 48,690

Surrenders to Revenue Fund (239,452) (312,063)

Surrenders to RDP Fund/Donor (63) -

Net cash  ow generated by operating activities (126,173) 113,526

17.   Net cash  ow available from operating activities

18.    Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents for cash  ow purposes
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Consolidated Paymaster General account
37,044 158,596

Disbursements
- (28)

Cash on hand 71 100

Cash with commercial banks (Local)
378 33,611

Total 37,493 192,279
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19.   Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
19.1   Contingent liabilities

Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Liable to  Nature

Motor vehicle guarantees Employees Annex 2A - 118

Housing loan guarantees Employees Annex 2A - 143

Other guarantees 38,937

Claims against the department Annex 2B #41,773 299,961

Other departments (interdepartmental uncon  rmed balances) Annex 4 1,021 8,345

Other Annex 2B 31,520 19,970

Total 74,314 367,474

#Cases contained herein relate to claims for expropriation of mineral rights and claims for alleged underpayment of 

contractual consideration for services rendered.

19.2 Contingent liabilities in respect of Rehabilitation of ownerless and derelict mines

Potential Liabilities in respect of the environmental rehabilitation comprises of two scenarios: potential liabilities arising from 

derelict and ownerless mines, where no provision was made by the miner for the rehabilitation of the environment. The 

responsibility for rehabilitation of these sites reverts to the state. During 2007/8, the department  nalised the process of 

quantifying the State’s potential liability for derelict and ownerless mines. Owing to the fact that it has not been possible to do 

a detailed assessment of the environmental and safety conditions of all thousands of entries in the database of D&O Mines, 

and also for the fact that it would not be practical to obtain a detailed cost estimate for rehabilitation of these mines, a number 

of assumptions had to be made to enable the estimation of the rehabilitation costs. Potential alternatives to rehabilitation 

such as:

• development of abandoned mines into tourist attractions, 

• productive non-mining land use on mine sites,

•  re-issuance of mining permit or rights etc, 

were as well not explored and such developments on these mines may change the potential liability by the state and hence 

the amount of this obligation could not be measured with suf  cient reliability. The other scenario relates to potential liabilities 

arising from the Miner’s inability to restore the environment back to its original state subsequent to mining activities – where 

provision was made either through a trust fund, bank guarantees or cash guarantees.
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20.   Commitments
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000
Current expenditure
Approved and contracted 70,728 40,525

70,728 40,525
Capital expenditure
Approved and contracted 2,784 58,477

2,784 58,477

Total Commitments 73,512 99,002

21.   Accruals
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Listed by economic classi  cation

30 Days 30+ Days Total Total

Goods and services        27,027 10,711 37,738 19,637

Interest and rent on land

Transfers and subsidies

Capital assets 385 - 385 400

Other

Total        27,412       10,711 38,123 20,037

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Listed by programme level

Administration

Promotion of Mine Safety and Health

Mineral Regulation

Mineral Policy and Promotion

Hydrocarbons and Energy Planning

Electricity, Nuclear and Clean Energy

34,449

491

1,780

1,403

-

-

17,112

1,880

55

894

59

37

Total 38,123 20,037

2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Con  rmed balances with other departments Annex 4 32,407 20,488

Total 32,407 20,488
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22.   Employee bene  ts

Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Leave entitlement 7,423 14,699

Service bonus (Thirteenth cheque) 8,564 10,543

Performance awards 4,898 5,934

Capped leave commitments 8,899 11,025

Total 29,784 42,201

23.   Lease commitments
23.1    Operating leases expenditure

Specialised 
military 

equipment

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Not later than 1 year 48,695         521      49,216

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 

years 137,353

        

304

     

137,657

Total lease commitments 186,048         825    186,873

Specialised 
military 

equipment

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment

Not later than 1 year            -         68,704 746 69,450

Later than 1 year and not later than 5 

years

           

-

      

272,374 662 273,036

Total lease commitments 341,078 1,408 342,486

#the prior year  gures for Building and other  xed structures were restated.

An amount of R1, 234 million is owed to the department by employees in terms of 997.64 days taken without adequate leave credits.

2010/11

2010/11

Land

Land

Total

Total
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Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Rental earned on lease sub-leased assets  2 309 89

Total 309 89

23.2  Finance leases expenditure

2010/11

Specialised 
military 

equipment
Land

Buildings and 
other  xed 
structures

Machinery 
and 

equipment
Total

Not later than 1 year - - - 9,846 9,846

Later than 1 year and not later 

than 5 years - - - 23,469 23,469

Total lease commitments - - - 33,315 33,315

LESS:  nance costs - - - 5,810 5,810

Total present value of lease 
liabilities

- - - 27,505 27,505

24.   Receivables for departmental revenue

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Interest, dividends and rent on land

Sales of capital assets

71,832

393

72,596

-

Total 72,225 72,596

#the prior year  gures for Receivables for Departmental Revenue were restated.
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24.1   Analysis of receivables for departmental revenue

Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Opening balance

Less:  amounts received

72,596

42,982

57,466

-

Add:  amounts recognised 42,218 15,130

Closing balance 71,832 72,596

25.   Irregular expenditure
25.1 Reconciliation of irregular expenditure

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Opening balance - -

Add: Irregular expenditure – relating to current year 7,974 4,203

Less: Amounts condoned

Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned)

(619)

(131)

(4,203)

-

Irregular expenditure awaiting condonation 7,224 -
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Incident Disciplinary steps taken/criminal proceedings
2010/11

R’000

Approval not obtained prior delivery of goods/ 
service 

Procurement procedures not followed

No sanction: Of  cials resigned

Recovery

Under investigation

Awaiting condonation

Under investigation  

191

428

131

  

 398

3,701   

3,125

Total 7,974

25.2    Details of irregular expenditure – current year

Approval not obtained prior delivery 
of goods/ service 

Warning

Restructuring of operating lease to 
 nance lease 

Approval not obtained prior delivery 
of goods/ service 

Approval not obtained prior delivery 
of goods/ service 
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25.3    Details of irregular expenditure condoned

Incident Condoned by Accounting Of  cer
2010/11

R’000

Approval not obtained prior delivery of goods/ 

service 

Approval not obtained prior delivery of goods/ 

service 

Warning

No sanction: Of  cials resigned

           191

               428

  619

25.4    Details of irregular expenditure recoverable (not condoned)

Incident
2010/11

R’000

Approval not obtained prior delivery of goods/ service 131

Total 131

25.5    Details of irregular expenditures under investigation

Incident
2010/11

R’000
Approval not obtained prior delivery of goods/ service 

Restructuring of operating lease to  nance lease 

Procurement processes not followed *

398

3,125

 3,701

Total 7,224

*This matter relates to an audit adjustment and has been referred to National Treasury for investigation.
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26.    Fruitless and wasteful expenditure
26.1    Reconciliation of fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Note 2010/11 2009/10
R’000 R’000

Opening balance

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure – relating to current year 4 -

Less: Amounts transferred to receivables for recovery (4) -

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure awaiting condonement -

26.2    Analysis of Current year’s fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Incident
Disciplinary steps taken/

criminal proceedings

2010/11

R’000

No Show Cost Amount recovered from of  cials 4

Total 4

27.   Related party transactions
Payments made 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Transfers 62,671 17,600

Total 62,671 17,600

Entity Nature of Relationship Type of Transaction

Amount 
Transferred

R’000

Mintek
An entity under the control of 

Minister
Mine rehabilitation projects 30,000

Council for Geoscience
An entity under the control of 

Minister
Grootvlei mine 15,000

Council for Geoscience
An entity under the control of 

Minister
Witwatersrand water ingress project 17,671
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28.   Key management personnel

No. of Individuals 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Political of  ce bearers 

Of  cials:              2  2,427       -

Level 15 to 16               7 6,798 6,038

Level 14 (incl. CFO if at a lower level)             18 14,393 27,339

Total 23,618 33,377

29.   Impairment and other provisions
Note 2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Other provisions

Debtors 685 394

Interest, Dividends, Rent on Land 35,596

-

36108

-
Total 36,281 36,502

#the prior year  gures for Other Provisions were restated.

30.    Movable Tangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2011

Opening 
balance

Curr Year 
Adjust-ments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 52,472 -992 5,815 (27,840) 29,455

Transport assets 1,990 - - (790) 1,200

Computer equipment 26,949 78 3,490 (12,989) 17,528

Furniture and of  ce equipment 20,743 (1,396) 2,307 (12,547) 9,107

Other machinery and equipment 2,790 326 18 (1,514) 1,620

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

52,472 -992 5,815 (27,840) 29,455
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30.1 Additions

ADDITIONS TO MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Cash Non-cash (Capital Work 
in Progress 

current costs 
and  nance 

lease payments)

Received 
current, 
not paid

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 10,404 25 -5,037 423 5,815

Computer equipment 6,279 25

-

-

-3,179 365

52

6

3,490

Furniture and of  ce equipment 4,113 -1,858 2,307

Other machinery and equipment 12 - 18

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

10,404 25 -5,037 423 5,815

30.2    Disposals

DISPOSALS OF MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2011

Sold for cash Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total 
disposals

Cash 
Received 

Actual
R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 5,524 22,316 27,840

Transport assets - 790 790

Computer equipment - 12,989 12,989

Furniture and of  ce equipment 5,524 7,023 12,547

Other machinery and equipment 1,514 1,514
TOTAL DISPOSAL OF 
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

5,524 22,316 27,840

# The assets were sold but no payment received
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30.3     Movement for 2009/10

MOVEMENT IN MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2010

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Closing 
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

MACHINERY AND EQUIPMENT 33,664 20,621 (1,813) 52,472

Transport assets - 1,990 - 1,990

Computer equipment 18,932 9,128 (1,111) 26,949

Furniture and of  ce equipment 14,699 6,746 (702) 20,743

Other machinery and equipment 33 2,757 - 2,790

TOTAL MOVABLE TANGIBLE ASSETS 33,664 20,621 (1,813) 52,472

30.4    Minor assets

MINOR ASSETS OF THE DEPARTMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2011
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible assets Heritage assets Machinery and 

equipment
Biological 

assets
Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

21,621

2,328

815

(11,839)

21,621

2,328

815

(11,839)

Opening Bal-

ance

Current Year 

Adjustments to

Prior Year Bal-

ances

Additions

Disposals

TOTAL 12,925 12,925
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MINOR ASSETS OF THE DEPARTMENT AS AT 31 MARCH 2010
Specialised 

military assets
Intangible 

assets
Heritage 

assets
Machinery 

and 
equipment

Biological 
assets

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Minor  assets - - - 21,621 -               21,621

TOTAL - - - 21,621 - 21,621

31.   Intangible Capital Assets

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Opening balance Current Year 
Adjust-ments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 6,733 - 1,140 (2,622) 5,251

OTHER INTANGIBLES 199 - - - 199

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

6,932 - 1,140 (2,622) 5,450

31.1    Additions

ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED

31 MARCH 2011
Cash Non-Cash (Develop-

ment work in 
progress – 

current costs)

Received 
current 

year, not 
paid

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 1,140 - - - 1,140
TOTAL ADDITIONS TO INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

1,140 - - - 1,140 
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31.2   Disposals

DISPOSALS OF INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2011

Sold for cash Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total 
disposals

Cash 
Received 

Actual

COMPUTER SOFTWARE - #2,622 2,622

TOTAL DISPOSALS OF INTANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS

- 2,622 2,622 -

# This  gure represents intangible assets that were acquired in support of the functions of Department of Energy.

31.3    Movement for 2009/10

MOVEMENT IN INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2010

Opening balance Additions Disposals Closing balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

COMPUTER SOFTWARE 5,427 1,306 - 6,733

OTHER INTANGIBLES 199 - - 199

TOTAL INTANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 5,626 1,306 - 6,932

32.   Immovable Tangible Capital Assets
MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2011

Opening balance Curr Year 
Adjust-ments 
to prior year 

balances

Additions Disposals Closing 
Balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES 2,829 - 43,980 - 46,809

Other  xed structures 2,829 43,980 - 46,809

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS 228 - - (228) -

Land 228 - - (228) -

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE 
CAPITAL ASSETS 3,057 - 43,980 (228) 46,809
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32.1   Additions

ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2011

Cash Non-cash (Capital 
Work in 

Progress 
current 

costs and 
 nance 

lease 
payments)

Received 
current, not 

paid

(Paid 
current 

year, 
received 

prior year)

Total

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDING AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES

17,059 26,921 - - 43,980

Other  xed structures 17,059 26,921 - - 43,980

TOTAL ADDITIONS TO IMMOVABLE 
TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS 

17,059 26,921 - - 43,980

32.2     Disposals

DISPOSALS OF IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2011

Sold 
for 

cash

Transfer out or 
destroyed or 

scrapped

Total disposals Cash Received 
Actual

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED 
STRUCTURES

- - -

Other  xed structures - 228 228

TOTAL DISPOSALS OF IM-
MOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL 
ASSETS

- 228 228
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32.3    Movement for 2009/10

MOVEMENT IN IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS PER ASSET REGISTER FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 
2010

Opening 
balance

Additions Disposals Closing 
balance

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

BUILDINGS AND OTHER FIXED STRUCTURES
-

2,829
-

2,829

Other  xed structures - 2,829 - 2,829

LAND AND SUBSOIL ASSETS 228 - - 228

Land 228 - - 228

Mineral and similar non-regenerative resources - - - -

TOTAL IMMOVABLE TANGIBLE ASSETS 228 2,829 - 3,057

33.      Transfer of functions
The split of the erstwhile Department of Minerals and Energy has resulted in the transfer to certain functions from the DMR To The 

Department Of Energy.  The Affected Functions Are:

Hydrocarbons, Energy Planning and Cleaning programme – transfer to 
Department of Energy since 01 April 2010

The activities in relation to this programme included:

- Promoting sustainable use of energy resources through integrated energy planning, developing policies and regulations 

and

- Managing petroleum, coal and natural gas sectors

Electricity, Nuclear and Clean Energy Programme – transferred to Department 
of Energy since 01 April 2010

The activities in relation to this programme included:

- Developing, implementing and monitoring electricity policies and programs

- Improving the governance of the nuclear sector, speci  cally in relation to nuclear safety, nuclear non-proliferation and 

nuclear technology.

- Lastly, facilitating the implementation of renewal energy, energy ef  cient technology as well as regulating and promoting the 

clean development mechanism activities.
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33.1    Statement of Financial Position

Note

Bal per dept 
2009/10 

AFS before 
transfer

Functions 
per dept 

transferred) 
/ received

Functions 
per dept 

transferred) 
/ received

Functions 
per dept 

(transferred) 
/ received

2009/10 
Bal after 
transfer

2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

ASSETS

Current Assets 212,761 (6) (4,037) (218) 208,500

Cash and cash equivalents 192,279 - - - 192,279

Other  nancial assets - - - - -

Prepayments and advances 5,902 - - - 5,902

Receivables 14,580 (6) (4,037) (218) 10,319

Non-Current Assets 2,205 (2,205) - - -

Investments 2,205 (2,205) - - -

TOTAL ASSETS 214,966 (2,211) (4037) (218) 208,500

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities 211,699 211,699

Voted funds to be surrendered to the 

Revenue Fund
137,288 - - - 137,288

Departmental revenue and NRF 

Receipts to be surrendered to the 

Revenue Fund

74,344 - - - 74,344

Direct Exchequer receipts to be 

surrendered to the Revenue Fund
- - - - -

Bank Overdraft - - - - -

Payables 4 - - - 4

Aid assistance repayable - - - - -

Aid assistance unutilised 63 - - - 63

Non-Current Liabilities - - - - -

Payables - - - - -

TOTAL LIABILITIES 211,699 - - - 211,699

NET ASSETS 3,267       (2,210) (4,037) (218) (3,198)
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33.2    Disclosure Notes

Note

Bal per dept 
2009/10 

AFS before 
transfer

Functions 
per dept 

transferred) 
/ received

Functions 
per dept 

transferred) 
/ received

Functions 
per dept 

(transferred) 
/ received

2009/10 
Bal after 
transfer

2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10 2009/10

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Contingent liabilities 367,474 (41,544) - - 325,930

Contingent assets 5,900 (5,900) - -

Commitments 99,002 (69,004) - - 29,998

Accruals 20,067 (243) - - 19,824

Employee bene  ts 42,201 (10,551) - - 31,650

Lease commitments – Operating lease 368,526 (126,886) - - 241,640

Lease commitments – Operating lease 

revenue
89 - - - 89

Receivables for departmental revenue 25,567 - - - 25,567

Movable tangible capital assets 74,093 (16,822) - - 57,271

Immovable tangible capital assets 3,057 (724) - - 2,333

Intangible capital assets 6932 (2,622) - - 4,310
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33.3     Action taken to ensure compliance with PFMA s42 
The inventory lists of all the assets and liabilities were drawn up and  les and substantiating records as per the provision 

of section 42 of the PFMA. Owing to the need to verify physical assets in all the various regions by both departments, this 

process was  nalised in May 2011. It should be noted that Auditor-General (SA) audited all other aspects of the transfer, 

except the part of the assets.

Subsequent to the split of Department of Minerals and Energy (DME), the Department of Mineral Resources assumed the role 

of a transferring department and drew up a Memorandum of Agreement (MoA) for splitting the assets and liabilities of the DME 

as set out in section 42 of the Public Finance Management Act.  The Financial Accounting and Reporting guide on Transfer 

of functions issued by National Treasury during 2010 was followed as well as the MoA both Accounting Of  cers signed during 

the transition period (2009/10  nancial year) was taken into account. The MoA was presented to the Department of Energy 

and discussions were held in order to agree on the entire inventory list. The DMR Accounting Of  cer has since signed the  nal 

MoA and it has been sent to Department of Energy.    
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 1A
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO DEPARTMENTAL AGENCIES AND 
ACCOUNTS

DEPARTMENT/ 
AGENCY/     
ACCOUNT

TRANSFER ALLOCATION TRANSFER 2009/10

Adjusted

Appro-
priation

Roll
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total
Available

Actual
Transfer

% of
Available 

funds
Transferred Appro-

priation Act

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000

Council For 

Geoscience
136,505 32,671 169,176 169,176 100% 150,277

National Nuclear 

Regulator

Electricity Distri-

bution Industry

Mine Health and 

Safety Council

South African 

Diamond and 

Precious Metals 

Regulator

State Diamond 

Trader 

-

-

5,358

40,643

-

-

-

5,358

40,643

-

-

-

5,358

40,643

100%

100%

23,793

72,214

5,118

39,414

1,000

182,506 - 32,671 215,177 215,177 291,816
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ANNEXURE 1B
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS/SUBSIDIES TO PUBLIC CORPORATIONS AND 
PRIVATE ENTERPRISES

NAME OF 
PUBLIC
CORPO-
RATION/
PRIVATE 
ENTER-
PRISE

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2009/10

Adjusted

Appro-
priation 

Act
Roll

Overs
Adjust-
ments

Total
Available

Actual
Transfer

% of
Available 

funds
Trans-
ferred Capi-

tal
Cur-
rent

Appro-
priation 

Act

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000 R'000 R'000

Public Cor-
porations

Transfers

Eskom

South Afri-
can Nuclear 
Energy 
Corporation

Council 
for Mineral 
Technology

Industrial 
Develop-
ment Cor-
poration

Mining 
Companies 

-

-

195,840

23,609

35,671

(32,671)

-

-

195,840

23,609

3,000

-

-

195,840

23,609

3,000

100%

100%

100%

1,616,315

564,144

161,108

25,058

-

Total 255,120 - (32,671) 222,449 222,449 - - 2,366,625
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Private En-
terprises
Transfers

Eskom 

Solar Vision 

(Pty) Ltd

74,475

1,290

Subsidies

East Rand 

Proprietary 

Mines

Grootvlei 

Proprietary 

Mines

Ethekwini 

Municipality

21,000

310

5,247

Total - - - - - - - 102,322

TOTAL 255,120 - (32,671) 222,449 222,449 - - 2,468,947
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ANNEXURE 1C
STATEMENT OF TRANSFERS TO HOUSEHOLDS

HOUSEHOLDS

TRANSFER ALLOCATION EXPENDITURE 2009/10

Adjusted  
Ap-

propriation
Act

Roll
Overs

Adjust-
ments

Total
Available

Actual
Transfer

% of
Available 

funds
Transferred

Appro-
priation

Act

R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000 % R'000

Transfers

H/H: Employee 

Bene  ts

H/H: Claims 

against the 

state

H/H: Donations 

& Gifts

471

3

20

471

3

20

471

3

20

100%

100%

100%

1,284

-

-

Total 494 - - 494 494 1,284
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 1D
STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS RECEIVED

NAME OF 
ORGANISATION

NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP
2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Received in cash - -

Subtotal - -

Received in kind

Xstrata

Sekoko Mining (Pty) Ltd

Youth Day Event

Soccer Kit

-

-

70

2

Department of Sports 

and Recreation
Assistive Device System 39

Subtotal 39 72

TOTAL 39 72
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ANNEXURE 1E
STATEMENT OF AID ASSISTANCE RECEIVED

NAME OF DONOR PURPOSE OPENING   CLOSING

 BALANCE REVENUE
EXPENDI-

TURE
BALANCE

  R'000 R'000 R'000 R'000

Received in cash

Danish Government Cabaree (REFSO) Support
63 - 63

 Subtotal   63 - 63 

TOTAL 63 - 63
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 1F
STATEMENT OF GIFTS, DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS MADE AND 
REMMISSIONS, REFUNDS AND PAYMENTS MADE AS AN ACT OF GRACE 

NATURE OF GIFT, DONATION OR SPONSORSHIP

(Group major categories but list material items including name of organisation

2010/11 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Made in kind

Donation: Venues and Facilities for Mr Rocha Farewell

Donations made to Institutions under the auspices of the Department of 
Education(Western Cape North West and Free State)

Furniture and Of  ce Equipment

Donations made to Unemployed Against Poverty Organisation in Mbizana (Computers)

Donation to Department of Basic Education

Furnisher and of  ce equipment

Computers

-

-

30

1,027

1,039

2

Subtotal 1,057 1,052

Remissions, refunds, and payments made as an act of grace

Payments made as an act of grace to households

Payments made as an act of grace

20

19

25

51

Subtotal 39 76

TOTAL 1,096 1,128

11-
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ANNEXURE 2A
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEES ISSUED AS AT 31 MARCH 2011 – 
LOCAL

Guaran-
tor

institu-
tion

Guaran-
tee in

respect 
of

Original
guaranteed

capital
amount

Opening 
balance

1 April 
2010

Guaran-
tees

draw 
downs

during 
the

year

Guarantees
repay-
ments/ 

cancelled/ 
reduced/ 
released 

during the 
year

Revalua-
tions

Closing 
balance

31 March 
2011

Guar-
anteed 

interest 
for year 

ended 
31 

March 
2011

Realised
losses 

not 
recover-
able i.e. 
claims 

paid out

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Stannic

Motor 
vehicles

Motor 

vehicles

320 48 48 - - - -

Subtotal 320 48 - 48 - - - -

Ithala

Old 

Mutual

Standard 

Bank

Housing

Housing

Housing

Housing

11

22

33

11

22

33

11

        22

    33

-

-

-

Subtotal 66 66 - 66 - - -

TOTAL 386 114 - 114 - - - -
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 2B
STATEMENT OF CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AS AT 31 MARCH 2011

Nature of Liability

 
Liabilities 

incurred 
during the 

year

Liabilities 
paid/

cancelled/
reduced 

during the 
year

Liabilities 
recoverable 

(Provide 
details 

hereunder)

 

Opening Closing

Balance Balance

1 April 2010
31 March 

2011

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

 

      
 

 

 Claims against the department         299,961 41,772 (297,888) (2,072) 41,773

    

 Subtotal 299,961 41,772 (297,888) (2,072) 41,773

Other    

 Simrac Contracts 19,970 11,550   31,520

 Subtotal 19,970 11,550 - - 31,520

TOTAL 319,931 53,322 (297,888) (2,072) 73,293
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ANNEXURE 3
CLAIMS RECOVERABLE

Government Entity

Con  rmed balance outstand-
ing

Uncon  rmed balance outstand-
ing

Total

31/03/2011 31/03/2010 31/03/2011 31/03/2010 31/03/2011 31/03/2010

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

Department

-

546

1

10

8

17

Department of Agricul-
ture (Pietermaritzburg)

Department of Educa-
tion (Gauteng)

Department of Public, 
Works, Roads and 
Transport (Mmabatho)

Department of Energy

Mine Health & Safety 
Council

Government Communi-
cations

Department of Water 
Affairs

South African Police 
Services

Department of Health 
and Social Develop-
ment (Limpopo)

Gauteng Provincial 
Government

1

10

8

17

               
57

10

-

-

-

Total 546 9,410 36 67 582

57

15

20

8,994

314

10

546 -

-

-

-

ANNEXURES NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTSFOR THE 
YEARENDED31 MARCH 2011

184



2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 4
INTER-GOVERNMENT PAYABLES

GOVERNMENT ENTITY

Con  rmed balance 
outstanding

Uncon  rmed balance 
outstanding

TOTAL

31/03/2011 31/03/2010 31/03/2011 31/03/2010 31/03/2011 31/03/2010

R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000 R’000

DEPARTMENTS

Current

Department of Justice

Department of Public Works

Department of Public Service 

& Administration

Department of Energy

Parliament of South Africa

Government Motor Transport 

(Western Cape)

Of  ce of the premier (Kwa-

Zulu Natal)

Of  ce of the premier (Northern 

Cape)

Department of Public 

Transport, Roads & Works

Of  ce of the presidency

1,547

30,442

-

-

-

-

Total 32,407 20,488 1,021 8,345 33,428 28,833

788

5,298

394

24

394

24

46 46

2,100 2,100

77 77

1,021

2

20,488

1,547

30,442

788

25,786

34

1,021

34

2
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2010/11 AFS Department of Mineral Resources

ANNEXURE 5
INVENTORY

Inventory
Note Quantity 2010/11 Quantity 2009/10

R’000 R’000

Opening balance 72,769 3,493 91,105 856

Add/(Less): Adjustments to prior 

year balance
(7) (10) - -

Add:  Additions/Purchases - Cash 125,963 3,756 372,262 8,940

Add:  Additions - Non-cash 35,942 - 7,311 -

(Less): Disposals (26,417) (296) - -

(Less): Issues (100,209) (3,186) (372,434) 9,172

Add/(Less): Adjustments (1,160) (47) - -

Closing balance 106,881 3,710 98,244 624
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Department of Mineral Resources

HR OVERSIGHT - APRIL 2010 TO MARCH 2011

1.     Expenditure

TABLE 1.1 - Personnel Costs by Programme

Programme Total Voted 
Expenditure 
(R'000)

Compensation 
of Employees 
Expenditure 
(R'000)

Training 
Expenditure 
(R'000)

Professional 
and Special 
Services 
(R'000)

Compensation 
of Employees 
as percentage 
of Total 
Expenditure

Average 
Compensation 
of Employees 
Cost per 
Employee 
(R'000)

Employment

Administration 227,514 90,745 1,681 4,862 39.9 84 1031

Mineral Policy 
and Promotion 442,269 34,755 92 1,339 7.9 32 1031

Mineral 
Regulation 187,706 98,395 11 - 52.4 91 1031

Promotion of 
Mine Safety and 
Health 

137,093 102,561 5 320 74.8 95 1031

Total as on 
Financial 
Systems (BAS) 

994,582 326,456 1,789 6,521 32.8 303 1031

TABLE 1.2 - Personnel Costs by Salary Band

Salary Bands
Compensation of 
Employees Cost 
(R'000)

Percentage of 
Total Personnel 
Cost for 
Department

Average 
Compensation 
Cost per 
Employee (R)

Total 
personnel 
cost for 
Department 
including 
goods and 
transfers 
(R'000)

Number of 
Employees

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 31,734 4.6 145,569 347,520 218

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 56,780 16.3 211,078 347,520 269

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 152,952 44 406,787 347,520 376

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 55,692 16 762,904 347,520 73

Contract (Levels 1-2) 1,679 0.5 37,311 347,520 45

Contract (Levels 3-5) 4,693 1.4 195,542 347,520 24

Contract (Levels 6-8) 4,525 1.3 238,158 347,520 19

Contract (Levels 9-12) 14,185 4.1 289,490 347,520 49

Contract (Levels 13-16) 1,839 0.5 613,000 347,520 3

Periodical Remuneration 173 0 2,836 347,520 61

Abnormal Appointment 2,427 0.7 15,863 347,520 153

TOTAL 326,679 94 253,240 347,520 1290

HR OVERSIGHT
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HR OVERSIGHT

TABLE 1.3 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Programme

Programme Salaries 
(R'000)

Salaries 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

Overtime 
(R'000)

Overtime 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

HOA 
(R'000)

HOA 
as % of 
Person-
nel Cost

Medical 
Ass. 
(R'000)

Medical 
Ass. 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

Total 
Personnel 
Cost per 
Programme 
(R'000)

Administration 58081 64 2641 2.9 2637 2.9 3654 4 90745

Promotion of Mine 

Health and Safety 
69087 67.4 40 0 1856 1.8 2754 2.7 102561

Mineral Regulation 66534 67.6 842 0.9 2444 2.5 4220 4.3 98395

Mineral Policy and 

Promotion
23566 67.8 167 0.5 1128 3.2 1241 3.6 34755

TOTAL 217268 66.6 3690 1.1 8065 2.5 11869 3.6 326456

TABLE 1.4 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Aid by Salary Band

Salary bands Salaries 
(R'000)

Salaries 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

Overtime 
(R'000)

Overtime 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

HOA 
(R'000)

HOA 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

Medical 
Ass. 
(R'000)

Medical 
Ass. 
as % of 
Personnel 
Cost

Total 
Personnel 
Cost per 
Salary 
Band 
(R'000)

Skilled (Levels 
3-5) 20817 64.4 947 2.9 1781 5.5 2835 8.8 32307

Highly skilled 
production 
(Levels 6-8) 

39951 68.4 1052 1.8 1859 3.2 3253 5.6 58448

Highly skilled 
supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 

114686 69.6 869 0.5 2549 1.5 4290 2.6 164673

Senior 
management 
(Levels 13-16) 

44696 75.2 0 0 1491 2.5 850 1.4 59445

Contract 
(Levels 1-2) 1641 85.7 8 0.4 6 0.3 0 0 1914

Contract 
(Levels 3-5) 3094 65.3 653 13.8 219 4.6 177 3.7 4737

Contract 
(Levels 6-8) 3438 72 195 4.1 94 2 110 2.3 4776

Contract 
(Levels 9-12) 11962 72.4 17 0.1 119 0.7 290 1.8 16527

Contract 
(Levels 13-16) 1601 83.7 0 0 0 0 0 0 1912

Periodical 
Remuneration 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 333

Abnormal 
Appointment 2275 93 0 0 0 0 0 0 2447

TOTAL 244161 70.3 3741 1.1 8118 2.3 11805 3.4 347519
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HR OVERSIGHT

TABLE 2.2 - Employment and Vacancies by Salary Band at end of period

Salary Band Number of 
Posts

Number of 
Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
Posts Filled 
Additional 
to the 
Establishment

Skilled (Levels 3-5), permanent 269 218 19 8

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), permanent 322 269 16.5 14

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), permanent 476 375 21.2 7

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), temporary 1 1 0 0

Senior management (Levels 13-16), permanent 89 72 19.1 0

Senior management (Levels 13-16), temporary 1 1 0 1

Contract (Levels 3-5), permanent 24 24 0 21

Contract (Levels 6-8), permanent 19 19 0 14

Contract (Levels 9-12), permanent 49 49 0 2

Contract (Levels 13-16), permanent 3 3 0 1

TOTAL 1253 1031 17.7 68

2.    Employment
TABLE 2.1 - Employment and Vacancies by Programme at end of period

Programme Number of Posts Number of 
Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
Posts Filled 
Additional to the 
Establishment

Mineral Policy and Promotion, permanent 133 117 12 6

Mineral Regulation, permanent 370 331 10.5 6

Programme 1 Admin, permanent 433 334 22.9 45

Programme 1 Admin, temporary 1 1 0 1

Promotion of Mine Safety and Health, permanent 315 247 21.6 10

Promotion of Mine Safety and Health, temporary 1 1 0 0

TOTAL 1253 1031 17.7 68
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TABLE 2.3 - Employment and Vacancies by Critical Occupation at end of period

Critical Occupations Number of 
Posts

Number of 
Posts Filled Vacancy Rate

Number of 
Posts Filled Ad-
ditional to the 
Establishment

Administrative related, permanent 127 101 20.5 6

Administrative related, temporary 1 1 0 1

Biologists, botanists, zoologists and related professional, 
permanent 79 77 2.5 1

Cartographers and surveyors, permanent 3 2 33.3 0

Cleaners in of  ces workshops hospitals etc., permanent 16 15 6.3 0

Client info clerks(switchboard, reception, info clerks), permanent 12 11 8.3 0

Communication and information related, permanent 11 8 27.3 0

Economists, permanent 48 43 10.4 0

Engineering sciences related, permanent 5 2 60 0

Finance and economics related, permanent 13 11 15.4 0

Financial and related professionals, permanent 28 25 10.7 10

Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent 19 14 26.3 4

Food services aids and waiters, permanent 4 3 25 0

Head of department/chief executive of  cer, permanent 1 1 0 0

Human resources and organisational dev and related prof, 
permanent 34 26 23.5 0

Human resources clerks, permanent 24 18 25 11

Human resources related, permanent 5 4 20 0

Information technology related, permanent 12 6 50 0

Language practitioners interpreters and other comm, permanent 5 3 40 0

Legal related, permanent 8 5 37.5 0

Librarians and related professionals, permanent 3 3 0 0

Library mail and related clerks, permanent 61 53 13.1 7

Logistical support personnel, permanent 15 14 6.7 0

Material-recording and transport clerks, permanent 39 27 30.8 2

Messengers porters and deliverers, permanent 12 12 0 0

Other administration and related clerks and organisers, 
permanent 102 91 10.8 7

Other administrative policy and related of  cers, permanent 68 60 11.8 0

Other information technology personnel, permanent 19 14 26.3 1

Other machine operators, permanent 2 2 0 0

Other occupations, permanent 15 7 53.3 5

Risk management and security services, permanent 14 5 64.3 0

Safety health and quality inspectors, permanent 204 153 25 7

Safety health and quality inspectors, temporary 1 1 0 0

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks, permanent 91 79 13.2 4

Security of  cers, permanent 51 49 3.9 1

Senior managers, permanent 82 67 18.3 1

Trade/industry advisers and other related profession, permanent 19 18 5.3 0

TOTAL 1253 1031 17.7 68
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3.    EVALUATION

TABLE 3.1 - Job Evaluation

Salary Band Number of 
Posts

Number 
of Jobs 
Evaluated

% of Posts 
Evaluated

Number 
of Posts 
Upgraded

% of 
Upgraded 
Posts 
Evaluated

Number 
of Posts 
Downgraded

% of 
Downgraded 
Posts 
Evaluated

Contract (Levels 3-5) 24 1 4.2 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8) 19 1 5.3 2 200 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12) 49 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Band A) 1 0 0 0 0 0 0

Contract (Band B) 2 0 0 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 269 115 42.8 5 4.3 0 0

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 322 109 33.9 12 11 1 0.9

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 477 152 31.9 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band A 60 26 43.3 1 3.8 0 0

Senior Management Service Band B 21 4 19 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band C 6 3 50 0 0 0 0

Senior Management Service Band D 3 0 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 1253 411 32.8 20 4.9 1 0.2

TABLE 3.2 - Pro  le of employees whose positions were upgraded due to their posts being upgraded

Bene  ciaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 40 0 6 2 48

Male 10 0 0 0 10

TOTAL 50 0 6 2 58

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 3.3 - Employees whose salary level exceed the grade determined by Job Evaluation [i.t.o. PSR 1.V.C.3]

Occupation Number of 
Employees

Job 
Evaluation 
Level

Remuneration 
Level

Reason for 
Deviation

No of 
Employees in 
Dept

Financial clerks and credit controllers 1 6 8 Retention 14

Logistical support personnel 1 8 9 Retention 14

TOTAL 2 28

Percentage of Total Employment 0.1 0
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TABLE 3.4 - Pro  le of employees whose salary level exceeded the grade determined by job evaluation [i.t.o. PSR 1.V.C.3]

Bene  ciaries African Asian Coloured White Total

Female 2 0 0 0 2

Male 0 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 2 0 0 0 2

Employees with a Disability 0 0 0 0 0

TABLE 4.1 - Annual Turnover Rates by Salary Band

4.  Employee Changes

Salary Band

Employment at 
Beginning of 
Period (April 
2010)

*Appointments *Terminations Turnover Rate

Skilled (Levels 3-5), permanent 213 28 22 10.3

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), permanent 254 20 36 14.2

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), permanent 376 16 38 10.1

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), temporary 1 0 8 800

Senior Management Service Band A, permanent 53 2 6 11.3

Senior Management Service Band B, permanent 13 0 3 23.1

Senior Management Service Band B, temporary 1 0 1 100

Senior Management Service Band C, permanent 2 1 1 50

Senior Management Service Band D, permanent 2 1 0 0

Contract (Levels 1-2), permanent 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5), permanent 40 27 34 85

Contract (Levels 6-8), permanent 19 22 9 47.4

Contract (Levels 9-12), permanent 44 17 4 9.1

Contract (Band A), permanent 0 1 0 0

Contract (Band B), permanent 2 1 0 0

TOTAL 1020 136 162 15.9
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HR OVERSIGHT

TABLE 4.2 - Annual Turnover Rates by Critical Occupation

Occupation

Employment 
at Beginning 
of Period 
(April 2010)

*Appoint-
ments

*Termi-
nations

Turnover 
Rate

Administrative related, permanent 99 7 16 16.2

Administrative related, temporary 1 0 0 0

Agriculture, animal, oceanography, forestry and other sciences, permanent 3 0 0 0

Biologists botanists zoologists and related prof, permanent 69 5 0 0

Cartographers and surveyors, permanent 2 0 0 0

Cleaners in of  ces workshops hospitals etc., permanent 17 0 4 23.5

Client info clerks(switchboard, reception, info clerks), permanent 11 3 1 9.1

Communication and information related, permanent 10 1 0 0

Economists, permanent 39 4 4 10.3

Engineering sciences related, permanent 2 1 0 0

Finance and economics related, permanent 7 0 0 0

Financial and related professionals, permanent 11 20 1 9.1

Financial clerks and credit controllers, permanent 17 10 9 52.9

Food services aids and waiters, permanent 1 1 0 0

General legal administration and rel. professionals, permanent 3 0 0 0

Head of department/chief executive of  cer, permanent 1 0 0 0

Human resources and organisational dev and related prof, permanent 27 1 5 18.5

Human resources clerks, permanent 20 2 6 30

Information technology related, permanent 6 0 4 66.7

Language practitioners interpreters and other comm, permanent 5 0 0 0

Legal related, permanent 3 0 0 0

Librarians and related professionals, permanent 3 0 0 0

Library mail and related clerks, permanent 56 8 3 5.4

Logistical support personnel, permanent 8 0 0 0

Material-recording and transport clerks, permanent 25 3 3 12

Messengers porters and deliverers, permanent 11 1 2 18.2

Other administration and related clerks and organisers, permanent 87 8 12 13.8

Other administrative policy and related of  cers, permanent 60 6 20 33.3

Other information technology personnel, permanent 15 3 0 0

Other machine operators, permanent 2 0 0 0

Other occupations, permanent 1 21 0 0

Risk management and security services, permanent 12 0 0 0

Safety health and quality inspectors, permanent 167 13 27 16.2

Safety health and quality inspectors, temporary 1 0 0 0

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks, permanent 73 12 5 6.8

Security of  cers, permanent 67 1 30 44.8

Senior managers, permanent 60 3 8 13.3

Senior managers, temporary 0 0 1 0

Trade/industry advisers and other related profession, permanent 18 2 1 5.6

TOTAL 1020 136 162 15.9

*Inclusive of transfers in out of the Department 
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TABLE 4.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department

Termination Type Number
Percentage 
of Total 
Resignations

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Total Total 
Employment

Death, permanent 8 4.9 0.8 162 1020

Resignation, permanent 50 30.9 4.9 162 1020

Expiry of contract, permanent 36 22.2 3.5 162 1020

Expiry of contract, temporary 1 0.6 0.1 162 1020

Transfers, permanent 50 30.9 4.9 162 1020

Discharged due to ill health, permanent 2 1.2 0.2 162 1020

Dismissal-misconduct, permanent 4 2.5 0.4 162 1020

Retirement, permanent 11 6.8 1.1 162 1020

TOTAL 162 100 15.9 162 1020

Resignations as % of Employment

5%

Category
No of 
applications 
received

No of 
applications 
referred to the 
MPSA

No of 
applications 
supported by 
MPSA

No of Packages 
approved by 
department

Lower Skilled (Salary Level 1-2) 0 0 0 0

Skilled (Salary Level 3-5) 0 0 0 0

Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 6-8) 0 0 0 0

Highly Skilled Production (Salary Level 9-12) 0 0 0 0

Senior Management (Salary Level 13 and higher) 0 0 0 0

TOTAL 0 0 0 0

TABLE 4.4 - Granting of Employee Initiated Severance Packages

194



Department of Mineral Resources

HR OVERSIGHT

Occupation

Employment 
at Beginning 
of Period 
(April 2010)

Promotions 
to another 
Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 
as a % of 
Employment

Progressions 
to another 
Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch 
progressions 
as a % of 
Employment

Administrative related 100 15 15 53 53

Agriculture, animal, oceanography forestry and other 
sciences 3 0 0 1 33.3

Biologists botanists zoologists and related prof 69 4 5.8 40 58

Cartographers and surveyors 2 0 0 2 100

Cleaners in of  ces workshops hospitals etc. 17 0 0 16 94.1

Client inform clerks(switchboard, reception info clerks) 11 0 0 8 72.7

Communication and information related 10 0 0 5 50

Economists 39 7 17.9 15 38.5

Engineering sciences related 2 0 0 1 50

Finance and economics related 7 2 28.6 6 85.7

Financial and related professionals 11 7 63.6 5 45.5

Financial clerks and credit controllers 17 4 23.5 8 47.1

Food services aids and waiters 1 0 0 1 100

General legal administration and related professionals 3 0 0 1 33.3

Head of department/chief executive of  cer 1 1 100 0 0

Human resources and organisational dev and related prof 27 2 7.4 20 74.1

Human resources clerks 20 4 20 9 45

Information technology related 6 0 0 3 50

Language practitioners interpreters and other communication 5 0 0 2 40

Legal related 3 0 0 0 0

Librarians and related professionals 3 0 0 2 66.7

Library mail and related clerks 56 0 0 36 64.3

Logistical support personnel 8 7 87.5 5 62.5

Material-recording and transport clerks 25 3 12 14 56

Messengers porters and deliverers 11 0 0 8 72.7

Other administrative and related clerks and organisers 87 7 8 48 55.2

Other administrative policy and related of  cers 60 7 11.7 29 48.3

Other information technology personnel 15 2 13.3 4 26.7

Other machine operators 2 0 0 1 50

Other occupations 1 1 100 0 0

Risk management and security services 12 0 0 4 33.3

Safety health and quality inspectors 168 7 4.2 80 47.6

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks 73 2 2.7 37 50.7

Security of  cers 67 2 3 37 55.2

Senior managers 60 2 3.3 36 60

Trade/industry advisers and other related profession 18 1 5.6 12 66.7

TOTAL 1020 87 8.5 549 53.8

TABLE 4.5 - Promotions by Critical Occupation
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TABLE 4.6 - Promotions by Salary Band

Salary Band

Employment at 
Beginning of 
Period (April 
2010)

Promotions 
to another 
Salary Level

Salary Level 
Promotions 
as a % of 
Employment

Progressions 
to another 
Notch within 
Salary Level

Notch 
progressions 
as a % of 
Employment

Skilled (Levels 3-5), permanent 213 9 4.2 197 92.5

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8), 
permanent 254 21 8.3 117 46.1

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), 
permanent 376 46 12.2 184 48.9

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12), 
temporary 1 0 0 1 100

Senior management (Levels 13-16), 
permanent 70 5 7.1 38 54.3

Senior management (Levels 13-16), 
temporary 1 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5), permanent 40 0 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8), permanent 19 2 10.5 2 10.5

Contract (Levels 9-12), permanent 44 4 9.1 9 20.5

Contract (Levels 13-16), permanent 2 0 0 1 50

TOTAL 1020 87 8.5 549 53.8

  5.  Employment Equity
TABLE 5.1 - Total number of Employees (incl. Employees with disabilities) per Occupational Category (SASCO)

  Male   Female

TotalOccupational 

Categories
African

Colour-

ed
Indian

Total 

Blacks
White African

Colour-

ed
Indian

Total 

Blacks
White

Legislators, 
senior of  cials 
and managers, 
permanent 

32 1 0 33 9 20 0 0 20 1 63

Professionals, 
permanent 102 0 2 104 10 121 1 0 122 9 245

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals, 
permanent 

153 3 0 156 57 102 4 0 106 10 329

Technicians 
and associate 
professionals, 
temporary 

0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0 0 0 2

Clerks, 
permanent 79 3 0 82 2 176 16 0 192 26 302

Service and 
sales workers, 
permanent 

31 2 0 33 4 14 0 0 14 1 52

Plant and 
machine 
operators and 
assemblers, 
permanent 

1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
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Male Female
TotalAfri-

can
Colour-

ed Indian Total 
Blacks White African Colour-

ed Indian Total 
Blacks White

Employ-
ees with 
disabili-
ties 

3 0 0 3 2 1 0 0 1 0 6

Elementary 
occupations, 
permanent 

17 1 0 18 0 18 0 0 18 0 36

Other, permanent 1 0 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1

TOTAL 416 10 2 428 84 451 21 0 472 47 1031

HR OVERSIGHT

197



Annual Report 2010/11

TA
B

LE
 5

.2
 - 

To
ta

l n
um

be
r o

f E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

(in
cl

. E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s)

 p
er

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds
M

al
e,

 
A

fr
ic

an
M

al
e,

 
C

ol
ou

re
d

M
al

e,
 

In
di

an

M
al

e,
 

To
ta

l 
B

la
ck

s

M
al

e,
 

W
hi

te
Fe

m
al

e,
 

A
fr

ic
an

Fe
m

al
e,

 
C

ol
ou

re
d

Fe
m

al
e,

 
In

di
an

Fe
m

al
e,

 
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

Fe
m

al
e,

 
W

hi
te

To
ta

l

To
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
4

0
0

4
0

3
0

0
3

0
7

S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

31
1

0
32

9
23

0
0

23
1

65

S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

16
2

3
2

16
7

55
13

6
2

0
13

8
15

37
5

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
0

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
1

S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 a
ca

de
m

ic
al

ly
 

qu
al

i 
ed

 w
or

ke
rs

, j
un

io
r m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s,
 fo

re
m

en
, p

er
m

an
en

t 
77

3
0

80
4

14
6

10
0

15
6

29
26

9

S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 P

er
m

an
en

t 
84

3
0

87
4

11
7

7
0

12
4

2
21

7

U
ns

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

 n
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t),
 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
3

0
0

3
0

0
0

0
0

0
3

C
on

tra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d)

, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

32
0

0
32

10
6

1
0

7
0

49

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l),
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
9

0
0

9
0

10
0

0
10

0
19

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d)

, p
er

m
an

en
t 

13
0

0
13

0
10

1
0

11
0

24

TO
TA

L
41

6
10

2
42

8
84

45
1

21
0

47
2

47
10

31

HR OVERSIGHT

198



Department of Mineral Resources

HR OVERSIGHT

TA
B

LE
 5

.3
 - 

R
ec

ru
itm

en
t

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e
To

ta
l

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l  B
an

ds
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
T o

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te

To
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
2

S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

3
0

0
3

0
3

0
0

3
0

6

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

13
0

0
13

0
11

0
0

11
1

25

S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 a
ca

de
m

ic
al

ly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

w
or

ke
rs

, j
un

io
r m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s,
 

fo
re

m
en

, p
er

m
an

en
t 

20
0

0
20

4
17

1
0

17
0

42

S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
11

0
0

11
2

10
0

0
10

1
0

U
ns

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

 n
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t),
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

C
on

tra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d)

, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

6
0

0
6

3
0

1
0

0
0

10

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l),
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
5

0
0

5
0

5
0

0
5

0
10

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d)

, p
er

m
an

en
t 

10
0

0
10

0
5

1
0

5
0

16

C
on

tra
ct

 (U
ns

ki
lle

d)
, p

er
m

an
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

TO
TA

L
70

0
0

70
9

52
3

0
52

2
13

6

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e

To
ta

l
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te

Em
pl

oy
ee

s 
w

ith
 

di
sa

bi
lit

ie
s 

1
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
0

1

199



Annual Report 2010/11

HR OVERSIGHT

TA
B

LE
 5

.4
 - 

Pr
om

ot
io

ns

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e
To

ta
l

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te

To
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

1
0

0
1

0
3

0
0

3
0

4

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

24
1

0
24

2
19

0
0

19
0

46

S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 a
ca

de
m

ic
al

ly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

w
or

ke
rs

, j
un

io
r m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s,
 

fo
re

m
en

, p
er

m
an

en
t 

7
0

0
7

0
13

1
0

14
0

21

S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
3

0
0

3
0

6
0

0
6

0
9

C
on

tra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d)

, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

4
0

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
0

4

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l),
 p

er
m

an
en

t
1

0
0

1
0

1
0

0
1

0
2

TO
TA

L
41

1
0

41
2

42
1

0
43

0
87

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e
To

ta
l

A
fr

ic
an

C
ol

ou
re

d
In

di
an

To
ta

l 
B

la
ck

s
W

hi
te

A
fr

ic
an

C
ol

ou
re

d
In

di
an

To
ta

l 
B

la
ck

s
W

hi
te

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

2
0

0
2

2
1

0
0

1
0

5

200



Department of Mineral Resources

TA
B

LE
 5

.5
 - 

Te
rm

in
at

io
ns

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e
To

ta
l

O
cc

up
at

io
na

l B
an

ds
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te
A

fr
ic

an
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te

To
p 

M
an

ag
em

en
t, 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

4
1

1
4

1
2

0
0

2
0

9

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

19
0

0
19

18
9

0
0

9
0

46

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d 

an
d 

ex
pe

rie
nc

ed
 

sp
ec

ia
lis

ts
 a

nd
 m

id
-m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
te

m
po

ra
ry

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l a
nd

 a
ca

de
m

ic
al

ly
 

qu
al

i 
ed

 w
or

ke
rs

, j
un

io
r m

an
ag

em
en

t, 
su

pe
rv

is
or

s,
 fo

re
m

en
, p

er
m

an
en

t 
10

0
1

10
0

15
0

0
15

1
27

S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d 

an
d 

di
sc

re
tio

na
ry

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
13

0
0

13
0

11
0

1
11

4
29

U
ns

ki
lle

d 
an

d 
de

 n
ed

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g,
 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
en

io
r M

an
ag

em
en

t),
 

pe
rm

an
en

t 
1

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

0
1

C
on

tra
ct

 (P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

lly
 q

ua
li

 e
d)

, 
pe

rm
an

en
t 

5
0

0
5

2
0

0
0

0
0

7

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
ki

lle
d 

te
ch

ni
ca

l),
 p

er
m

an
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
1

C
on

tra
ct

 (S
em

i-s
ki

lle
d)

, p
er

m
an

en
t 

22
0

0
22

0
19

0
0

19
0

41

C
on

tra
ct

 (U
ns

ki
lle

d)
, p

er
m

an
en

t 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

TO
TA

L
75

1
2

75
21

57
0

1
57

5
16

2

HR OVERSIGHT

201



Annual Report 2010/11

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e

To
ta

l
N

ot
 A

va
ila

bl
e

D
is

ci
pl

in
ar

y 
ac

tio
n

A
fri

ca
n

C
ol

ou
re

d
In

di
an

To
ta

l 
B

la
ck

s
W

hi
te

A
fri

ca
n

C
ol

ou
re

d
In

di
an

To
ta

l 
B

la
ck

s
W

hi
te

TO
TA

L
2

0
0

2
2

1
0

0
1

0
5

0

Ta
bl

e 
5.

6 
- D

is
ci

pl
in

ar
y 

A
ct

io
n

HR OVERSIGHT

TA
B

LE
 5

.7
 - 

Sk
ill

s 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t

M
al

e
Fe

m
al

e

To
ta

l
O

cc
up

at
io

na
l C

at
eg

or
ie

s
A

fri
ca

n
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
T o

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te
A

fri
ca

n
C

ol
ou

re
d

In
di

an
To

ta
l 

B
la

ck
s

W
hi

te

Le
gi

sl
at

or
s,

 S
en

io
r O

f 
ci

al
s 

an
d 

M
an

ag
er

s 
10

0
0

10
1

2
0

0
2

1
14

P
ro

fe
ss

io
na

ls
 

40
0

1
41

6
41

0
0

41
2

90

Te
ch

ni
ci

an
s 

an
d 

A
ss

oc
ia

te
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

na
ls

 
13

0
0

13
0

16
0

0
16

0
29

C
le

rk
s 

23
0

0
23

0
43

3
0

46
0

69

S
er

vi
ce

 a
nd

 S
al

es
 W

or
ke

rs
 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

S
ki

lle
d 

A
gr

ic
ul

tu
re

 a
nd

 F
is

he
ry

 W
or

ke
rs

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

C
ra

ft 
an

d 
re

la
te

d 
Tr

ad
es

 W
or

ke
rs

 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

P
la

nt
 a

nd
 M

ac
hi

ne
 O

pe
ra

to
rs

 a
nd

 
A

ss
em

bl
er

s 
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

E
le

m
en

ta
ry

 O
cc

up
at

io
ns

 
23

0
0

23
0

16
0

0
16

0
39

TO
TA

L 
10

9
0

1
11

0
7

11
8

3
0

12
1

3
24

1

E
m

pl
oy

ee
s 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
ili

tie
s 

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0

202



Department of Mineral Resources

6.      PERFORMANCE

TABLE 6.1 - Performance Rewards by Race, Gender and Disability

Demographics Number of 
Bene  ciaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Cost (R'000)
Average Cost 
per Bene  ciary 
(R)

African, Female 255 450 56.7 2,591 10,161

African, Male 202 413 48.9 2,788 13,802

Asian, Female 1 0 0 9 9,000

Asian, Male 1 2 50 22 22,000

Coloured, Female 15 21 71.4 108 7,200

Coloured, Male 7 10 70 70 10,000

Total Blacks, Female 271 471 57.5 2,708 9,993

Total Blacks, Male 210 425 49.4 2,880 13,714

White, Female 43 47 91.5 420 9,767

White, Male 67 82 81.7 1,605 23,955

Employees with a disability 5 6 83.3 69 13,800

TOTAL 591 1031 57.3 7,613 12,882

TABLE6.2 - Performance Rewards by Salary Band for Personnel below Senior Management Service

Salary Band Number of 
Bene  ciaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Cost (R'000) Average Cost per 
Bene  ciary (R)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 160 218 73.4 699 4,369

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 157 269 58.4 1,121 7,140

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 238 376 63.3 4,504 18,924

Contract (Levels 3-5) 0 24 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 6-8) 0 19 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 9-12) 9 49 18.4 184 20,444

Periodical Remuneration 0 61 0 0 0

Abnormal Appointment 0 153 0 0 0

TOTAL 564 1169 48.2 6,508 11,539

HR OVERSIGHT
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TABLE 6.3 - Performance Rewards by Critical Occupation

Critical Occupations Number of 
Bene  ciaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Cost (R'000)
Average Cost 
per Bene  ciary 
(R)

Administrative related 63 102 61.8 1,076 17,079

Agriculture, animal, oceanography forestry and 
other sciences 1 2 50 8 8,000

Biologists botanists zoologists and related prof 36 76 47.4 575 15,972

Cartographers and surveyors 2 2 100 17 8,500

Cleaners in of  ces workshops hospitals etc. 16 16 100 56 3,500

Client inform clerks(switchboard, reception info 
clerks) 8 11 72.7 33 4,125

Communication and information related 6 8 75 98 16,333

Economists 20 42 47.6 417 20,850

Engineering sciences related 2 3 66.7 44 22,000

Finance and economics related 6 9 66.7 152 25,333

Financial and related professionals 8 24 33.3 100 12,500

Financial clerks and credit controllers 8 17 47.1 48 6,000

Food services aids and waiters 1 3 33.3 3 3,000

General legal administration and related 
professionals 2 3 66.7 34 17,000

Head of department/chief executive of  cer 1 2 50 92 92,000

Human resources and organisational dev and 
related prof 20 29 69 234 11,700

Human resources clerks 7 20 35 40 5,714

Information technology related 5 6 83.3 71 14,200

Language practitioners interpreters and other 
communication 3 3 100 21 7.000

Legal related 1 3 33.3 23 23,000

Librarians and related professionals 1 3 33.3 5 5,000

Library mail and related clerks 37 56 66.1 169 4,568

Logistical support personnel 5 14 35.7 40 8,000

Material-recording and transport clerks 16 24 66.7 80 5,000

Messengers porters and deliverers 8 12 66.7 30 3,750

Natural sciences related 0 1 0 0 0

Other administrative and related clerks and 
organisers 68 93 73.1 402 5,912

Other administrative policy and related of  cers 27 60 45 276 10,222
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Other information technology personnel 6 14 42.9 51 8,500

Other machine operators 2 1 200 7 3,500

Other occupations 0 7 0 0 0

Rank: Unknown 0 1 0 0 0

Risk management and security services 4 5 80 39 9,750

Safety health and quality inspectors 83 154 53,9 1,760 21,205

Secretaries and other keyboard operating clerks 41 81 50,6 250 6,098

Security of  cers 40 47 85,1 181 4,525

Senior managers 25 59 42,4 981 39,240

Trade/industry advisers and other related 
profession 12 18 66,7 190 15,833

TOTAL 591 1031 57,3 7,603 12,865

Critical Occupations Number of 
Bene  ciaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Cost (R'000)
Average Cost 
per Bene  ciary 
(R)

TABLE 6.4 - Performance Related Rewards (Cash Bonus) by Salary Band for Senior Management Service

SMS Band Number of 
Bene  ciaries

Total 
Employment

Percentage 
of Total 
Employment

Cost (R'000)

Average 
Cost per 
Bene  ciary 
(R)

% of SMS 
Wage Bill

Personnel 
Cost SMS 
(R'000)

Band A 20 53 37.7 768 3,840 2 38,367

Band B 6 16 37.5 246 4,100 1.5 16,275

Band C 0 4 0 0 0 0 2,520

Band D 1 3 33.3 92 9,200 2.2 4,195

TOTAL 27 76 35.5 1,106 4,096 1.8 61,357
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7.    Foreign Workers

TABLE 7.1 - Foreign Workers by Salary Band

Salary Band

Employ-
ment at 
Beginning 
Period

Percent-
age of 
Total

Employ-
ment at 
End of 
Period

Percent-
age of 
Total

Change 
in Em-
ployment

Percent-
age of 
Total

Total Em-
ployment 
at Begin-
ning of 
Period

Total Em-
ployment 
at End of 
Period

Total 
Change in 
Employ-
ment

Highly skilled 
s u p e r v i s i o n 
(Levels 9-12) 

1 100 1 50 0 0 1 2 1

Periodical Re-
muneration 0 0 1 50 1 100 1 2 1

TOTAL 1 100 2 100 1 100 1 2 1

TABLE 7.2 - Foreign Workers by Major Occupation

Major Occupation

Employ-
ment at 
Begin-
ning 
Period

Per-
cent-
age of 
Total

Employ-
ment at 
End of 
Period

Per-
centage 
of Total

Change 
in Em-
ployment

Percent-
age of 
Total

Total Em-
ployment 
at Begin-
ning of 
Period

Total 
Employ-
ment at 
End of 
Period

Total 
Change 
in Em-
ployment

Other occupations 0 0 1 50 1 100 1 2 1

Technicians and asso-
ciated professionals 1 100 1 50 0 0 1 2 1

TOTAL 1 100 2 100 1 100 1 2 1
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8. Leave
TABLE 8.1 - Sick Leave for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Salary Band Total Days
% Days with 
Medical 
Certi  cation

Number of 
Employees 
using Sick 
Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using Sick 
Leave

Average 
Days per 
Employee

Estimated 
Cost 
(R'000)

Total 
number of 
Employees 
using Sick 
Leave

Total 
number of 
days with 
medical 
certi  cation

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 1182 84.7 165 24.1 7 433 686 1001

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 1447 82.5 200 29.2 7 912 686 1194

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 1469 81.4 229 33.4 6 2,396 686 1196

Senior management 
(Levels 13-16) 281 89 43 6.3 7 1,010 686 250

Contract (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0 0 0 - 686 0

Contract (Levels 3-5) 81 71.6 18 2.6 5 27 686 58

Contract (Levels 6-8) 31 93.5 8 1.2 4 22 686 29

Contract (Levels 9-12) 100 99 21 3.1 5 110 686 99

Contract (Levels 13-16) 33 97 2 0.3 17 54 686 32

TOTAL 4624 83.5 686 100 7 4,964 686 3859

TABLE 8.2 - Disability Leave (Temporary and Permanent) for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Salary Band Total Days
% Days with 
Medical 
Certi  cation

Number of 
Employees 
using 
Disability 
Leave

% of Total 
Employees 
using 
Disability 
Leave

Average 
Days per 
Employee

Estimated 
Cost 
(R'000)

Total 
number of 
days with 
medical 
certi  cation

Total 
number of 
Employees 
using 
Disability 
Leave

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 77 100 1 20 77 22 77 5

Highly skilled production 
(Levels 6-8) 17 100 1 20 17 9 17 5

Highly skilled supervision 
(Levels 9-12) 18 0 1 20 18 20 18 5

Senior Management 
(Level 14) 145 100 1 20 145 191 145 5

Contract(levels 9-12) 4 100 1 20 4 6 4 5

TOTAL 261 100 5 100 52 248 261 5

HR OVERSIGHT
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TABLE 8.3 - Annual Leave for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Salary Band Total Days Taken Average days per 
Employee

Number of Employees 
who took leave

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 3491 16 225

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 4115 16 250

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 9-12) 6731 20 338

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 1190 16 75

Contract (Levels 1-2) 0 0 0

Contract (Levels 3-5) 258 8 33

Contract (Levels 6-8) 82 9 9

Contract (Levels 9-12) 707 15 46

Contract (Levels 13-16) 30 10 3

TOTAL 16,604 17 979

TABLE 8.4 - Capped Leave for Jan 2010 to Dec 2010

Total days of 
capped leave 
taken

Average 
number 
of days 
taken per 
employee

Average 
capped 
leave per 
employee 
as at 31 
December 
2010

Number of 
Employees 
who took 
Capped 
leave

Total number 
of capped 
leave 
available at 
31 December 
2010

Number of 
Employees 
as at 31 
December 
2010

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 27 4 25 7 1093 44

Highly skilled production (Levels 
6-8) 52 10 16 5 1133 72

Highly skilled supervision (Levels 
9-12) 119 7 40 16 4048 101

Senior management (Levels 13-
16) 26 5 44 5 1319 30

*TOTAL 224 7 31 33 7593 247

*Inclusive of of  cials from the Department of Energy      
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TABLE 8.5 - Leave Payouts

Reason
Total 
Amount 
(R'000)

Number of 
Employees

Average 
Payment 
per 
Employee 
(R)

Leave payout for 2010/11 due to non-utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 322 18 17889

Capped leave payouts on termination of service for 2010/11 1,020 67 15224

Current leave payout on termination of service for 2010/11 643 57 11281

TOTAL 1985 142 13979

9.  HIV

TABLE 9.1 - Steps taken to reduce the risk of occupational exposure

Units/categories of employees identi  ed to be at high risk 
of contracting HIV and related diseases (if any) Key steps taken to reduce the risk

xxx xxx 

xxx xxx 

HR OVERSIGHT
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10.    Labour Relations
TABLE 10.1 - Collective Agreements

Subject Matter Date

ITC Usage Policy 11/02/2011

Transport  Policy 11/02/2011

Employment Equity Plan 11/02/2011

Talent Management Strategy 11/02/2011

SandT Policy 11/02/2011

Mail Management Policy 11/02/2011

TABLE 10.2 - Misconduct and Discipline Hearings Finalised

Outcomes of disciplinary hearings Number Percentage of Total Total

Finalised 14 48% 29

Pending 15 52% 29

TOTAL 29 100% 29

TABLE 10.3 - Types of Misconduct Addressed and Disciplinary Hearings

Type of misconduct Number Percentage of 
Total Total

Assault 1 50% 2

Absenteeism 1 100% 1

Theft 0 0% 1

Poor Work Performance 0 0% 2

Misuse of GG petrol card 0 0% 1

Failure to follow procedure 3 50% 6

Non submission of log sheet 2 100% 2

Corruption/ Fraud 0 0% 3

Failure to follow instructions 2 100% 2

Disclosure of classi  ed information 0 0% 1

Being intoxicated on duty 1 50% 2

Unprofessional conduct 2 50% 4

unlawful access of information 1 100% 1

withdrawal of subsides vehicle from scheme 1 100% 1

TOTAL 14 48.3 29
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TABLE 10.4 - Grievances Lodged

Number of grievances addressed Number Percentage of Total Total

Finalised 17 68% 25

Pending 8 32% 25

TOTAL 25 100% 25

TABLE 10.5 - Disputes Lodged

Number of disputes addressed Number % of total

Upheld 0 0

Dismissed 4 100

TOTAL 4   100

TABLE 10.6 - Strike Actions

Strike Actions

Total number of person working days lost 9

Total cost(R'000) of working days lost (The cost will not be fact estimated due to the fact only 13 
deductions we made) 

Amount (R'000) recovered as a result of no work no pay R 7,113.81

TABLE 10.7 - Precautionary Suspensions

Precautionary Suspensions

Number of people suspended 5

Number of people whose suspension exceeded 30 days 3

Average number of days suspended 668

Cost (R'000) of suspensions R 2,590,317
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11. Skills Development
TABLE 11.1 - Training Needs identi  ed

Occupational Categories Gender Employment Learnerships

Skills 
Programmes 
and other 
short 
courses

Other 
forms of 
training

Total

Legislators, senior of  cials and 
managers Female 0 0 17 0 17

  Male 0 0 30 0 30

Professionals Female 0 0 78 0 78

  Male 0 0 73 0 73

Technicians and associate professionals Female 0 0 81 0 81

  Male 0 0 115 0 115

Clerks Female 0 0 144 0 144

  Male 0 0 48 0 48

Service and sales workers Female 0 0 14 0 14

  Male 0 0 26 0 26

Skilled agriculture and  shery workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

  Male 0 0 0 0 0

Craft and related trades workers Female 0 0 0 0 0

  Male 0 0 0 0 0

Plant and machine operators and 
assemblers Female 0 0 0 0 0

  Male 0 0 0 0 0

Elementary occupations Female 0 0 1 0 1

  Male 0 0 4 0 4

Gender sub totals Female 0 0 335 0 335

  Male 0 0 296 0 296

TOTAL   0 0 631 0 631
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12.    Injuries
TABLE 12.1 - Injury on Duty

Nature of injury on duty Number % of total

Required basic medical attention only 0 0

Temporary Total Disablement 1 100

Permanent Disablement 0 0

Fatal 0 0

Total 1 0

13.   Consultants

TABLE 13.1 - Report on consultant appointments using appropriated funds

Project Title

Total number of 
consultants that 
worked on the 
project

Duration: Work 
days

Contract value in 
Rand

Appointment of Magix Integration provider for the enhancements 
of the Samindex database system in the Department of Mineral 
Resources

1 200 R 795,800.00

Appointment of service provider to provide journal subscription 
for the Department of Mineral Resources for a period of two 
years

1 480 R 101,435.00

Appointment of IRCA PTY to expand the scope of the project of 
developing the Mine Health and Safety Inspectorate Integrated 
Management System to include Mineral Regulation processes 
 ows and modules

5 120 R 3,420,000.00

Procurement of a service level agreement (SLA) for the 
technical support of the DMR virtual environment. 2 240 R 787,750.00

Appointment of Human Communication for handling recruitment 
and other advertising for the Department of Mineral Resources 
for a period of two years

1 480 % discount on 
advert placed

Appointment of Ultimate Recruitment Solutions for handling 
recruitment and other advertising for the Department of Mineral 
Resources for a period of two years

1 480 % discount on 
advert placed

HR OVERSIGHT

Total number of projects Total individual 
consultants

Total duration: 
Work days

Total contract 
value in Rand

6 10 1520 R 4,317,235.00
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TABLE 13.2 - Analysis of consultant appointments using appropriated funds, i.t.o. HDIs 

Project Title
Percentage 
ownership by HDI 
groups

Percentage 
management 
by HDI groups

Number of 
Consultants from HDI 
groups that work on 
the project

Appointment of Magix Integration provider for the enhancements 
of the Samindex database system in the Department of Mineral 
Resources

0% 0% 0

Appointment of service provider to provide journal subscription for 
the Department of Mineral Resources for a period of two years 90% 90% 1

Appointment of IRCA PTY to expand the scope of the project of 
developing the Mine Health and Safety Inspectorate Integrated 
Management System to include Mineral Regulation processes 
 ows and modules

0% 0% 3

Procurement of a service level agreement (SLA) for the technical 
support of the DMR virtual environment. 40% 40% 0

Appointment of Human Communication for handling recruitment 
and other advertising for the Department of Mineral Resources for 
a period of two years

51% 51% 1

Appointment of Ultimate Recruitment Solutions for handling 
recruitment and other advertising for the Department of Mineral 
Resources for a period of two years

100% 100% 1

TABLE 13.3 - Report on consultant appointments using Donor funds

Project Title

Total number of 
consultants that 
worked on the 
project

Duration: Work days Donor and Contract 
value in Rand

0 0 0 0

Total number of projects Total individual 
consultants Total duration: Work days Total contract value in 

Rand

0 0 0 0

TABLE 13.4 - Analysis of consultant appointments using Donor funds, i.t.o. HDIs

Project Title Percentage ownership 
by HDI groups

Percentage 
management by HDI 
groups

Number of Consultants 
from HDI groups that 
work on the project

0 0 0 0
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